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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

I'm delighted to report that Games Workshop's financial year ended 2 June 2019 was ancther great year for the Company. Revenue and
profit before tax were both at record levels, revenue exceeding £25Q million for the first time. Games Workshop's 2019 performance beat
the 2018 result with sales and profit growth across all channels. This is the first time in the Company’s histary that perfarmance in the
financial year fallowing a Warhammer 40,000 [aunch year has beaten the Warhammer 40,000 year!

Dividend payments in respect of the 2019 financial year amounted to 155 pence per share, compared with 126 pence per share in respect
of 2018. I'm sure that Games Workshop shareholders appreciate the fact that our dividends are paid entirely out of surplus cash generated,
rct debt. We continue to have na borrowings.

This performance was achieved notwithstanding a busy year on other fronts: phase 1 of Leenside - our new production facility in
MNottingharm — was completed (on time and on budget) and commenced operations in December 2018. Phase 2 of the Leenside projectis
underway and is expected to be operational in Autumn 2019, Other investment projects, which Kev describes in his report later in this
annual report, continue to make progress.

1 would also draw to shareholders’ attention the growing cantribution to our performance from royalty income. There is increasing interest
oh the part of rnedia businesses in Games Warkshop's intellectual property - our rich fantasy worlds of Warhammer.

We continue to try to remain alert to the business risks we must address. This includes the risks which confront every business routinely ~
for example, finding and retaining good peaple, innovation, sales growth, cost controt = and those which a business that has grown fast
over a short peried of time might consider in particular, such as the effectiveness of our operating systems, our design, develepment and
manufacturing capacity; In short, how best to address our ‘growing pains’. No easy task: your executive team has a lot an its plate.

The pracess of refreshing the compasition of the hoard of the Company cantinues. As noted in our 2018 annuzl repart, Cheis Myatt, aur
senior independent director, will step down from the board at cur AGM in September 2019, Chris has been a great source of clear,
independent-minded advice to Games Workshop since his appointment to the board as a nan-exacutive girector in April 1996. On behalf of
everyone involved In any way in Games Warkshop, thank you, Chris. We will miss your contribution.

Finding new non-exgcutive director candidates who fit’ with Games Workshop does take time — and we believe “fit’ to be of great
importance. Your beard has spent a good deal of time on this exercise since our last znnual report. We have however now appointed as
non-executive directors John Brewis in June 2018 and Kate Marsh in July 2019. Following the 2019 AGM, your board now has in place three
non-exacutive directors {besides me). We will commence our search for a fourth non-executive in 2019/20 and | expect my successor 3s
nen-executive chairman to be appointed from this group within the next few years. We will keep you fully updated on our progress on this
frant.

Qur 2018 AGM had a structure similar to most ather listed campanies, focusing on normal AGM business. This year's AGM will be similar in
format, but following the AGM this year Kev and Rachel will make a presentation abaut the business. And, as before, there wil be the
apportunity for shareholders to meet and engage with ali board members and some of our senior operational team.

Gn the subject of trying to improve awareness generally abaut what we're doing at Games Workshop and in particular in the light of the
WMIFID 1 regulations, we recently appointed Edison Group, an independent research firm, 10 publish research into our business. You can
access this on our investor relations website. | encourage you to read it! | hope you will find it informative and helpful.

Finally, and as was the case last year, { have three enjoyable responsibilities to discharge before concluding this statement:

- Firstly, ta thank our executive directors and the Games Workshop team as a whole for achieving such success this year. | know
you will try and keep it up. The team’s performance has been fantastic.

- Secondly, to thank our layal customers: we will do our best te continue to produce what you're looking for and to include you in
the conversation.

- Thirdly, to thank you, our shareholders, for your suppart and your loyalty. Do please try and come to gur AGM on 18 September
2019: we lock forward to seeing you there.

With thanks, and bgst wishes.

ARG

Nick Donaldson
Naon-executive chairman
29 July 2019
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Strategy and objectives
Games Workshop is committed to making the Warhammer Hobby and oaur business ever better.

Cur ambitions remain clear: to make the best fantasy miniatures in the world, to engage and inspire our customers, and to sell our
praducts globally at a profit. We intend to do this ferever. Our decisions are focused on long-term success, not short-term gains.

Let me go through our strategy part by part:

The first element, - we make high quality miniatures. We understand that what we make is not for everyone, so to recruit and re-recruit
customers we are absolutely focused on making our models the best in the world. In order to continue ta do that forever and to deliver a
decent returp to our owners, we sell them for the price that we believe the investment we have made in guality is worth.

The second element is that we make fantasy miniatures based in cur endless, imaginary worlds. This gives us control over the imagery and
styles we use and ownership of the intellectual property {IP}. Aside from our care business, we are constantly loaking to graw cur royzalty
income from opportunities to use our IP in other markets.

The third element is that we are customer focused. We talk to our customers, We alm to communicate in an open, fun way. Whoever and
wherever our customers are, and in whichever way they want to engage with Warhammer, we will do our utmost to support them.

The fourth element is the global nature of our business. We seek out our custemers all over the world. We believe that our custgmers carry
our Habby gene and to find them we apply our tried and tested approach of recruiting custamers in cur own stores, by offering a fantastic
customer experience. Qur retail business is supparted by our own online store (it has the full range of our product) and our independent
stockist and trade accounts across the world. These independent accounts do a great job supporting our customers in parts of the world
where we either have not yet opened one of our stores or where it is not commercialiy viable for us to have one. Gur long term goal is to
have all three channels {retail, trade and online} growing in harmony. We will always have more independent accounts than our own
stares. Qur strategy is to grow our business through geographic spread, growing all of the three complementary channels.

The fifth element is being focused on cash. By delivering a good cash return every year we can continue to innevate, surprise and delight
our loyal existing customers and new customers with great product. To be around forever we also need to invest in hoth long term capital
and shart term maintenance projects every year, pay our staff what they have earned for the value they contribute and deliver surpius
cash to our sharehalders. Our dedication and focus should ensure we deliver on time and within our agreed cash limits.

We measure our long-term success by seeking a high return on investment. In the short term, we measure our success on our ability to
grow sales whilst maintaining our core husiness operating profit margin at current levels. The way we go about implementing this strategy
is to recruit the best staff we can by looking for the appropriate attitudes and behaviour each job we do requires and idantifying the value
that job brings. it is also important that everyone we emplay has a real desire to learn the skills needed to do their job and has a great
attitude to change. We offer all of our staff both personal devalopment and skilis training.

We continue to believe there are great opportunities for growth, particularly in North America, Germany and Asia.

Cur brands
We have ariginated and are in control of a number of strong, globally recognised brands with their own identities, associations and logos.

Qur key consumer facing brand is ‘Warhammer’.

Wwe design, make and sell products under a number of brands and sub brands, which denate setting, tone and product tyne, the key ones
being:

s Warhammer: Age of Sigmar - aur unigue fantasy setting.
*  Warhammer 40,000 - our most pepular and recognisable brand is a space fantasy setting.
. Horus Heresy - an off shoot of Warhammer 40,000, the Horus Heresy is presented as ‘fictional history’ of that universe,

we beheve our 1P 1o be among the best in the world

The Warhammer settings are incredibly rich and evocative backdrops. They're populated by more than three decades of fantastical
characters and comprise af thousands of exciting narratives. We are committed to rnaking it easier than ever for peaple to discover,
engage with and immerse themselves in our 1P. Aided by a small, senior team we have aiready begun 1o find new partners, and new ways
to help us bring the worlds of Warhammer to life like never before. Together, we’'ll continue to explore animatian, live acticn and more.
we'll present the very best aspects of our rich [P, delighting audiences whife always ensuring we do no harm te aur core miniatures
business. -
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Business model and structure

we design, manufacture, distribute and sell our fantasy miniatures and related products. These are fantasy miniatures from our own
warhammer 40,000 and Warhammer: Age of Sigmar universes. Qur factory, main warehouse facility and back office support functions are
all based in Nottingham. We are an internaticnal business centrally run from our HQ in Nottingham, with 75% of cur sales caming from
outside the UK.

Design

Ermploying 228 people, the design studio in Nottingham creates all the IP and the miniatures, artwork, games and publications that we sell.
In 2018/19 we invested £10.5 million in the studio (including software costs) with a further £3.3 million spent on tooling for new plastic
miniatures. We are committed to investing in these areas at an appropriate level every year.

We design all of our products at our HQQ in Nottingham. Annually, specialist staff produce hundreds of new sculpts, illustrations, rules,
stories, etc. that deliver new products every week, keeping customers engaged and excited.

All of our plastic miniatures are branded as Citadel Miniatures, a mark with an unparalleled reputation for quality. it denotes both a style
and level of detail that we apply to hoth our own worlds {Warhammer 40,000, Warhammer: Age of Sigmar} and those of others, e.g. Lord
of the Rings.

Our resin miniatures, designed for more veteran customers, are branded as Forge World and are less widely available than their plastic
coguntergarts.

Many customers love personalising their miniatures and our Citadel Colour paint range, brushes and accompanying painting system are
designed to help everyone from the comgplete beginner to the most experienced painters in the world achieve that. In the pursuit of ever
better results we continually develop new types of paint and ways of using them with the result that our paints are used the world over -
and for more than painting just our miniatures.

When not interacting with cur miniatures, many custamers enjoy reading stories set in our rich and immersive worlds and under our Black
Library imprint we publish hundreds of titles, from short stories and audio dramas through full length noveis, available in physical
baokstares, third party anline platforms and our own retail and other specialist stores.

Manufacture

We are proud to manufacture our product in Nottingham. It's where we started and where we intend to stay. During the year we
completed phase 1 of our new site, considerably expanding our production capacity, and phase 2, an expansion of our tooling facility and
additional office space, is ongoing with completion expected in the Autumn of 2016.

Logistics

All of our product is initially distributed from our warehouse facility in Nottingham. This facility supgplies our two hubs in Memphis,
Tennassea and Sydney, Australia, and then directly to our independeant retailers and retail stores. A project to extand and upgrade the
Memphis facility was started in March 2018.

Self
wWe sell via three channels, our own stares ‘Retail’, third party independent retailers Trade' and our online store ‘Online’. We also ‘sell’, or
rather generate incame, via our licensing partners. We support these channels and activities via our marketing team.

Retail - pravides the focus for the Warhammer Hobby in their areas. Qur stores only stock Games Warkshop product. They are where we
recruit the majority of our new customers. To do so, the stores dan't offer the full range of gur product, only new release product and the
appropriate extended range. At the year end we had 517 Games Waorkshop stores 1n 23 countries. Qur stares contributed 34% of the year's
sales. We have 410 one man stores: small sites, each one staffed by only one store manager. We also have 107 multi-man stores, which are
constantly reviewed to ensure they remain profitable. 1f not, they will be closed and probably replaced with one man stores.

Trade - we sel! to third party retailers under clasely controlled terms and conditions. They help us sell our preducts around the worid and
importantly in areas where we don't have cur own stares. Independent retailers are an integral part of our business model: Games
Workshop strives ta support those outlets which help to build the Warhammer Hobby community in their local area. The bulk of these
sates are made via our telesales teams based in Memphis and Nottingham. We also have small telesales teams in Sydney, Tokyo, Shanghai,
Singapore, Hong Kong and Kuala Lumpur. In 2018/19 we had 4,700 independent retaiters {2018: 4,100} in 69 countries. We strive to deliver
excelient service, operating in 22 languages covering all time zones. 47% of our sales came from sales to independent retailers in the year
reparted. These sales are from thelr bricks and mortar stores as well as their own online web stores.

QOnline - sales via our web stares accounted for 19% of total sales in 2018/19. All of our retail stores also have a web store terminal that
aliows our customers shopping in our retail stores access to the full range. The web stores are run centrally from Nottingham.

Licensing - we grant licences to a number of carefully chosen partners. This allows us to leverage our IP to broaden the presence and hrand
exposure of Warhammer around the warld, often entering new markets such as board games, apparel or accessories and media and
entertainment. It also allows us to generate additional income, currently principally from computer games sales in North America, the UK
and Continental Europe.
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Business model and strugture continued

Sell continued

Marketing - keeps us customer focused. This team acts as the bridge between our ather business areas, ensuring we have a joined up
approach between praduct (design to manufacture] and sales. Marketing spends a lat of time listening and develaping a two way dialogue
with our customers ta make sure we keep their needs at the forefrant, championing the Warhammer Hobby around the globe and
injecting our content and communications with a real sense of passion and fun.

Structure

We control the business centrally fram Nottingham; it is where the people with experience and knowledge of running our business work, |
have put in place a flat structure: the people with seniar responsibility that make all of the big decisions report directly tc me. My team is
split into seven parts: design to manufaciure, sales, merchandising and logistics, marketing, operations and support, systems and 1P
exploitation.

We have a global head of design and manufacturing who is responsible far our factory and design studios {(miniatures, baok and box
games, specialist systems, hobby product and Black Library).

QOur channel sales structure comprises retail, trade and anline. This structure is made up of twa key retail territory heads of sales in North
America and the Rest of the World. We also have a global head of trade sales and a globa! head of online along with a head of sales for
Asia. A global head of digital and community marketing and a global head of merchandising and logistics support our sales channels with
appropriate internal and external communication. The global head of merchandising and logistics also manages our three main warehouse
facilities in Nottingham, Memghis and Sydney. '

Our operations and support structure includes a finance director for Games Warkshop who is responsible for accounts, compliance,
ficensing and legal duties. Our global people manager ensures we take our people recruitment and develcpment seriously. Qur group head
of IT ensures we invest in our core systems 25 well as consider how we can leverage technology to help us deliver our long-term goais.

Key performance indicators

The board and management team use a number of key performance indicators te provide a consistent method of anaiysing performance,
in addition to allowing the board to benchmark performance against our forecast. The key performance indicators utilised by the board ¢an
be split intc key financial performance indicators and key non-financial performance indicators.

Qur key financial performance indicatars are:

Manthly, year ta date and Moving Annual Total {'MAT’] sales growth by channel
Measures the sales growth achieved in each of our channels on a monthly, year to date and rolling 12 month basis: see page 9.

Meonthly, year to date and MAT Group gross margin
Measures the gross profit achieved on sales after taking account of the direct costs and depreciation of manufacturing equipment and
shipping our product to customers/stores an a monthly, year to date and rolling 12 month basis: see page 10.

Year to date core business operating ﬁroﬂt percentage
The ratio of core business operating profit before royaity income against revenue, as a percentage: see page 10

Manthly, year to date and MAT core business prafit
Measures gross profit less operating expenses on a monthly, year to date and 12 month roiting basis, before royalty income. see page 10.

Number of own stares by territary
Measures the number of cur own stores which is an indicator of aur global reach: see page 9.

MAT number of ordering stockist accounts by territory
Measures the number of trade outlets that have ordered from us in the last six months. it is an indicator of our globa! reach and the health
of our trade account base: see Trade’ paragraph on page 4,

Return on capital
The ratio of operating profit before royalty income against capital employed, as a percentage: see page 11.

Our key non-financial performance indicators are:

Product quality
This is an indicator of the effectiveness of our design studio and our continuous improvement in design to manufacture. We measure this
by looking at sell through. If the product is great we sell 3 lot, if not we selt very few.

Qutstanding customer service ‘

This is an indicator of the effectiveness and efficiency of the service experience customers get in our stores and the time it takes us to
resolve a customer guery made to our customer service teams. The former is measured by the number of complaints ! receive - very few -
and the latter hy five micro KPls. Qur approach is to treat all customers fairly and to do our utmost to successfully resolve their issues.
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Key performance indicators continued
Customer engagement
We measure this through our owned content channel warhammer-community.com and reach delivered through our sacial platforms: see

page 10.

Shareholder value
We believe shareholder value is created, primarily, by not destroying it. We have no intention te acquire other companies, nor to dispose

of any of those we own.

We return our surplus cash to gur owners and try to do so in ever increasing amounts.

Graph of shareholder value
Shareholder value for this graph is calculated as the price of our shares at year end plus the dividend per share declared in the year.

Review of the year

Core business
Another record performance frem the global Games Waorkshop team, Well done to you all, thank you.

| arn pleased to report a third year of record constant currency sales, profit, cash generation and returns to shareholders. We enjoy setting
new records at Games Workshop and beating last year's record beating year with an even better year highlights the progress we are
making. I'm sure next year wilt be just as exciting!

Our success has come from remaining true to our long-term strategy. We have once again delivered on our promise to produce and sell the
best fantasy minfatures in the world, engaging and inspiring our fans. In fact, in the year we engaged with more customers than ever
before. We cantinue to work hard, have seme fun and make the Warhammer Hobby ever better,

Breaking records for three years in a row sets the bar higher and higher and so, to be realistic, | will continue to ymake no promises that we
will continue to grow, That said, | do not see anythning significant that will get in the way. We will continue to deliver our operational plan,
facing any challenges head on. Our strang culture, built on teamwork and collaboration, continues to give ourselves the best chance of
success. Games Workshap is the best fantasy miniatures company in the warld and the whale team are very proud of that. We are doing
everything we c¢an to ensure we remain the best, forever.

Media and entertainment

We have spent a considerable amaunt of time and money over the |ast 30 years developing some of the world's best stories and characters
setin our Warhammer universes. Qver the last few years we have been exploring how we develop this as digital content particularly in
animation and TV. This month, July 2019, we took a major step into this industry and announced that we had signed a development
agreement with a script writer, show runner and production company to bring one {we have many more) of our famaus steries and
characters in our Warhammer 40,000 universe to TV. in this case, 2 story based on one of our most popular Black Library novels, Eisenharn.
With this agreement, Warhammer on screens both large and small is ever closer to being a reality. To say we are excited would be an
understatement! And while it's still early days, we think this is a step in the right direction.
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Media and entertainment continued .

'n addition to this exciting venture, we have also finished development and begun production on an animated series, Angels of Death. This
puts our fan favourites, the Space Marines, front and centre. It’s set to be a dark, moody tale that showcases the grimdark of our
Warhammer 40,000 IP. We're still explaring distribution methods, and it might weli be that Angels of Death launches on our own

Warhammer TV.

We are eager to learn aboust the new ‘space’, particularly with regards praduction and distribution. Whilst our short term goal is ta
understand how the entertainment and media industry warks (it appears samewhat complex and expensive), longer term we believe we
can closer integrate our media efforts within our business. We are skilled storytellers who understand our IP better than anyone else. To
ensure we make the most of that fact, we’ve formed the Warhammer Story Forge, a group of creatives who are both skilled writers and
Warhammer experts. Together they have been and will continue to develop outlines, seripts and stories for media projects. Their creativity
and passion will ensure we delight fans, deliver amazing Warhammer content to whale new audiences, and protect the integrity of our IP.

We believe this is just the heginning af what will be exciting times for both aur Citadel and Farge Warld miniatures fans, and fans of
Warhammer everywhere.

Update on priarities for 2018/19
in the year, we focused on the fellowing initiatives designed to help us support all of our staff and continually improve their performance:

Staff recruitment, training and development
We have great staff and our ongaing success relies on us developing the talent we have and finding more peogle to join our global team.

Following the successful launch of our global recruitment website and applicant tracking system in April 2018, we added an onboarding
enline service tool in March 2019. We are also making good progress in choosing 3 new e-learning tool for our retail store managers which
will allow us to complement our guarterly retail training with regular updates. in February 2019 we launched a new monthly Games
Workshop Global Communication Forum at which my senior team and 1 regularly update staff representatives on each area of our
business. As we grow it is ever mare important that our staff know how their hard work not enly helps their teams deliver their goals but
also helps me deliver Games Workshop's strategic goals. Our successes are always built an a global team effort.

In tine with cur expectations and cost conscious plan, our headcount has risen from 1,654 to 2,110 aver the last five years. To ensure we
have the right people in the right jobs at the right time, in February 2019 | appainted a global head of people. The team will deliver a steg
change in how we link job specifications, training, core KPIs and staff development to remuneration. All of our staff globally will be offered
the taols they need ta improve their performance as well as the wellbeing support they may need at work. | am committed to ensuring
Games Workshop continues to be a place where we can improve ourselves and our performance. Our continued facus on an individual's
values, behaviour and skills will be integral to these plans.

Initiatives for recruiting new customers and retaining existing customers in the Warhammer Hobby

*  We openad 40 of aur own stares, mostly in our one man store format in North America.

+  We opened 600 more trade accounts in line with our well established terms and conditions, selling independent accounts our best
seliing products and, where appropriate, the extended range.

With the long térm in mind, we have also been working on some new product initiatives and programmes facused ¢n the long term to help
introduce people to the Warhammer Habby:

*  Warhammer Schools Alliance Programme - The Warhammer Alliance packs are for teachers of students between 12 and 18 years old
and are an opportunity for young hobbyists te share thair passion with other like-minded students. The programme was developed in
collaberation with STEM teachers te compiement their approach to learning. Currently we have over 2,300 schaols In the UX, North
America, Austrafia and Asia receiving our schools packs, with mare schools joining every day.

* UK Scouts partnership - Warhammer is an official partner ta the Scauts in the UK. We joinad forces in March 2019 to'sponsor the
maodel maker activity badge. Scouts ali acrass the UK will be able to begin their Warhammer journey via a special activity pack.

+ Duke of Edinburgh’s Award scheme - We're also now very proud to be registered and invalved with the Duke of Edinburgh’s Award
scheme, 3 1K based youth programme.

To further support each of these great schemes, we've set up 2 bespake website. Warhammer-alliance.com will act as a cantent and
resource hub to enable these groups, and others in the future, to get involved and explore the Warhammer Hobby.

*  ‘Warhammer 40,000 Conguest’ - a weekly part-wark magazine, launched in the UK, Spain and Australia with faunches in Germany, Italy
and France later this year. To date we have 14,000 subscribers.

* ‘Space Marine Heroes’ - our push off the frame and push fit miniatures, sold as blind collectibles. Qriginally laurnched in Japan in
September 2017, Series 1 was launched globally in November 2018,

7 Games Workshop Group PLC



STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Update on priorities for 2018/19 continued

Range

We focused an the following initiatives to deliver an impravement in our product offer, our customer service and how we promate our
product range: :

As Warhammer is a hobby it is always our goal to allow our customers ta have as much fun with our Warharmmaer miniatures, paint and
games as they choose. To achieve this over the last few years our range has become ever more exciting, with new miniatures from our two
care systems released every manth. To ensure we have the right product at the right place at the right time, we have been investing in aur
merchandising and logistics team throughout the period. This has enabled us to implement a product category approach and extend our
range planning time haorizan to support more effective praduct launches and ta minimise waste. In August 2018 we implemented a new
farecasting tool which is supporting improvements in customer service and product availability. This tacl will help us to manage our stock
levels better too, a chalienge we have been working to address.

At the heart of our range is our core 1P and the core product lines that support it. We are committed every year to further extending the
Warhammer worlds through great products: it is what we are great at and one of the key things that drives success.

Core systems and manufacturing ond warehousing capacity ]
We focused on the following initiatives to ensure we keep the lights on and have enough capacity to allow us to deliver gur operational
plan:

European ERP

We are in the process of replacing our enterprise resource planning systems {core back office systems} for the UK and European
businesses. Fallowing our move to a maore agile methadology some phases of this complex praject are now live with the remaining phases
planned to go live in 2020.

Design to manufacture

Design studios

We have significantly increased the number of new releases in the ast few years, for our core brands (Warhammer 40,000 and
Warhammer: Age of Sigmar) and our secondary ranges, with the intent of providing customers ever greater breadth and depth in their
hobby. Kill Team provided new ways to collect and play with your Warhammer 40,000 miniatures, exciting both new and existing hobbyists
alike and Soul Wars, the Warhammer: Age of Sigmar launch, kick-started a year of great new miniatures.

Following the successful introduction of Blood Bow! {2017) and Necromunda {2018}, this year we launched two additional secondary offers
- Adeptus Titanicus, giant war machines from our Warhammer 40,000 universe, and Middle-earth Strategy Battie Game, covering both the
Hobbit and Lord of the Rings films and books. Both exceeded our expectations.

We remain focused on delivering great value and constantly balance the cost of designing our new releases with the sales they generate.
Studic payroll costs have increased by £1.2 million to £8.1 million; as a percentage of Group revenue they remain at 3.1%.

Manufacturing

Phase 1 of our new factory went live in December 2018, It looks end smells very clean and it has quickly become @ great place to work. The
design to manufacturing team is warking an a solid plan to optimise productian efficiencies and fully utilise the facility. Phase 2, scheduled
te complete in the Autumn of 2019, will deliver an expanded tool room and new R&D capabilities. The total capital cost of this new facility
including the purchase of the land will be approximately £14 million.

This manufacturing investment doubled the number of plastic injection moulding machines we have available and was supported by us
significantly increasing cur average production staffing levels from 143 to 198 at our HQ site in Nottingham.

Praduction payroll costs remain a Key area of facus. During the year they increased by £1.6 million to €7.5 million; as a percentage of
Group revanue they have increased by 0.2% to 2.9%. We expect this percentage to stay at similar levels in the year ahead.

Warehousing
in November 2018 we recruited a new group logistics manager who, with the support of their team, is now implemeanting an operational
plan to upgrade our main warehouse facilities.

North America

We have been at the facility in Memphis, Tenneassee for over 16 years and following a thorough review decided to stay at this location. In
January 2019 we agreed with the landlord to extend cur lease and they have agreed to extend the footprint of the facility from 100k sq ft
to 150k sg ft. We are investing ¢, £5 milfion in new warehousing fixtures and fittings and technolegy. This project started in May 2019 and
ts due for completion in 2020.
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Update on priarities for 2018/19 continued
Warehousing continued
UK

We have been at our own warehousing facility at Nottingham for the tast 14 years which we have now cutgrown. We will be moving to a
purpose built rented facility less than 11 miles from our HQ and will be investing ¢. £5 million in new warehouse fixtures and fittings and
technology. This project will start in the Autumn of 2013. The current warehouse at our HQ will became our component warehouse, saving

on third party costs.

Logistics costs continue to be an area of focus. Total warehousing costs have increased by £2.7 million to £9.5 mitlion, as a percentage of
Group revenue they have increased from 3.1% to 3.7%. We would expect this percentage ta rise to ¢. 5% at similar sales {evels following

the investments above.

Digital asset management {DAM)

DAM is a business process for organising, storing and retrieving digital assets, e.g. phatos, artwork, videos, and other multimedia content.
This investment will ensure we can sleep at night knowing that we can easily archive, preserve, locate and retrieve any assets based on the
IP that we own. From those generated by gur licensing partners in their computer games to our own marketing content and product
designs. The project started in January 2019 and the software and infrastructure are now live.

Sates

Sales by segment
Restated Restated
52 weeksta 53 weeksto 52 weeksto 53 weeks tc
2iune 2019 3 June 2018 2 June 2019 3 June 2018
Constant Constant Actual Actual
currency currency rates rates
Trade £120.6m £94.4m £121.5m £94.4m
Retail £87.6m £82.0m £87.8m £82.0m
Online £47.1m £44.9m £47.3m £44.9m
Total sales £255.3m £221.3m £256.6m £221.3m

2019 2018
% of total % of total
sales sales
47% 43%
34% 37%
19% 2C%

pPrior period amounts have been restated following the retrospective adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’,

Reported sales grew by 16% to £256.6 million for the year. Gn a constant currency basis, sales were up by 15% from £221.23 million to

£255.3 million.

Sales by channel

34% (2018: 37%) of sajes were made through our own stores, 47% (2018: 43%) of sales were to independent retailers and 19% (2018: 20%)

were online.
Retail
Store openings and closures during the year:
Number of Number of
Number of Number of one man ane man
stores at stores at stores at stores at
_ 3June 2018  Opened Closed 2June 2019 2lune 2019 3 June 2018
UK 144 1 ) 140 100 104
North America 134 20 1 153 140 119
Continental Europe i48 7 4 151 108 103
Australia 48 4 2 50 41 39
Asia 15 8 - 23 21 14
489 40 12 517 410 EV]

We opened 40 new stores in the year including 8 relocatad stores (shown within both the opened and closed store numbers above}. These
new stores generated £3.0 million of profitabie sales. Our main focus for store openings in the year ahead will be North America and
Germany. We will continue to focus on improving our existing stere performance.

Retail sales grew by 7% in the year (7% at constant currency), helped by additional growth from 28 net new stores and our visitor centre
delivering 9% growth. We continue to fine tune our skilis-based training for all of our store managers at our retail workshops.

Trade

Sales increased by 29% during the year {28% at constant currency). We delivered growth in every major country we sell aur products in
thanks to the hard work of our telesales teams in Memphis, Nottingham and Sydney. Sales to trade accounts which seil primarily online

continue to perform well.

Online

Sales grew by 5% (5% at constant currency). We are committed ta continuaus investment in aur online shopping experience and it is a key

area of operational focus in the year ahead.
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Asia

Ching

Sales grew by 67% in the year, We continue 1o be patient, adopting our proven channel strategy in this region. We successfully opened our
first store in the south of China, a multi man stare in Shenzhen. This adds to the other successful 5 stores based in Shanghai. The product
range is increasingly available in Mandarin.

To complement our traditional channel strategy, in February 2019 we launched a "Warhammer’ online stare an one of China's e-commerce
platforms. We are selling a limited range of items, mainly ‘getting started’ product and some hobby supplies.

Rest of Asia

sales grew profitzbly by 23% in the year. This was driven by 22% sales growth in Japan where we now have 8 retail stores and have
doubled the number of independent stores, partially thanks to the visibility and promotion of products like ‘Space Marine Heroes', and the
help of a few local partners.

Marketing
As ever, when we say marketing at Games Workshop, we mean engaging, informing and inspiring our global community.

We continue to be custaomer focused and our customers have never been more engaged - reading and interacting with more Warhammer
content, more often than ever before. Warhammer-community.com, the cornerstone of our online marketing, had over 114 million page
views in the period, nearly double that of the previous year. This is from aver 6 million users, up 1 million from the same period last vear. In
the year, we also expanded our social media toolkit, using targeted content to re-engage cur audience. Early indicators show a geod return
an spend, giving us a promising way to deliver great content to lapsed and new customers alike.

As well as supporting Warhammer 40,000 and Warhammer: Age of Sigmar with daily content, the team has focused on providing better
support for new customers, developing a series of instructiona! How To Play videas. These have been a great success, with metrics up over
100% on the previous iterations of such videos. Once again, the team has also made space to innovate and play, experimenting with new,
engaging content types, such as a live action trailer for Warcry, and a series of ‘movie spoofs’ to launch the Citadel Colour Contrast paint
range. As a result, official Warhammer video content was viewed over 50 million times across our ¢hannels in the year.

Gross margin
Gross margin declined in the year in line with our expectations (2019: 67.5%; 2018: 71.0%). This was as a direct result of sales mix of new
and existing product - 38% of sales from new releases and 62% of sales from existing product - as well as channel mix changes.

Costs

Costs have increased by £11.1 million in the year as a result of investments for the long term: £4.1 million in our store opening programme
which has partially helped us to deliver organic sales growth by expanding into new geographic locations, and £2.6 million additional spend
on our operations, support and marketing teams. As a direct result of our significant sales and profit growth, we rewarded all of our staff
with a £1,500 discretianary payment in addition to a £1,000 profit share payment each (total cost £5.5 million; 2018: £4.8 million). We also
honoured our commitment to pay 20% of any sales increase to our retail store managers {total cost £1.0 millian; 2018: £2.9 million) who
achieved sales growth whilst maintaining costs braadly in-line with fast year. Variable costs directly attributable te sales volume growth
increased by £1.6 million in the year.

Ogperating profit
Operating profit by segment

Restated Restated

52weeksta GS3weeksto 52 weeksto 53 weeks to

2 fune 2019 3June 2018 Z June 2019 3 June 2018

Constant Constant Actual Actual

currency currency rates rates

Trade £44.2m £32.9m £43.7m £32.9m
Retail £10.5m £7.2m £10.4m £7.2m
Online £29.3m £27.9m £23.2m £27.9m
Product and supply £18.8m £23.9m £18.5m £239m
Royalties {net of costs) £10.4m £8.8m £10.6m £8.8m
Other costs £(31.4}m £(26.4)m £{31.2)m £{26.4)m
Total operating profit £81.8m £74.3m £81.2m £743m

Prior pericd amounts have been restated following the retrospective adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’.
Core business operating profit (operating profit before royalty income)

Core business operating profit grew by £5.1 million te £69.8 miliion {2018: £64.7 miilion), On a constant currency basis, care business
operating profit increased by £6.Q million to £70.7 millian. This was driven by impravements acrass all of aur three main channels.
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Raoyalty income

Royalty income increased in the year by £1.7 million to £11.4 million. This was due to the strong performances of Total War: Warhammer |l
and Warhammer: Vermintide 2. Reported income is split as follows: 87% PC and console games, 7% mobile and 6% other. Royalty income
recognises guarantee income in full at the inception of the contract, following the retrospective adoption of IFRS 15.

Cash generation

Ouring the year, the Group’s core operating activities generated £69.0 million of cash after tax gayments (2018: £66 .0 million). The Group
also received cash of £9.1 million in respect of royalties in the year (2018: £8.9 million). After purchases of tangible and intangible assets
and product develgpment costs of £22.5 million (2018: £21.5 million}, dividends of £50.3 million {2018: £38.7 million), group profit share
and discretionary payments to employees aof £5.5 million {2018: £4.8 million}, proceeds from the issue of ordinary share capital relating t¢
the sharesave scheme of £0.7 million {2018: £1.0 million} and net interest and foreign exchange and gains of £0.4 million (2018: losses of
£0.1 million) there were net funds at the year end of £29.4 million (2018: £28.5 million).

Dividends
We foliowed our principie of returning truly surplus cash to sharehotders. Dividends of £50.3 million {2018: £40.6 million) were declared
during the year.

Return on capital*

A key long term measure for our performance has been return on capital. During the year our return on capital fell from 120% to 100%.
This was driven by 3n increase in in average capital employed, offset by an increase in operating profit before royalty income.

Capital employed

Average capital employed increased by £16.1 million te £70.0 million. The book value of tangible and intangible assets increased by £8.5
millian, inventories increased by £5.6 million and trade and other receivables increased by £4.3 million whilst current liabilities increased
by £1.4 million.

Investments in assets
This is what we have been speading your money on:

2019 2018

£miilion Emillion

Shop fits for new and existing stores 1.7 1.4
Production equipment and tooling 7.2 8.8
Computer equipment and software 3.7 25
Site 3.6 33
Total capital additiens 16.2 16.1

In 2018/19 we invested £1.7 million in shop fits: 40 new stores and 12 refurbishments and in addition we have rebranded 129 stares to
Warhammer. We also invested £2.1 million in tooling, milling and injection moulding and paint machines and a further £3.8 million an
moulding tools. The investment in computer software relates mainly to the work on the new ERP system. The investment in site includes
£2.5 millian building costs to expand our praduction capacity in Nottingham. Capital investment is expected to he higher than depreciation
and amortisation over the next few years as we increase our logistics capacity and upgrade our core back office systems in Nottingham.

Inventories .

Inventories have increased by £4.0 million to meet the increased sales demand. Stock provision remains at 1.9% of sales. We continue to
offer a broad range of price points and we have maintained our palicy of aiming to only increase the prices of our new releases to reflect
the necessary investment in our product quality. The annual impact on the average price of product salesis 3%.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables increased by £4.3 million, which includes an increase of £3.1m in respect of royalty income receivable
following the adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’.

*We use average capital emplayed to take accaunt of the significant fluctuation in warking capital which accurs as the business builds both
inventories and trade receivables in the pre-Christmas trading period. Return is defined as operating profit before royalty income, and the

average capital employed is adjusted by deducting assets and adding back liabilities in respect of cash, barrowings, exceptianal provisions,

taxation, deferred royalty income and dividends.
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Trade and other payables .
Trade and other payables reduced by £1.1 million due to a reduction in trade payables at the period end.

Taxation
The effective tax rate for the year was 19.0% {2018; 19.9%). While we continue to expect a rate abave that for a business with activities
solely in the UK due to higher overseas rates, this has been offset by increased profit in stock provisions at those same rates.

Treasury
The objective of our treasury operation is the cast effective management of financial risk. The relationship with the Group’s bank is
managed centrally. It operates within a range of board approved policies. No transactions of a speculative nature are permitted.

Funding and liquidity risk
The Graup pays for its operations entirely from our cash flow.

Interest rate risk
Net interest receivable for the year {exctuding unwinding of discounts on provisions) was £97,000 (2018: net interest payable £49,000).

Foreign exchange
Qur big currency expeosures are the eurg and US dollar:

eurs US dallar
2Q19 2018 2019 2018
Year end rate used for the balance sheet 1.13 1.14 1.26 1.33
Average rate used for earnings 1.14 1.13 1.30 1.35

The net impact in the year of these exchange rate fluctuations on our operating profit was a decrease of £06.8 million {2018: decrease of
£1.5 million).

Gender diversity, greenhouse gases, social, community and human rights, and employees
We repart on these topics in the directors’ report on pages 17 to 19.

Non-financial information statement

As highlighted in the business model section earlier in the annual repert, we are a relatively complex business. With this is mind, we aim to
cornply with the Non-Financial Reporting requirements contained in sections 414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006 and the below
table and infarmation it refers to is intended to help stakeholders understand aur position an key non-financial matters and how we are
addressing our reporting regquirements. This is an area of focus for us going forwards.

Key policies and standards which govern Where this is referenced in this annual
Reporting requirement our approach and controls report
Employees Employee statement Page 18

Attendance and absence policies including
career hreak, maternity, paterpity and
shared parental leave

Disciplinary, grievance and appeals policy
Socia! media policy

Heaith and safety paolicy

Anti-corruption and bribery Anti-bribery policy Page 27
Anti-slavery policy Page 19
Insider dealing policy
Confidentiality palicy
Whistleblowing policy

Humar rights Safeguarding palicy
Data protection policy
Dignity at work palicy
Equal opportunities policy

Environmental matters Environmental statement Page 17
Product safety policy

Business model Pages 4 and 5

Non-financiat KPls ‘ Pages 5and6

Description of principal risks Page 14

12 Games Workshap Group PLC



Priorities for 2015/2¢

Core business .
As part of our overall strategy, four key initiatives will be prioritised in 2019/20. They are hroadly the same as iast year. These are dasigned
to deliver further sales growth whilst maintaining our operating profit margin, and continuing to surprise and delight cur customers.

Firstly, staff recruitment and training.

We are continuing with our investment in our people. Our global people manager is in the process of strengthening her team in four key
areas: staff recruitment, training, wellbeing and performance & pay. We are working on delivering a robust workfarce plan te ensure we
can meet our global needs today and in the near future.

Secondly, we will continue te be customer focused, better engaging our existing ones and reaching whole new audiences with the
Warhammer Hobby:

* QOpen more of our own stores, mostly in our one man store format, in North America and in Germany. My goal is ta cpen 25 stores
(net)in 2019/20. :

*  We will continue to open mare independent retailer zccounts. This will be based on our well established terms and conditions, selling
Independent accounts aur best selling products and, where appropriate, the extended range. The goal is to selt all of our products
where our customers want to shop. We will continue the project of updating our online service tools to ensure all of our third party
accounts get autrageous customer service and support.

+ Continue to improve our digital marketing and customer engagement,

Thirdly, we will continue to focus on our range.

We will continue ta review our care product range to ensure we have the right products in the right place at tha right time. We have
significantly increased the number of new releases supporting our care systems in the last few years and this will continue in 2019/20. We
will continue to pilot some new product formats in new markets and look to broaden our brand awareness in Asia.

Finally, in our core business, as discussed above, with a fair wind and a bit of luck we wili he celebrating the caompletion of some of the core
IT systems and our manufacturing and warehouse capacity projects,

Non core

Media ond entertoinment

This is very early days for this new team. They will be working with lawyers and a small group of advisors with our new media partners on
seripts that will eventually bring the worlds of Warhammer to TV and animation. In addition, we have formed the Warhammer Story Forge,
ateam of internal creative and trusted writers who will script and develop a series of animation projects over the coming year.

Licensing

Qur licensing team will continue with the good progress they have made over the last few years. We believe our IP to be among the bestin
the world and we want to work with big, value-adding partners. Our licensing tearn will focus on signing some new AAA deals far
Warhammer on mobile platforms.
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

Risks and uncertainties

The board has overall respensibility for ensuring risk is appropriately managed across the Group. The top seven risks to the Group are
reviewad at each board meeting. The risks are rated as to their business impact and their likelihood of occurring. In addition, the Group has
a disaster recovery plan to ensure ongoing operations are maintained in all circumstances. The principal risks identified in 2018/19 are
discussed below. These risks are not intended to be an extensive analysis of all risks that may arise but more importantly are the ones
which we believe could cause business interruption in the year ahead.

. ERP change - as discussed above we are changing aur care ERP system in the UK, This is a camplicated project with the risk of
widespread business disruption if it is not implemented well. It is being implemented and managed by a strong internal project team
and specialist ERP software consultants.

. Recruitment - to always have a world class team to suppart our business. The risk is we compromise and recruit only for skills and not
an the personal qualities we need new members of the global team to demonstrate to ensure we deliver our long-term goals. The
Games Workshop recruitment process aims to ensure we recruit for attitude as well as skills, to help mitigate this risk. This end to
end process starts with writing a new job specification highlighting the personal qualities needed in the job as well as the skills,
through to a rebust induction process which will help them be successful in their job, Our new recruitment and onboarding systems
also help in ensuring the recruitment process is efficient and effective for both the new recruit and the recruiting manager,

. Supply chain - to deliver a seamless supply of products to our customers. The risk is that there are unnecessary delays or expeanse.
Canstant review by the executive directors and the rest of the board of our praduction and warehousing capacity ensures that issues
are dealt with in an appropriate timescale. This is particularly relevant given the recent growth in sales.

. Range management - as discussed above we are reviewing cur range to ensure that we are explaring ali opportunities. The risk is that
we don’t fully explait all the epportunities that are available ta us ar that we have too much stock. Qur approach to managing this
risk is discussed on page 8.

. innovation - to surprise and delight our customers with ever better new miniatures and related products. The risk is that we become
complacent. Qur design studios are responsible for creating great new miniatures and games. The sales of new products are reviewed
and assessed by the executive team and the design studios to ensure that we continue to deliver on our promise tc make the kest
miniatures in the world.

» IP exploitation - to optimise our Warhammer brands fully, in addition to being innovative in our core business. The risks are that we
do harm to the core business or that we don’t take this opportunity seriously. With the appointment of our new non-executive
director, Kate Marsh, the board will manage the risk going forward under the remit of a separate committee supporting the senior
team on these new oppertunities.

+ Distractions - this is anything else that gets in the way of us delivering cur geals.

Games Werkshop refies upon the continued availability and integrity of its IT systems. Qur business critical systems are monitered and
disaster recovery plans are in place and reviewed to ensure they remain up to date. The security of our systems is reviewed on an ongoing
basis with software updates applied and equipment updated as required.

We da not consider that we have material solvency or liquidity risks.

Following the UK Government invoking Article 50 of the Treaty of Lisbon, notifying the European Council of its intention to withdraw from
the EUJ, Games Workshop has reviewed the impact that this may have on the Group. The key risks for Games Workshop relate to the
movemeant of goods fraom the UK to the EU acrass all sales channe's as well as the recruitment and retention of EU nationals working in the
UK. These risks have been assessed and plans have been put in place to help mitigate the possible impact of these changes depending on
the nature of the UK's withdrawa! from tha EU.

In my apinion the greatest risk is the same cne that we repeat each year, namely, management. 5o long as we have the right people in the
right jabs we will be fine. In the past, we have had far better success when we recruit fram within for our seniar rales. Praoblems will arise if
the board allows egos and private agendas to rule. | will do my utmost to ensure that this does not happen.

summary
Anamazing set of results -the best year in Games Workshop's histery, 5o far, You can once again see from these results that our business

and the Warhammer Habby are in good shape.

The board and | continue to helieve that the prospeacts for the business are good.

<o B L

Kevin Rauntree
CEQ
25 July 2018
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their annual report together with the audited consclidated financial statements and independent auditars’ report for
the year ended 2 June 2019.

General information

Games Workshop Group PLC (the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries (together the ‘Group’ or ‘Games Workshop’) designs and manufactures
miniature figures and games and distributes these through its own netwark of retail stores, independent retailers and anline via the glohal
web stores. The Graup nhas manufacturing activities in the UK and sells mainly in Eurape, North America and Asia Pacific.

The Company is a public listed company, incorparated and domiciied in the United Kingdom. The address of its registered office is Willow
Road, Lenton, Nottingham, NG7 ZWS§, United Kingdom. The Company’s ordinary share capital is listed on the London Stack Exchange.

Dividends
Dividends of 155 pence per share [2018: 126 pence) were declared during the year {£50.3 million; 2018: £40.6 million).

Directors
The present directors of the Company are listed on page 38. All of the directors were members of the board throughout the year and up to
the date of signing the financial statements with the exception of K E Marsh, who was appointed on 24 July 2019.

As the Company is part of the FTSE 250 index all directors will now be subject ta annual re-election. In relation to the non-executive
directors, the chairman has confirmed that, following formal performance evaluation, the performance of £ O'Donnell and j R A Brewis
continues to be effective and they continue to demenstrate commitment to their roles as non-executive directors, including commitment
of the necessary time ta board and committee meetings and other duties. N J Donaldson is cansidered by the board te be independent of
the Group, as set out in the carporate governance report. The non-executive directors have formally evaluated the performance of N |
Donaldson as non-executive chairman and consider him to be effective in his role.

Directors' interests

The interests of the directors in the shares of the Company, together with details of share options granted to the directors, are disclosed in
the remuneration report on page 35. None of the directors had a material interest in any contract of significance to which the Company, ar
any of its subsidiaries, was a party during tha year,

Directars’ indemnities
The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors, as permitted by section 234 of the
Campanies Act 2006, which were in force during the year and up to 29 July 2019,

Infarmation on executive directors

K'D Rountree (age 48), CEG. Kevin joined Games Warkshop in March 1998 as assistant group accountant. He then had various management
roles within Games Workshop, including head of sales for the Other Activities division {including Black Library, licensing and Sabertooth
Games). Kevin was appointed CFO in October 2008. During the year ended 28 May 2011, he took ar the responsibility of managing the
Group's service centres globally. To refiect this, his title was changed to chief operating officer from chiaf financial officer. He became chief
exacutiva on 1lanuary 2015. He qualified as a chartered management accountant in August 2001, Prior to joining Games Workshop, Kevin
was the management accountant at | Barbour & Sans Limited and trained at Price Waterhouse.

R F Tengue {age 48}, group finance director and company secretary, Rachel joined Games Workshop in September 1996 as group tax
manager. She then had various accouating roles within Games Workshop and was appointed company secretary in October 2008. She has
also managed the legal and compliance functions within Games Workshop since November 2012. She was appointed group finance
director in January 2015, Rachel qualified as a chartered accountant in 1995 and as a chartered tax adviser in 1996 having trained with
Arthur Andersen.

Information on non-executive directors

N i Donaldson (age 63}, Nick Donaldson was appointed to the board on 18 April 2002 and became non-executive chairman in September
2017. A barrister by profession, Nick is & partner of Londan Bridge Capital Partners LLP. Nick was, until 2003, head of corporate finance at
Arbuthnot Securities Limited and previously held senior investment banking pasitions at Rohert W Baird Limited and at Credit Lyonnais
Securities. He is non-executive chairman of DP Paland PLC and a director of The Fulham Shore pic.

CJ Myatt {age 75). Chris Myatt is the senfor independent director, joining the board on 18 April 1996. He is a chartered management
accountant and was formerly managing directar of a division of Tarmac PLC, chairman and non-executive director of a number of
manufacturing companies and treasurer of Keele University.

E O’Donnell {zge 48). Elaine O’Donnell was appointed ta the board on 28 November 2013, A chartered accountant by profession, Elaine

was previously a corporate finance partner with EY, She is also a non-executive director of Findel ple, On the 8each Group plc and the
Merseyside Special investment Fund and chairman of Alliance Fund Managers.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

Infermation on non-executive directors continued

J R A Brewis {age 52). John Brewis was appointed to the board on 20 June 2018. John has over 25 years’ experience in high volume
manufacturing businesses and since 2004 has had various roles within Trinity Mirror Printing, including commercial director. lohn is
currently managing director of Reach Printing Services, a division of Reach ple, formerly Trinity Mirror plec.

K E Marsh (age 57). Kate Marsh was appointed to the board on 24 July 2019. Kate has over 30 years’ experience in digital and media
businesses. She is currently non-executive director of INM PLC and Elstree Film Studios Limited. She is a senior media executive and has
built and managed significant businesses across Europe. Her most recent role was as Executive Vice President for Western Europe
International Networks at Sany Pictures Television. She previously held various roles at Sky, GroupM and the BRC.

Independent auditars

As at 29 July 2018, so far as each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware and each
director has taken alf steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information. '

Share capital, share rights and other information

As at 29 July 2019, the Company’s authorised share capital was £2,100,000 divided into 42,000,000 ordinzry shares of Sp each nominal
value {‘ordinary shares'). On 29 July 2013 there were 32,502,716 (2018: 32,350,318) ordinary shares in issue. These ordinary shares are
listed on the London Stock Exchange, All ordinary shares rank equally with respect to voting rights and the right to receive dividends.
Shares acquired through the Company’s share schemes rank pari passu with the shares inissue and have no special rights. The hoiders of
ordinary shares are entitled to receive the Company’s annual report, to attend and speak at general meetings of the Comgpany, te appeint
proxies and ta exercise voting rights. There are no restrictions on transfer or limitations on the holding of any class of share and no
requirements for prior approval of any transfers. The directors may refuse to register a transfer of shares if there is a failure to comply with
certain requirements of the Company’s articles of association. None of the shares carry any special rights with regard to contro! of the
Company.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of associations, each share {other than those held in treasury) entitles the holder 1o one vote 2t
general meetings of the Company on votes taken on a poll. On a show of hands at a meeting, every member present in persen or by one or
more proxies and entitled to vote has one vate. Unless the directors decide otherwise, if a shareholder is given notice that he has failed to
provide information required in relation to any shares pursuant to a notice under section 793 of the Companies Act 2006, that member will
be unable to vote on those shares both in a general meeting and at a meeting of the shareholders of that class. If such shareholder holds
more than 0.25% of the issued shares of a class {excluding treasury shares) and is in default of a section 733 notice, the directors may also
state in the notice that: {i) the payment of any dividend shall be withheld; and {ii) that there can be no transfer of the shares held by such
shareholder.

Subject to the provision of law, the Company may by ordinary resclution declare a dividend ta be paid to the members according to their
respective rights and interest, but no dividend may exceed the amount recommended by the directors, The directors may also declare and
pay interim dividends. Subject to shareholder approval, the directors may pay dividends by issuing shares credited as fully paid up in lieu of
cash dividends. If dividends remain unclaimed for 12 years they are forfeited and revert to the Company.

The rules about the appointment and replacement of directors are contained in the Company’s articles of association. The Company’s
articles of association state that a director may be appointed by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders or by the directors, either to fill
avacancy or as an addition to the existing board but so that the total number of directors dees not exceed the maximum number of
directors allowed pursuant ta the Company's articles of association. The Company’s articles of association do not currently specify a
maximum number of directars, The Company may by ordinary resolution remove a director fram the board of directors.

The Company’s articles of assaciation also state that the board of directors is responsible for the management of the business of the
Company and in doing 50 may exercise all the powers of the Company subject to the provision of relevant legisiation and the
Company's constitutional dacumentation. The nowers of the directars set out in the Company's articles of association include those in
relation to the issue and buy-back of shares. As at 2 June 20189, the Company had an unexpired authority te repurchase shares up to a
maximum of 3,235,031 shares. During the year no shares were purchased in the market for cancellation.

Changes to the articles of association must be approved by the shareholders in accordance with the legislation in force froam time ta time.

The Company does nat have agreements with any director or emplayee that would provide compensation for loss of office ar employment
resulting from a takeover, except that the provisicns of the Campany’s sharesave scheme may cause options to be exercised in a takegver,

Constructive use of the AGM

The chairmen of the audit and risk committee, and the remuneration and normination committees will be available to answer questions at
the AGM. Separate resolutions are proposed for substantially separate issues at the meeting and the chairman of the Company will dedare
the number of proxy votes received both for and against each resolution.

Corporate governance
The Company's statement on corporate governance is included in the corporate governance report on pages 21 to 24.
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Sustainability
The topirs betow outline what we have achiaved in the area ta date. As we adjust to the growth of our business, these wil! be key areas of

focus for us going forward.

Environment

Renewable energy

Since November 2018, our primary manufacturing, warehousing and head office site in Lenton, Nottingham has been powered using
renewable energy and we are contracted to use renewable energy at this site until October 2020. The <olar panels installed in 2017 at our
Lenton site operated at 115% of expected renewable energy generation last year, producing over 410 mwh, which equates to 8% of the
annual electricity required to power the HQ site. Also, as part of the development of our new Leenside factory and offices, we will be
installing four charging points for staff travelling to work using electric vehicles. [n addition, we plan to install additional efectric vehicle
charging points in our Warhammer World car park in early 2020.

Energy saving -

Our energy saving steering group continues to identify, assess, implement and review energy reduction opportunities across the Graup. in
the {ast 12 months we have undergane a full air conditioning system replacement in the main building of our Lenton site, with the
installation to be completed across the rest of the site in the next 12 months. The new system will be significantly more energy efficient
than the old system and will alfow 2 reduction in the use of gas fired radiators. At the same time, we continue to install replacement PIR
and LED lighting systems, to continue to reduce energy consumption acrass our HQ site. In line with the Energy Savings Opportunity
Scherne (ESOS} Regulations 2014, Games Workshop has appointed an approved ESOS lead assessor to undertake an assessment of our
energy usage and identify epportunities tc further reduce our energy consumption, with all such opportunities being reviewed and, where
practicable, implemented.

Greenhouse gases
Under the Greenhouse Gas Emissions {Directors’ Reports) Regulations 2013, enforced under the Companies Act 2006, we have addressed
our Greenhause Gas {‘GHG’') reporting requirements.

We have used the methodology described in the Environmental Reporting Guidelines from DEFRA to identify our GHG inventory of Scope 1
{direct} and Scope 2 (indirect) global CO2 emissions. We have considered the six main GHGs and reportin CO2 equivalent. Our data
includes all manufacturing, warehousing, office and retail sites controlled globally by Games Workshop for the year to 2 fune 2019 All
calculations have used the 2019 DEFRA conversion factors.

« Scope 1 covers activities owned ar controlled by Games Warkshaop that release emissions straight into the atmosphere - gas boilers,
vehicle aperation, air conditianing.

+ Scope 2 covers activities that are not owned or controlled by Games Workshap but which create emissions as a result of our activities -
electricity consumption.

2018/1% 2017/18
Scope 1 —tonneas CO2e 814 © 787
Scope 2 —tannes CO2e 4,426 4,239
Total tonnes CO2e 5,240 5,026
Tonnes CO2e per sq metre 0.074Q n0.a71
Tonnes CO2e per £GQQ of revenue 0.020 0.023

During the next 12 months, wa will be completing an audit and calculation of Games Warkshop's carbon footprint. This review is to be
followed by 2 carbon reduction programme to deliver emissions reductions through business change initiatives across the Group.

Transport and trave!
We continue to promote the liftshare, cycle to work, tram2work and Robin Hood Network schemes in respect of staff travelling to, and
from, our HQ site in Nottingham. We now have 317 employees signed up to the liftshare scheme.

We continue to have a high ratio of eyclists {over 10% of employees) at aur HQ site, with 207 bikes being purchased through the ¢ycle ta
wark scheme since Games Workshop became a member of the scheme. We currently have 247 active users of Nottingham's tram2work
and Rohin Hoad Network travel schemes.

Product packaging

During the next 12 months, we will be reviewing Games Warkshep's product packaging strategy. Tnis review will be followed by a
programme to deliver packaging reductions and sustainable packaging solutians across our full range of products,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

Customers

Product safety
Cur product safety and integrity team work closely with our design, manufacturing and sourcing teams to ensure that all products sold by

Games Workshop are developed, produced and purchased with safety in mind, sc that they are safe for use by the intended customer.
Since February 2019, we have been reviewing and enhancing our quality management contrals within the plastic injection moulding and
packing pracesses at our manufacturing operations in Lentan. The process and control improvements identified during this review are
being implemented between June and October 2019, to be fallowed by an ongoing process of review and improvement.

In the past year we have had no product recalls.

Health and safety
Qur customers visit our retail stores to learn about the Warhammer Hobby aor chat with like-minded people - it is essential that our stares

are a safe place to visit for everyone. Our store managers know that the health and safety of their customers is paramount. Qver the past
12 months, significant progress has been made with the implementation of local retail health and safety guides. Gur store managers are
required to maintain their stores in accordance with the strict principles set out within the guides, and must submit regular audit reports in
respect of the expected standards. This programme is in the process of being rolled cut across all territories.

Employees

Staff onboarding

In March 2019, we implemented a new onboarding experience for 21l new racruits joining Games Workshop. This allaws us to welcame all

new starters from the moment they accept a job offer from Games Workshap through to completion of their first year of employment. We
are now are in a much better place to give new staff everything they need, when they need it. We believe the employee experience is key,

and getting the simple things right makes 2 great impression.

Staff communications

itis the Group's palicy to consult an and discuss with employees, matters likely to affect employees’ interests. Information on matters of
concern to employees is given through reports which seek to achieve a commaon awareness on the part of all employees of the financial
and economic factors affecting the Group's performance. In addition, in February 2019 we launched a new global communications forum
to suppart clear and open communication between senior management and staff, This forum is intended to represent all departments, in
all territories around the world, with the aim of motivating employees to give their best for Games Workshop, whilst contributing towards
their own sense of personal well-being and achievement. We held elections for farum representatives in the UK in February 2019, and in
North America and Europe in May 2019. We are due to be holding elections for representatives in Australia and Asia later this year, by
which time the global forum will give representation for all Games Woarkshop staff worldwide.

Staff wellbeing

Gur staff are important to us and as we grow and recruit more people into our business, we nead to ensure we have a rochust wetlbeing
programme. To that end we are currently in the process of recruiting our first wellbeing programme manager, who will be responsible for
identifying the wellbeing needs of our staff and implementing wellbeing programmes and initfatives to look after ali of our employees

acrass the Group.

Apprenticeships and training

Games Warkshogp recruits for fit and trains for skills. With this in mind, we have formed partnerships with trusted apprenticeship schemes
in the UK. These support, complement and enhance our staff recruitment, retention and development, providing us with ‘home-grown’
employees with the right fit, knowladge and skills for our niche business. We currently have apprentices working in and being recruited for
further positions across our manufacturing, engineering and web store teams.

Development

CQur employees are constantly looking for ways to improve. We strive to create a culture and environment that encourages everyone to
achieve their potential, Qur people development team supports this, using worksheps and development sessions to help staff understand
that what they are like influences their behaviour, and how this behaviour impacts other peogle, their job and the business as a whole.
QOver the past 12 manths, our people development team has run mare than 75 open and team development workshops across the Group

involving over 300 employees.

Living wage
The Group maintains the UK living wzge for all UK employees, regardless of age.

Sharesave

The Group operates an employee sharesave scheme as a means of further encouraging the involvement of employees in the Group's
performance.
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Employees continued

Diversity

The board befieves that business can benefit from a wide range of perspectives and backgrounds. The Company’s aim as regards
compositiaon of the board is that it should have a balance of attitudes and knowledge to enable each director and the board as a whole to
discharge their duties effectively. Consideration is given to diversity and gender across ail employees, including the board and senior
management, with a view to appointing the best placed individual for each new job. The Company does not, however, consider that
diversity can be best achieved by estzahlishing specific quotas and targets.

As at the end of the financial year:

2019 2018
Female Male Total Female Male Tatal
The board 2 4 6 2 3 5
Senior management 1 10 11 2 a 10
Total workforce " 434 1,676 2,110 377 1,530 1,907

Disability

The Group's policy is to cansider, for recruitment, disabled warkers for thaose vacancies that they are able to fill. All reasonable adjustments
will be made for disabled workers, and alf necessary assistance with training is provided. Arrangements are made, wherever possible, for
retraining employees who become disabled, to enable them to perform work identified as appropriate to their aptitudes and abilities.

Health and safety
Protecting the health and safety of all cur employees is a principle we hold dearly.

Over the past 12 months we have rolled out 10SH aceredited safety training for all our front line managers and safety representatives
across manufacturing @nd warehousing in Lenton, with this resulting in significant improvements in our underlying safety culture and
understanding of risk acrass the business. To camplement this training we have developed our safety audit programme across
manufacturing and warehousing in Lenton, ensuring that senior managers regularly and routinely inspect all operational areas.

A suite of new reporting metrics, launched in June 2019, wilt allow senior managers across the business greater insight into the risk profile
and safety culture of their areas of responsibility, allowing for smarter allocation of resources, ensuring we focus on the tight areas and
processes. The next 12 months will see accredited safety training and safety audit programmes rolled out across cur Memphis and Sydney
warehousing sites.

During the year there were 5 injuries reported under the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013 in
the UK (2017/18: 4) and 4 recordable cases reported to the US Occupational Safety and Heaith Administration {(2017/18: nii}.

Suppliers

Ethical sourcing

We are committed to implementing effective controls to ensure good ethical seurcing standards throughaut our supply chain. This
commitment is driven from the CEQ and the board throughout the entire Group and a commitment is expected of all who work for, or wha

supply into, Games Workshaop.

In March 2019 Games Workshop became a buyer member of an ethical sourcing audit programme. This programme requires supgliers to
uphold ethical sourcing standards to support the rights and wellbeing of workers. We have requested ali suppliers of (i} products for re-sale
by Games Workshop, and (i) components and materials used within products being sold by Games Warkshop, to become supplier
members of the programme by September 2018, and to be fully audited and certified by March 2028. Supplier members wili then be
subject to an annual auditing programme to ensure that ethical sourcing standards throughout the Games Waorkshop supply chain are
maintained,

We have also commenced a review of ethical sourcing standards across our wider supplier base, beyond suppliers of products, components
and materials for re-sale. This review will be completed during the next 12 months.

Anti-slavery

Modern slavery is a crime and a violation of fundamental human rights. Games Waorkshep has a zero-tolerance approach to modern slavery
and is committed to acting ethically to implement and enfarce effective systems and controls to ensure modern slavery is not taking place
within Games Workshoep or its supply chains. This commitment is driven from the CEQ and the board throughout the entire Group and a
cammitment is expected of all who work for, or who supply into, Games Workshop.

Donations
Games Workshop does not make any denations to charitias or political parties. Notwithstanding this, our employees continue to carry cut
fund raising events for their chosen charities, and we are fully supportive of the work our employees do.

Research and development .
The Group does not undertake research activities. Development activities relate to the davelopment of new preduct lines. The charge to
the income statement for the year in respect of development activities is detafled in note 9 to the financial statements.,
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Future developments
The future developments for the Group are discussed in the strategic repert on pages 3 to 14.

Financial risks
The financfal risks facing the Group are set out in note 21 to these financial statements.

Going concern and viability statement

Assessment of prospects

The Group operates a strategic planning process which includes monthly reviews of business and financial performance, regular financia!
projections and an annual planning review for the next financial year. Medium term projections (for pericds ending two years and three
years hence) are reviewed taking into account known strategy changes in that time frame, The three year plan considers the Graup's
growth potential, cash flows and key financial ratios. This strategic planning process is managed centrally, led by the finance director.

Assessment of viahility
The strategic plan reflects the directors’ cautious view of passible outcomes. It is not used to set targets for performance.

The viability assessment has been conducted for a period of three years which is in line with the Group’s strategic planning period as
discussed above. The board believes that this time frame is the most agpropriate as it is difficult to make meaningful projections beyond
three years. This assessment of viability has been made with reference to the Group's current position and future prospects, its strategy
and its principal risks and the mitigation in place to manage them. In making the viability assessment the principal risks facing the business
have been considered and a number of severe but plausible scenarios assessed for the impact of these on the medium term projections.
The scenarios tested include:

s  Asignificant interruption in the supply chain impacting the manufacturing operations
¢ Amaterial fluctuation of the sterling exchange rate

These possible scenarias are the same 25 the prior year with the exception of the exclusion of the scenario that there is a failure in the
existing ERP system before the new ERP system goes live. During the period, significant phases of the new ERP system went live and we
have a robust plan for the implementation of the remaining phases. The board therefare considers that this scanario is no longer a severe
but plausible one and se has removed this from this year’s viability assessment.

Viability staterment )
Based on the board's assessment as described above and the Group's strong balance sheet , the directors confirm that they have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to cantinue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the three year
periad ending 29 May 2022.

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial staterments. For this
reason they continue ta adopt the gaing concern basis in preparing the Group’s and Company's financial statements.

By order of the board

R F Tangue
Group finance
29 July 2018

ector and company secretary
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

An introduction from our non-executive chairman .

t have pleasure in intraducing the corporate governance repert. In this section of our annual repart we have set out our approach to
governance and provided further information on how the board and its committees operate. We recognise that applying sound
governance pringiples is essential to the successful running of the Group.

As you will see below, during the year, in line with best practice, we have made some changes to our board committees. We now have
three principal ceommittees: audit and risk, remuneration and nomination. Their composition and their areas of focus are described below.

Regarding board compaosition, we are delighted to welcome Kate Marsh to the board as our newest non-executive director, following on
from John Brewis’ appointment as non-executive director in june 2018. Chris Myatt steps down from the board at our 2019 AGM and we
thank him for his contribution. Chris has been our senicr independent director and chairman of the audit committee since 1996. Elaine
O’Donnell will succeed Chris in these roles, and John Brewis will succeed Elaine as chairman of the remuneration committee. We will
resume our search far ane further non-executive director in 2019/20.

We also set out below details of our board effectiveness review, which for the first time in some years was facilitated by an external thirg
party. Succession and board and committee effectiveness continue to be important cansiderations for us.

This annual report covers the period to 2 June 2018 and so we are, therefore, reporting against the 2016 version of the Corporate
Governance Code rather than the 2018 version of the Code (‘New Code’}) which applies to financial periads starting on 1 January 2018.
Althaugh the New Code is not yet in force, we have already implemented some of its recommendations, most notably the introduction
earlier this year of aur employee communication forum. We believe that this forum has been well received by Games Workshop
employees. The Board has considered the impact of the New Code and will address those areas requiring further attention aver the coming
year; we will report on any changes to the Company’s governance framewark in next year's annual report.

At our AGM this year, as usual, all of our continuing directors will be seeking appointment or reappointment {as the case may be). We look
forward to meeting shareholders at the AGM.

0\) S ¢

'- A
Nick
Mon-executive chaitfnan

The Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Autherity require listed companies to disclose, in relation to the UK Carparate Governance Code
2016 {the ‘Code’), haw they have applied its principles and whether they have complied with its provisions throughout the accounting
period. The UK Corporate Governance Code can be found at www frc.org.uk.

This statement, together with the remuneration report on pages 28 to 36, explains how the Company has applied the principles and
complied with the provisions set out in the Code.

The board operates thraugh monthly meetings which senior executives attend on a regular basis. The board is responsible for teading and
controlling the Group and monitering executive management. It considers all issues relating to strategy, management and future direction
of the Campany. The board is also responsible for assessing and manitaring culture within the Group, This is achieved through regular visits
and meetings by the non-executive directors with a variety of employees across the Group as well as attendance at the Games Workshop
Global Communication Forum meetings. The board has a schedule of matters reserved to it for decision that is regularly updated; these
include decisians &n the Group's strategy, financial plans, major capitat expenditure and dividend paolicy. The board is updated about
operational decisions thraugh the monthly meetings. It meets at least nine times a year. In 2018/19 the board had ten scheduled meetings,
each of which was attended by all members of the board. Terms of reference for the board committees (as set out below) are available on
the Company’s website,

The Company maintains an appropriate tevel of director and officer liability insurance cover and has agreed to indemnify the directors
against certain liabilities as discussed in the directors’ report on page 15.

A review of the performance of the Group's main business activities is included in the strategic review. The board presents this review,
together with the directors’ repert on pages 15 to 20, to give 2 fair, balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's position and
praspects.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued

The board
The board comprises the non-executive chairman, the CEQ, the group finance director and currently four further non-executive directors. It

is chaired by the chairman, Nick Donaldson.

The senior independent director is Chris Myatt until the 2019 AGM, at which time Chris Myatt will retire from the board and Elaine
O’Donnell will take over these responsibilities. The principal responsihitities of this role include:

+ to be a sounding board for the chairman;

s to be available to shareholders if they have concerns which contact through the normal channels of the chairman, the CEQ
or the group finance director has failed to resolve, or for which such contact is not appropriate; and

s ta ensure that the perfarmance evaluation of the chairman is conducted effectively.

The five non-executive directors have a breadth of successful commercial and professional experience and are considered by the board to
be independent of the Group. The Code states that the board should identify each non-executive director it considers to be independent,
and the Code then lists various circumstances which may appear relevant to its determination. This includes {amongst others) if the non-

executive director has served on the beard for more than nine years.

At Games Workshop the board has had to confront one of these circumstances as the nan-executive chairman, Nick Donaldson, 2nd ene of
the non-executive directars, Chris Myatt have served as non-executive directors far more than nine years.

In making this assessment as to independence, the board has taken into account the personal attributes of each director in relation to the
current and future needs of the board. In the opinion of the board, indepandence (like judgement and wisdam) is not an attribute which
can be measured by reference ta a checklist. It is rather an attribute which the members of the beard can cbserve being demonstrated by
a director in his actions and interactions with other members of the board as it faces the various issues which are placed before it.
Independence is the absence of complacency, lazy thinking and acceptance cof the status quo.

Regarding the specific Code circumstance of service of cver nine years, the board’s position is as follows:

The ‘nine year rule’ is a helpful guide to the risk of directors becoming ‘stale’. The board considers this risk periodically, but has not yet
found it tc be an issue at Games Workshop. If it did, it would react accordingly. At present the board feels that the requirement for
members of the board to have a real understanding of, and empathy with, the Games Workshop Hobby ta be a point in favour of retaining
the experience which the board currentty has.

Based upon its assessment, which focuses on each director's attitude towards making his best contribution to the progress of the
Company, the board considers that Nick Donaldson and Chris Myatt are independent.

All directors bring an independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy, performance, resources (including key apoointments) and
standards of conduct. The board considers that it has been supplied with sufficient timely and accurate information to enable it to
discharge its duties.

All members of the board have access to the services and advice of the company secretary. There is a procedure for directors to take
independent prafessional advice at the Company's expense where relevant to the execution of their duties. The executive directors attach
great importance to ensuring that the non-executive directors are provided with accurate, timely and clear information on the Group. In
addition, the nan-executive directors are actively encouraged to update continually their knowledge of and familiarity with the Group and
the issues affecting it, so 33 to enable them to fulfil effectively their roles on both the beard and its committees.

in 2018/19 the board undertock an externaily facilitated review of its performance with Independent Audit Limited, wha do not have any
ather connection with the Company, in addition to the board’s already established pracess for the ongaing assessmeant of its own
performance and that of its committees. Independent Audit Limited worked with the chairman and company secretary to tailor a
questionnaire covering topics including board composition, dynamics, strategic focus, oversight of risk management, meeting
arrangements, board papers and the committees. This was completed by all board directors. Independent Audit Limited praduced a report
with suggestions for impravement, which was circulated to the whole board, and attended a beard meeting to discuss the report. The
results of this review were pasitive in how the board and committees operate and the quality of discussions during the respective
meetings. The review suggested, amongst other things, that the board considers as to whether any specific skills gap exists within the
current board and, if so, whether that could be filled by new non-executive directars both now and over the next few years.

The board has also campleted an internal assessment to review the board’'s performance against those objectives and this will continue in
2019/20. The results of both reviews will inform the board’s development agenda on a regular basis.

Board cornmittees

The board has three principal cammitteas, all with written terms of reference which are published on the Company’s website and which
are available on application to the company secretary at the Company’s registered office. The company secretary serves as secretary to all
three committees. The chairmen of the audit and risk committee, the remuneration cammittee and the nomination committee will be
available to answer questians at the Company’s AGM.
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Audit and risk committee

The audit and risk cammittee currently comprises the three non-executive directors under the chairmanship of Chris Myatt who is a
chartered management acecunt. Nick Donaldsan is not a member of this committee. Chris Myatt will be replaced as chairman by Elaine
O’Donnell on Chris Myatt’s retirement from the board at tha 2019 AGM. Elzine O'0onnell is a chartered accountant and has significant
relevant financial and accounting knowledge and experience. The audit and risk committee’s terms of reference include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements and other announcements relating to the Company's financial performance including reviewing
significant financial reporting judgements, internal control and risk assessment and keeping under review the scope, results and
effectiveness of the external and internal audits and the independence of the Company’s external auditors,

Audit and risk committee report
A more detailed deseription of the activities of the audit and risk committee and the internal control and risk management systems that are
in place are discussed in the audit and risk cammittee report on pages 25 to 27.

Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee comprises the non-executive directors and is chaired by Elaine O'Donnell. After the AGM, the chairman of
this committee will be John Brewis, who has served on the remuneration committee for over one year. Nick Donaldson is not 2 member of
the committee. The remuneration committee normally meets at least twice a year and is responsibie far making recommendations to the
board on remuneration policy for all executive directors and senior management {including determining specific remuneration packages,
terms of employment and performance incentive arrangements). The procedures and guidelines used by the remuneration committee in
determining remuneration are outlined in the separate remuneration report. The remuneration and nominration committee held three
mieetings in the year, which were attended by all members of the committee. The committee meets without the executive directors at
least annually to appraise the executive directors’ performance.

Remuneration report
The Campany’s-palicy an executive remuneration and details of the executive directors’ salaries, profit share and pensions, and fees far the
non-executive directors are set out in the board report on remuneration on pages 28 to 36.

Nomination committee .

The new nomination committee comprises the non-executive directors and is chaired by Nick Donaldson and is responsible for nominating,
for approval by the board, candidates for appointment to the board. The committee regularly reviews the structure, size and composition
{including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the board and gives consideration to succession planning for directors and
other senior executives, taking Into account the challenges and opportunities facing the Company and the skills and expertise needed on
the board in the future. it also encourages the development of greater diversity within senior and middle management levels of the
Company's businesses.

Appointments to the board

On 24 July 2019, Kate Marsh was appointed to the board as a non-executive director, effective from that date. Following the Company’s
recruitment procedures, the board determined that Kate Marsh would be a suitable and vatuable addition to the board, Open advertising
and an external search company (Nurole) were used in respect of this appointment. Nurale has no other connection with the Campany.

Newly appointed directors are given training apprepriate to the tevel of their previous experience. Non-executive directors meet regularly
with members of the executive and other staff within the Group. in addition, site visits ensure that the non-executive directors gain first-
hand experience of developments within the Group.

Any director appointed during the year is required, under the provisions of the Company’s articles of association, to retire and seek
election by the shareholders at the next AGM.

Stakeholder engagement
The Company understands the importance of engaging with our stakeholders. We have addressed this as foliows:

Sharehoiders

We maintain an open dialogue with our shareholders and consider the AGM to be the primary platform of communicatien between the
Company and its shareholders. On a cantinuing basis the Company encourages two way communication with its institutional and private
shareholders and responds promptly to queries received verbally, in writing or directly through its investor relations website
investor.games-workshop.com. In addition to the annual report and half yearly report, the CEO and group finance director are available to
meet and do meet with shareholders and potentizl shareholders to discuss any guestion they may have. Any issues arising at such
meetings are reported to and considered by the board. We try to ensure our shareholders have a good understanding of our strategy,
business model and culture.

Cur people

We rely on the hard work and creativity of employees to make sure we drive the creation of value in the long term. We engage with our
employees through formal and infarmal meetings, including the Games Workshop Global Communications Forum {GWGCF) as well as local
newsletters and works councils. The matters discussed at the GWGCF in particular are circulated ta the board and discussed at board
meetings to ensure we understand the views and concerns of employees. Nick Danaldson is due to attend his first GWGCF meeting in
Cctober 2019 to help increase board engagement with employees,
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Stakeholder engagement continued

Customers

We engage with our custgmers through our retazil stores, our social media sites, through warhammer-cammunity.com and at bath Games
Workshop and third party gaming events. This allows two way communication with our customers. Members of the board and senior
management visit retail stores as well as independent retailers to understand their views.

Suppliers

The integrity of our supply chain is an essential part of ensuring we design and make great products. Although as a verticaily integrated
company we are in control of large parts of the design and manufacturing process, it is important that our suppliers share the same
standards and ethics as we do. We have strong parinerships with our key suppliers that have been built up over a number of years to
ensure we get the best materials. As discussed earlier in this annual report, these suppliers have recently been asked to join an ethical
sourcing audit programme to ensure our supply chain is ethical and secure.

Conflicts of interests

The Company'’s articles of assaciation take account of certain provisions of the Companies Act 2006 relating to directors’ conflicts of
interests. These provisions permit the board to consider, and if thought fit, to authorise situations where a director has an interest that
conflicts, or may possibly conflict, with the interests of the Company. The board has adopted procedures for the approval of such confiicts.
The board’'s powers to authorise canflicts are operating effectively and the procedures are being followed.

Substantial shareholdings
The following interests in 3% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as at 2 June 2019 and 29 july 2019 have been disclosed to
the Company:

No. of shares %
JP Morgan Asset Management (UK) Limited 2,819,538 8.7
Standard Life Aberdeen pic 2,355,660 7.2
Schroders plc 2,286,776 7.0
BlackRock Inc. 1,632,705 5.0
T H F Kirby 1,553,345 48
Sandford Deland Asset Management 1,125,000 3.5
The Vanguard Group inc. 1,077,620 3.3
Woaorking Capital Management Pte Limited 996,270 31

The Company has not been notified of any other substantial shareholdings.

Statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
The Company has camplied with all of the provisiens set out in the Code,

By order of the bpard

Non-executive chairman
29 July 2019
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

The report details the role of the audit and risk committee and the wark it has undertaken during the year as well as its meeting in July
2019 when this annual report and financial statements were approved.

Committee membership

The audit and risk committee comprises the three non-executive directars under the chairmanship of Chris Myatt who is a chartered
management account. Nick Donaldson is not a member of this committee. Chris Myatt will be replaced as chairman by Elzine O’Donnell on
Chris Myatt’s retirement from the board at the 2019 AGM. Efaine O’Donnel! is a chartered accountant and has sigrificant relevant financial
and accounting knowledge and experience. The board considers that both Chris Myatt and Eiaine O'Qonnell have recent refevant finzncial
experience by virtue of their professional quslifications and their previous executive roles. Members of the committee can also
demonstrate a breadth of experience across the manufacturing and retail sector through their current and previous roles.

Significant issues considered by the audit and risk committee

The committee had four meetings during the year which were attended by all members of the committee. It has an agenda linked to the
events in the Group's financial calendar. The external auditars met with the committee without management being present and the
¢hairman and members of the committee have direct contact with the audit partner as required. During the year the committee:

s reviewed the half-year and full-year results

 received and considered, as part of the review of the annual financial statements, reports from the external auditars in respect of the
auditors’ audit plan for the year and the results of the annual audit. These reports included the scope of the annual audit, the approach
adopted by the auditors to address and conclude upan key estimates and other key audit areas, the basis on which the auditors assess
materiality, the terms of engagement for the auditors and an ongoing assessment of the impact of future accounting developments on
the Group

= considered whether the annual report is fair, balanced and understandable. In doing so, the committee reviewed and discussed with
management the ¢content and appropriateness of the information included within the 2019 annual report. This provided the committee
with the supporting detail ta ensure that it was in a position to report to the board that the 2019 annual report taken as a whole was
fair, balanced and understandable. This was on the basis that the business description, business model and strategy agreed with its
own understanding of the Graup, and the balance in the reporting of performance reflected both pasitive and negative issues and
reflected the Group’s activities during the year

* considered the effectiveness and independence of the external auditors and made a recommendation to the board regarding the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as external auditors

* reviewed the Company’s policy on non-zudit fees and ensured appropriate safeguards are in place

* considered and agreed the internal audit work programrne and received regular reports on the key issues arising from its
implementation during the year

« approved the recruitment of a dedicated group internal auditor to enhance and improve the internal audit wark gaing forwards

» reviewed reports on the key business risks, including a review of the internal control processes used to identify, moniter and mitigate
the prircipal risks and uncertainties.

The committee received, reviewed and chalienged reports from management and the external auditors setting out the significant issues in
refation to the 2019 annual report and made their owr assessment. These issues were discussed and challenged with management during
the year. They were also discussed with the auditars at the time the committee reviewed and agreed the auditors’ Group audit plan and at
the conclusion of the audit of the financial statements. The issues that were discussed were:

= inventory valuation: the committee considered and agreed that the inventory provisions were appropriate given the robust farmulaic
process applied and the level of risk.

« Capitalisation of product devetopment costs: the committee reviewed the accounting for and disclosure of development costs. The
committee concluded that the accounting and disclosure was appropriate but that management should continue to monitar this
closely in the context of praduct release cycles and underlying sales trends.

= The impact of the adaption of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ on the financial statements for the 2019/20 financial year.

The committee calls upon the external auditars, the internal auditors and the executive directors to attend formal meetings as required.
These meetings are held at least three times a year. The external and internal auditors are given the cpportunity to raise any matters or
concerns they may have in the absence of the executive directors at separate meetings with the audit and risk committea or its chairman.

Auditor independence :
The committee reviews the independence of the externa! auditors by assessing the arrangements far the day to day management of the

audit relationship as well as reviewing the auditors’ report which describes their procedures for identifying and reporting conflicts of
interest. To maintain the auditars’ independence, the committee has also established the policy that the primary role of the external
auditors is to perform services directly related to their audit respansibilities. Any non-audit services are approved by the committee. Non-
audit fees paid to the auditors amounted to £14,000 in the year {5% of the total amount paid to the auditors in the year); this relates to the
verification of retail turnaver certificates for certain stares and advice in relation to executive remuneration palicy. The Group uses other
advisers for taxation advice and other services. The audit fees are disclosed in note 9.

25 Games Workshop Group PLC



AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT continued

Auditor independence continued

The audit and risk committee considers the re-appointment of the external auditors each year, as well as remuneration and other terms of
engagement. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have acted as external auditors of the Group since the 2005 year end. Andrew Lyon is the audit
partner. He was appointed during 2014/15, will rotate after five years and so 2018/19 is his final year. In 2014/15 the external audit was
put out to a competitive tender and the committee agreed that PricewaterhouseCoopers should remain as auditors, There are no
contractual obligations whick restrict the choice of external auditors, We can confirm that the Company has complied with The Statutory
Audit Services for Large Companies Market Investigation {Mandatory Use of the Competitive Tender Processes and Audit Committee
Respaonsibilities) Order 2014 during the financial year.

Internal control

The directors recognise that they have overall responsibility for ensuring that the Group maintains a sound system of internal cantrof to
safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets, and for reviewing its effectiveness. The system is designed to manage risks
that may prevent the Group from achieving its business objectives, rather than to eliminate these risks. Hawever, even the most effective
system can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or foss.

The directors have established an ongoing process for identifying, evaiuating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group, which
has been in place from the start of the year until the date of 2pproval of this report. This process is regularly reviewed by the board
throughout the year.

The effectiveness of the Group's system of internal cantrol is continuously reviewed by the hoard. The review cavers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management. The monitoring of contral procedures is achieved through
regular review by the group finance director, reporting to the board. This review process considers whether significant risks have been
identified, evaluated and controlled and whether any significant weaknesses are promptly remedied and indicate a need for more
gxtensive monitaring. Regular reporting by senior management ensures that, as far as possible, the controls and safeguards are being
operated zppropriately. This process is considered by the audit and risk committee, alongside the external auditors’ and internal auditors’
reports.

The Group has continued its programmae of internal audit reviews during the year. The audit and risk committee agrees an annual internal
audit plan, focusing on business specific issues. Actions agreed by management, in response to recommendations made, are followed up.

The beard, with advice from the audit and risk committee, has completed its annual review of the system of internal control and is satisfied
that it has acted appropriately and in accordance with that guidance. During the course of its review of the system of internal control, the
board has not identified nor been advised of any failings or weaknesses which it has determined to be significant. Therefare a confirmation
in respect of necessary actions is not considered appropriate.

Internal audit

The committee has formalised 2 programme with activities conducted by an internal team that is independent of the area under review or
by an external party, decided on a case by case basis. In either case the review is conducted on behalf of the committee and reports back
to them. Reports were discussed with the cammittee and a remediation plan agreed by management t¢ improve controls where
appropriate,

Following a review of the effectiveness of the internat audit functicn, the committee can confirm that the guality, experience and expartise
of the function is appropriate. in addition, the recruitment of a dedicated interna! auditor was approved by the committee in May 2019 te
ensure that additional focus is given to the internal gudit work going forwards.

Risk management
The committae is respensible for assessing the scope and effectiveness of the systems established by management to identify, assess,
manage and monitor financial and non-financial risks.

The Group carried out a formal risk review in May 2019. following completion of this review in 2019/20, work wilt be undertaken to
measure the impact of each risk so as to better understand the mitigating actions necessary. The internal audit pregramme can then be
aligned more clasely with these principal risks.

Process for preparing consolidated financial statements
The Group has established intarnal contro! and risk management systems in relation to the process for preparing the consohdated financial
statements, The key features of these systems are:

e Management regularly monitors and considers developments in accounting standards and best practice in financial reporting and
reflects developmants in the financial statements where appropriate. The external auditor also keeps the committee apprised of these
developments,

« The committee and the board review the draft financial statements, The committee receives reports from management and the
external auditor on significant judgements, changes in accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and any other appropriate
changes to the financial statements.

» The full year financial statements are subject to external audit and the half year financial statements are reviewed by the external
auditor,
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gribery and corruption

Bribery and corrupt practices are never tolerated in the pursuit of Games Workshop's business objectives or geals, or within business
relaticnships, or the actions of its employees and associated parties. This commitment is driven from the chief executive and the board
throughout the entire Group and a commitment is expected of all who work with the Group and who act on our behalf or are employed or
engaged in any capacity by us. The Games Workshop anti-bribery policy reflects Games Workshop's zero tolerance approach to acts of

bribery.

Whistleblowing )
The audit and risk committee is responsible far the review of the Campany’s procedures for responding to the allegations of
whistleblowers and the arrangements by which staff may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible financial reporting irregularities. If
an empioyee does not feel comfortable reporting any potential, suspected, attempted or actual breaches of company policy, they can
report such activity to Games Workshop's chairman of the audit and risk committee. This whistleblowing procedure is communicated to
staff within relevant emplayee policies. Games Warkshap endeavours to protect thase wha make disclasures of wrangdoing. Any reports
made in good faith wiil be dealt with in confidence (ta the extent possible), and the reporting employee shall not be discriminated against
as a result of their actions.

oty 39 o7

€1 Myatt
Audit and risk committee chairman
29 July 2019
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REMUNERATION REPORT

introduction

The remuneration report for the year ended 2 June 2019 has been prepared on behalf of the board by the remuneration committee in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, as amended, and meets the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financiat Conduct
Authority and the UK Corporate Governance Code,

This remuneration repart is split into two parts:

e Thedirectors’ remuneration palicy, which sets out the Company’s policy on directors’ remuneration, which took effect from the 2018
annual geperal meeting {"AGM’} and the key factors which were taken into account in setting the policy. The directors’ remuneration
policy and a one off banus payment to the executive directors of 100% of 2017/18 salary were approved by over 90% of shareholders
who submitted a proxy vote at the 2018 AGM. The remuneration palicy will be subject to a binding shareholder vote at least every
three years.

+ The annual report on remuneration, which sets out payments made to executive directors and non-executive directors and details the
relationship between company performance and remuneration for the 2018/19 financial year. The 2018/19 report will ba subject to an
advisory vote at the 2019 AGM.

2018/19 - a year in review

it was always going to be chalienging to follow the truly outstanding financia) performance in 2017/18. However, in 2018/19 the Company
has grown both sales and operating profit once again. Despite the challenging economic environment globally, the business has maintained
momentum and for the first time sales have exceeded £250 million, surpassing a record sales performance in 2017/18 of £220 miliion. We
are defighted that the operational changes introduced by the executive directars have cantinued to deliver groawth and to strengthen the
business.

Once again, sales have grown in all channels in both underlying sales and new releases. Qperating profit has increased by 9% in 2018/19
compared to 2017/18. This financial performance is even more impressive when we consider the significant capital investment projects
undertaken in 2018/13. We will be investing £14 miliion in total in buying the site, building and equipping 2 new manufacturing facility, in
premises next door to our current factory in Nottingham. This has had the impact of not only of significantly increasing our capacity but
also of significantly protecting and de-risking our business. We continued to invest significantly in the major ERP implementation project, 2
complete overhaul of our IT systems and operations, and we are pleased to have successfully delivered further phases of this project in
2018/19. Given our continued growth, we have alse started major capital projects in both North America and in the UK in order to ensure
that we can continue to deliver evar more efficiently to our customers and retail stores globally from a warehousing and iogistics
perspective and to future-proof these operations. As a result of these major capital projects return on capital, as anticipated, has fallen
from 120% to 100%. in April 2018 the Company was promoted to FTSE 250 status. This status has been maintainad throughaout 2018/19.
Dividends paid to shareholders in 2018/19 were also at an all-time high of £1.55 per share.

Especially given the inevitable executive distraction and business disruption of these major capital projects and the challengingly high
comparative figures, this outstanding delivery of growth in sales, operating profits, dividends and share price in 2018/19is deemed by the
committee to be truty exceptional, beyond what was expected.

In the light of this performance, the committee has supported the executive directors’ proposal to make a discretionary payment to all
employees of £1,500 per employee {in addition to the maximum profit share approved at the 2018 AGM of £1,000 per employee). This has
cost the company £5.5 million in total far both payments.

Note: The executive directors were paid the maximum profit share of £1,000, in line with the policy approved at the 2018 AGM.
K D Rountree also approached the committee to support a discretionary bonus of 20% of 2018/19 salary, payable in cash, to all of his direct
report senior managers wha have contributed to this outstanding performance. The committee was delighted ta support this proposal.

In 2018, in consuitation with shareholders, the committee undertook to articulate exceptional performance and to appropriately exercise
its discretion in making an Exceptional Bonus Award in future years.

For tha financial and operational performance reasons outlined above, the committee agreed that the threshold for ‘exceptional
performance’ had been reached again in 2018/19. Therefare, the cammittee deemed it appropriate to exercise the discretion granted at
the 2018 AGM to award the executive directors an Exceptional Bonus Award, In line with K D Rountree’s recommendation for his direct
report team, the committee recommended and approved the payment of an Exceptional Bonus Award of 20% of 2018/19 salary to each of
the executive directors, judging this tc be a balanced and fair reward for this strong overall team performance, |n accordance with the
approved policy, the executive directors are required to tnvest 50% af any bonus award (net of tax) into shares in the Company, and to
hold these shares for a minimum of two years.

In additian, the committee approved a 3% pay rise for all employees fram 1 June 2019 in order to continue to align all johs to market rates
and to reward this truly great group-wide performance.
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2018/19 - a year in review continued .

The committee believes that the executive remuneration benchmarking exercise conducted by PwC last year remains current. As a result it
does not propose any base safary rise for the executive directors. Therefore the annual saiary of K D Rountree wiil remain at £525,000 and
the annual salary of R F Tongue will remain at £300,000.

2019/20 — the year ahead
The board takes seriously its responsibilities in applying the principles of UK corporate governance and properly incentivising executive
directars, and senior management generally, forms part of this area of facus,

The committee and the board’s philosophy to pay and reward remains the same, believing that the main focus of the remuneration policy
should be on the fixed elemants of pay. The committee has discussed and is very mindful of the risks of incentive plans and complex bonus
schemes driving shart-term and/or individual behaviours which are not in the interests of the Company and its shareho!ders. As such, the
committee has no intention of introducing any form of [dnger term incentives at this time. However, the committee undertakes to seek to
be always appropriately informed on market dynamics and to listen to the Company’s key stakehoiders, in order to ensure that the
executive directors are appropriately rewarded, retained and motivated.

As a board we have high perfermance expectations and the executive directors are even more demanding of themselves and of their
teams. Consequently, due to the stretching nature of underlying performance targets far the Exceptional Bonus Award that the policy
allows, the committee daes not necessarily anticipate that awards will be made under the Exceptional Bonus Award each and every year.

On consulting with shareholders in 2018, the commitree promised to exercise its discretion appropriately and to explain the circumstances
where an Exceptional Bonus Award is pzaid. The committee reaffirms that promise far the year ahead.

Looking to the future, the committee will continue to monitor the consistency of the remuneration policy across the Group with a view to
ensuring that an appropriate reward structure exists to recognise and retain our key executives, As part of this process the committee will
continue to keep under review and discuss regularly the effectiveness of the Company’s approach te remuneration and its component

parts.

= OE@M&N\

E O'Donnell
Chairman
Remuneration committee

Policy report
This part of the report sets out the directors’ remuneration pelicy, which applies for three years from the date of 2018 AGM when it was
approved by shareholders.

The aim of the Group’s remuneration policy is ta reward fairly and to attract, motivate and retain high quality management. The total size
of the remuneration package for executive directors is judged by comparison with the remuneration packages of similar companies, having
regard to:

* the size of tha company, its turnover, profits and number of peaple emplayad
» the diversity and complaxity of the business

« the geographical spread of the business

+ the growth and expansion profile

The Campany’s non-executive directors are remunerated with fees in line with market rates. They do not receive any pension ar other
benefits, other than the reimbursemant of reasonable expenses, and they do not participate in any bonus or share schemes.
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Ramuneration policy table
The table below summarises each of the ceamponents of the remuneration package for directors of the Company which comprise the
nolicy. The committee may make minor changes to the policy, which do not have a material advantage to the directors, tc aid its operation
or implementation, taking account of the interests of shareholders but without the need to seek shareholder approval.

Component

Purpose and link to
strategy

Operation

Maximum patential value

Performance metrics

Salary

Core element of fixed
remuneration, reflecting
the size and scape of the
role.

Purpose is to recruit and
retain directors of the
calibre required for the
business.

Reviewed annualily and
usually fixed for 12 months
from 1 June. There is no
entitlement to an annual
increase.

Takes into cansideration the
director’s role and attitudes.

Takes into account

prevailing rmarket conditions

and is aligned with staff pay
reviews.

Externally benchmarked hy
independent reruneration
consultants from time ta

time against companies ¢f a
similar size and complexity.

There is no prescribed
maximum annualincrease
in salary.

Salaries are reviewed
taking into consideration
salary increases across the
Group.

Increases out of line with
the workforce are carefully
considered but may be
awarded taking all relevant
factors into account, for
example, increases in
scope and responsibility or
salary falling significantly
below market positioning.

Not applicable, aithough
the individual’s
contribution and overall
performance is ane of the
considerationsin
determining the level of
any salary increase.

Benefits

Ensures the overall
package is competitive.

Purpose is to recruit and
retain directars of the
calibre required for the
business.

Participation in the
sharesave scheme creates
staff alignment with the
Group and promotes a
sense of ownership.

The executive directors
each receive life assurance
cover.

The sharesave schemeis 3
HMRC approved monthly
savings scheme facilitating
the purchase of shares ata
discount.

Where appropriate other
benefits may be offered
including allowances for
relocation and other
expatriate benefits.

Set at a level which the
committee considers
appropriate against the
market and provides a
sufficient level of benefit
based on individual
circumstances.

Sharesave contributions
are as permitted in
accordance with the
relevant tax legislation.

Not apglicable.

Pension

To provide cost effective
retirement benefits.

Participaticnin a group
personal pension scheme.

Up to 7.5% of salary up to
a maximum of £10,000 per
annum. Following the
changes in pension
tapering, any excess
between 7.5% of salary
and £10,000 is paid as
additional salary {net of
employers’ national
insurance).

Not applicable.

Profit share

Rewards perfarmance
against annual targets
linked to core business
operating profit
percentage.

Targets are set annually and
any pay out is determined
by the committee, based on
performance against thase
targets.

All staff participate equaliy
in the scheme.

Awards are payable in cash.

Maximum potential value
is £1,000 per persan per
year,

The financial targetis
based on core business
operating profit
percentage.

Payments range fram nil to
£1,000 dependent on the
level of care business
operating profit
percentage.
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Remuneration policy table continued
Purpose and link to

QOperation

Maximum potential value

Perfarmance metrics

Component strategy
Exceptional bonus  Rewards exceptianal
award perfarmance.

Any pay out is determined
by the committee after the
year end, basad on
perfarmance.

Awards are payable in cash
with 50% of the net amount
required to be invested in
the Company’s shares, with
an expectatian that these
are held for at least two
years.

Maximum potential value
is 1G0% of salary,

The payment is at the
discretion of the
committee based on
exceptional financial and
operational perfarmance
being achieved during the
year. ‘

The committee is of the
apinian that disclasing
detailed performance
targets in advance would
not be in shareholder
interests for reasons of
commercial sensitivity.

Sole element of non-
axecutive director
remuneration set at 2 level
that reflects market
cgnditians,

Non-exegutive
directors’ fees

Changes to the remuneration policy

Fees are reviewed annually
taking into account time
commitment,
responsibilities and fees
paid by comparable
companies,

Additional fees are paid to
the senior independent
directar to reflect additional
responsibilities.

Non-executive directors are
entitled to clzim reasonable
out of pocket expenses in
connection with the
performance of their duties.

Fees are based on the level
of fees paid to non-
executive directars serving
on boards of listed
companies of a similar size
and complexity.

Not applicable.

There are no proposed changes to the salary, henefits, profit share, exceptional bonus or pension elements of remuneration.

Explanation of the performance metrics chosen

The performance measures selected are aligned with tre Company’s strategy and business objectives. The profit share is based on core

business aperating profit percentage.

lustration of application of the policy

The charts below shaw the relative split of remunaration betwean fixed pay (base salary, benefits and pension) and variable pay {profit
share and exceptiona! bonus award) for each executive directar on the basis of minimum remuneration, remuneration receivable for

performance in line with the Company’s expectations and maximum remuneration.
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

tlustration of application of the policy continued

Minirnuarn In line with expectations Maximum

Fixed pay Fixed elements of salary, As per minimum As per minimum
benefits and pension. Salary is at
2 June 2019 and the value of
benefits has been assumed ta be
equivalent to that included in
the single figure remuneration
table on page 33

Profit share Nil Up to £500 per annum £1,000 per annum

Exceptional honus award Nil Nil 100% of salary

pifferences in policy from the wider employee population

The Company aims to provide a remuneration package that is market competitive, complies with any statutory requirements and is applied
fairly and equitably across the wider employee population. Where remuneration is not determined by statutory regulation, the Group
operates the same core principles for the wider employee population as it does for the executive directors, namely:

+ toremunerate people in @ manner that allows for stability of the business and the opportunity for sustainable long-term growth
s toseek toremunerate fairly and consistently for each rale with due regard to the market place and internal consistency

« to apply the profit share equally ta all employees, including the executive directors

» toencourage employees to own shares through the operatian of the sharesave scheme.

As is common practice, the Company has introduced elements of variable pay through an exceptional bonus award which is focused on the
executive directors to ensure that the overall remuneration pelicy remains market competitive.

Remuneration policy for new directors

When setting tha remuneration packagea for a new executive directer, the committee would seek to apply the same principles and
implement the policy framework as set out above. Base salary will be set at a level apprapriate to the role and the experience of the
director heing appointed. Benefits, pension, profit share and the excepticnal bonus award will be in line with the stated palicy. Any buy-out
award, should ane be required, would be limited to the amount of salary that woutd he forgone.

Non-executive director fees will be set at a competitive market level, reflecting the skills, knowledge, experience, respensibitities and time
commitment.

Directars’ service contracts and letters of appointment

Executive Date of contract Unexpired term of cantract Notice period

K D Rountree 25 February 2009 Rolling contract 12 months

R F Tongue 25 March 2015 Rolling contract 12 months
Non-executive Date of appointment Date of last re-election at an AGM Notice period
N J Donaldson 18 April 2002 19 September 2018 & months

C ] Myatt* 18 April 1996 19 September 2018 6 months

E O'Donnell 28 November 2013 19 September 2018 6 months

JR A Brewis 20 June 2018 19 September 2018 5 months

K E Marsh 24 July 2019 - 6 months

*will retire at the 2019 AGM

In accordance with best practice and as set out in the Code, notice periods in new service contracts far executive directars are set at aone
year. Non-executive director appointments are made through letters of appointment for a one year term, subject ta election and re-
election by the Company’s shareholders in accordance with the Company’s articles and the Code. The fetters of appointment may be
inspected at the Company’s registered office.

Policy on payment for loss of office

If an executive director’'s employment is to be terminated, the committee’s policy in respect af the service agreement (in the absence of a
breach of the service agreement by the director) is to agreea a termination payment based an the value of base salary and contractual
pension and other benefits that would have accrued to the director during the contractual notice period. Depending on the particular
circumstances, a director may work the notice period, be placed on garden leave for some or all of the notice period or receive a payment
in lieu of notice in accordance with the service agreement. The committee will consider mitigation to reduce the termination payment to a
leaving directar when appropriate to do so, having regard ta the specific circumstances,

Non-executive directors’ appointments may be terminated without compensation but with six months’ notice.
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External appointments .
The executive directors may each actept one external appeointment with the prior approval of the board, from which any fees may be
retained. At present, neither of the executive directors holds any outside directorship. .

Consideration of employment conditions elsewherg in the Group
The Group aims 1O provide a remuneration package to all employees that is market competitive, complies with any statutory reguirements
and is applied fairly and equitably across the emplayee population, taking into account iocal employment market conditions.

The committee takes into account the general basic salary increase being offered to employees elsewhere in the Group when annually
reviewing the salary increase and remuneration of the executive directors. Employees are not consulted in respect of board remuneration.
The committee also reviews general workforce remuneration and the alignment of incentives with Games Workshop's culture to ensure it
remains appropriate.

Engagement with the workforce in relation to explaining how executive remuneration policies align with the wider company pay policy will
take place through attendance by commitiee members at the Games Warkshap Global Communications Forum meetings.

Consideration of shareholder views

The committee takes into account sharehaolder feedback received on remuneration matters, including comments in refation to the AGM in
addition to any additional comments in correspondence direct with the Company. The committee would seek to engage directly with major
shareholders should any material changes be made to the policy.

Annual report on remuneratian (subject to audit)
The tables below set out in a single figure the total remuneration, including each element, for each person who served as a directar of the

Company during the financial periods ended 3 June 2018 and 2 June 2019.

Year ended 2 une 2019

Exceptional bonus  Exceptional bonus Pension related

Salary/fees Profit share award for 17/18 award for 18/19 benefits Total
) £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
K D Rountree 551 1 410 1G5 10 1,077
R F Tongue 311 1 250 60 10 632
N J Conaldson 140 - - - . - 140
CJ Myaft 60 - - - - 60
E C*'Donnell 52 - - - - 52
J R A Brewis 49 - - ~ - 49
Total 1,163 2 660 165 20 2,010

53 weeks ended 3 June 2018

Pension related

Salary/fees Profit share benefits Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

K D Rountree 428 - 10 438
R F Tongue 259 - 10 268
T H F Kirby* 71 - - 71
N i Donaldson 101 - - 101
C 1 Myatt 60 . - 60
E Q'Donnell 52 - - 52
Total 871 - 20 991

* T H F Kirby retired fram the baard at the 2017 AGM.

The figures in the single figure tables abave are derived as follows:

Salary/fees — the amount of salary/fees received in the year including any additional salary due in excess of the pension tapering limits.
Profit share — the amount of profit share earned in the year. A payment of £250 each was paid to K D Rountree and R F Tongue in 2017/18
and £1,000 each was paid In 2018/19.

Exceptional bonus award — 100% of salary was paid in respect of performance in 2017/18, which being subject to approval at the 2018
AGM was not recorded in the prior period. 20% of salary was accrued in relation to performance in 2018/19.

Pension related benefits — the cash value of pension contributions received by the executive directors. This includes the Campany’s
contribution into the group personal pension scheme.

No¢ taxable benefits were paid.

Following his retirement from the board, T H F Kirby provided consultancy at a cost of £171,000 in 2017/18. This contract is now
terminated.

During 2018/19 and 2017/18 there were no payments made for loss of office. There were also no payments made to past directors in
either the current or grior year apart from the consultancy fees paid to T H F Kirby described above.
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

CEOQ remuneration
Total remuneration

Year CEOQ £000 % of maximum profit share paid ***
2018 K D Rountree 1,077 160
2018 K D Rountree 438 100
2017 ¥ D Rountree 401 100
2016 K D Rountree 402 -
2015 K D Rountree 163 -
2015 TH F Kirby* 291 -
2014 THF Kirby : 511 -
2013 T H F Kirby 132 54
2013 M N Wells** 774 -
2012 M N Wells 319 48
2011 M N Wells 303 -
2010 M N Wells 282 100

*T H F Kirhy stepped down as CEQ on 31 December 2014 and K D Rountree was appainted CEQ with effect from 1 January 2015.

**M N Wells resigned on 31 January 2013 and so alf of his remuneration for 2012/13, including the payment for compensation far loss of
office, is included in this table.

**+* Maximum profit share paid was between £1,000 and £250.

Percentage change in CEQ's remuneration

The table below shows haw the parcentage change in the CEO's salary in 2018/19 compares with the percentage change in the average
salary and profit share of all employees within the Group. The committee has selected the Group’s entire staff population (excluding the
CEO) as these represent the most appropriate comparator.

CEQ Wider workforce
Salary +28.7% +4.5%
Profit share/discretionary payment* +400.0% +0.0%

*Profit share payment to the CEQO was £250in 2017/18 and £1,000 in 2018/18 in accardance with the remuneration policy. The wider
workforce was paid profit share of £1,000 and an additional £1,500 discretionary payment per employee in bath 2017/18 and 2018/19.

Salary cost and profit share/discretionary bonus for the wider workforce have been caleulated using the average exchange rates for the
period ended 3 June 2018 for both years. Performance related elements of salary costs have also been excluded in both years.

Relative importance of spend on pay
The fellowing tahle sets out the percentage change in dividends, profit attributable to owners and employee remuneration for the year
ended 2 June 2019, compared tc tha 53 waeks ended 3 june 2018:

Restated

2019 2018
£000 £000 % change
Total staff costs 78,624 70,223 +12.0%
FProfit attributable to cwners 65,821 59,455 +10.7%
Dividends declared and paid 50,277 40,602 +23.8%

Statement of voting at the last AGM
At the fast AGM, significant vates an remuneration and nominaticn related resolutions were cast as follows:

Vaotes for % of vate Votes against % of vote Votes withheld % of vate

To re-appoint N ] Donaldson 11,530,079 67.4% 4,995,743 29.2% 587,785 .3.4%
To re-appeint £} Myatt 11,606,575 67.8% 4,805,313 28.1% 701,718 4.1%
To approve the remuneratian report 16,158,635 94.4% 954,688 5.6% 2385 0.0%
To approve the remunération palicy 15,906,981 92.9% 1,192,816 7.0% ’ 19,710 0.1%

In line with the investrnents Association’s guidelines, a public statement was made regarding the significant votes against the resolutions to
re-appoint N I Danaldson and C ] Myatt. This stated that, following the 2018 AGM, the hoard actively engaged with those shareholders
holding over 50,000 shares wha had voted against these resolutions. The Company had not received any contact from these shareholders
In advance of the 2018 AGM nor indications that they were intending to vote against any of the resolutions.

Foliowing this request, four shareholders responded and explained that they had voted against the resolutions due to bath N J Donaldson
and C ) Myatt being considered not to be independent due to their length of service. As discussed earlier in the repart, € J Myatt will retire
at the next AGM and K E Marsh has now been appointed as a new non-executive director. in addition there was concern that N J
Donaldson was overboarded in terms of the call en his time. N J Donaldson’s time cammitments were then more fully explained to allay
this concern.

The board of Games Workshap remains fully committed to shareholder engagement and welcames ongoing dialogue with all investars.
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Implementation statement
A summary of the remuneration arrangements in 2018/19 and how the policy will be applied during 2019/20 is set out below:

Salary and fees

In 2018 the committee undertaok a benchmarking exercise performed by external remuneration advisers. This reviewed the salaries of the
executive and non-executive directors in order to assess how they compared with prevailing market levels of remuneration. Changes to
salary were therefore made in 2018/15.

The remuneration policy for the non-executive directors is determined by the board and is reviewed every year. Fees were externally
benchmarked, taking account of the duties and responsibilities placed on the nan-executive directors. The nan-executive directors do not
participate in the Group's sharesave scheme or profit share scheme nor do they receive any benefits or pension contributions.

Profit share
The maximum profit share that is payabie Is £1,000 per persan per year. The performance targets are based upon Group core business
operating profit percentage.

Exceptional bonus award

The maximure exceptional bonus award is up to 100% of salary per person per year. The performance targets are at the discretion of the
remuneration committee. The committee is of the opinion that disclosing detailed performance targets in advance would not be in
shareholder interests for reasons of commercial sensitivity. A discussion of perfarmance attributable to any future awards will be included
in the annual report on remuneration for that year, so that sharehelders can fully assess the basis for any pay outs.

Sharesave
A further award of options will be made under the new sharesave scheme during the year which is on.the same basis as previous years.

Pension
Executive directors will continue ta receive up to 7.5% of salary subject to a maximum of £10,00C per annum and the tapering restrictions

set outin the remuneration policy.

Remuneration and nomination committees

The remuneration committee is appointed by the board and comprises E O’Dannels (chairman), C] Myatt, ] R A Brewis and K £ Marsh.
Following the 2019 AGM, ] R A Brewis will be appointed as chairman of the remuneration committee as £ O'Dannell will then become
chairman of the audit and risk committee. The remuneration committee is responsible for setting the remuneration packages of the
executive directors as well as approving their service contracts. The nomination committee comprises N ) Denaldson, E Q'Donnell, € |
Myatt, J R A Brewis and K € Marsh. The nomination committee is responsible for the composition of the board. The terms of reference for
both committees are available on the Company’s investar relations website.

Advisers

In 2018 the committee was assisted in its work by PwC which was appointed by the Company in consultation with the cammittee. The
committee assessed whether PwC was independent in the provision of its remuneration advice and concluded that it was independent.
The amount paid to PwC during the 2018/19 year for its advice was £8,000 {2018: £15,000).

Directors' interests in shares of the Company
The directors’ interests {including their families) in the shares of the Company were as follows:

As at 2 June 2019 As at 3 June 2018
Ordinary shares of 5p each Ordinary shares of 5p each
Beneficial Non-beneficial Beneficial Nan-beneficial
K O Rountree 14,928 - 29,319 -
RF Tongue - 6,384 3,300 4,700 3,300
CJ Myatt 66,500 - 66,500 -
N J Donaldson 10,000 10,000 16,000 10,000
E O’'Donnell 3,300 1,793 3,300 1,793

J R A Brewis - - R .
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REMUNERATION REPORT continued

Share aptions
Share options granted to the directors under the sharesave scheme were as follows:

Number as at Exercise dates Exercise

At 3 June 2018 Exercised Granted 2 June 2019 Commencement Expiry price

X D Rountree 1,376 - - 1,376 Nav 20 Apr2l 1307.74p
R F Tongue 1,376 - - 1,376 Nav 20 Apr2l  1307.74p

The options above were granted under the Games Workshop Group PLC 2015 Sharesave Scheme which grants optians at a 20% discount
on the market price at grant. Participants save a fixed amount manthly for three years in arder to fund the exercise of the option. At

exercise an individual may choose to exercise their aption or have their savings repaid tc them. This scheme is open te all eligible

employees and directors who satisfy a service quallfication of at least Lthreg months, There are no performance targets associated with

these options.

There were ng movements in directors’ interests in shares of the Company between 2 June 2019 and the date of this report.

Mo other directors have been granted share options in the shares of the Company.

Performance graph

The graph below represents the comparative total shareholder return performance of the Campany against that of the index of the FTSE
250 companies during the previous nine years. The index af the FTSE 250 companies has been used because the constituents of this index

most appropriately reflect the Company’s size when compared to alternative indices.

E @%W\U\/\

On behalf of the board

E O'Dennell

Chairman

Remuneration committee
29 July 2019
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accardance with applicable law and
regulation.

Company law reguires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have prepared the
Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and
Comnpany finangia) statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.
Under company law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for that period. In preparing the financial
statements, the directors are required to:

«  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them censistentiy;

o state whether applicable IFRSs as adapted by the European Union have beén followed for the Group financial stalements and tFRSs as
adopted by the European Union have been followed for the Company financial statements, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

s make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and Company wiil
continue in business.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable staps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for keeping adeqguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial pasition of the Group and Company znd enable them tao
ensure that the financial statements and the directars’ remuneration report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

The directors are responsibile for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website, Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ confirmations

The directors consider that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Greup and Company’s position and performance, business model and strategy.

fach of the directors, whose names and functions are listed in the directors' report confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:

*  the Company financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adepted by the European Union, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the Company;

= the Group financial statements, which have been prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabiiities, financial position and profit of the Group; and

+  the strategic report includes a fair review of the develapment and performance of the business and the positian of the Group and
Company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.

By order of the board

RF Tongue
Greup finance director and company secretary
29 July 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of Games Workshop Group PLC
Repart on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Games Workshep Group PLC's group financial statements and company financial statements {the ‘financial statements'’}:
e give atrue and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Company’s affairs as at 2 june 2019 and of the Group's profit and
the Group's and the Company’s cash flows for the year then ended; '
+  have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financia! Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adapted by the European
Union and, as regards the Company’s financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006; and
e  have been prepared in accardance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 ang, as regards the group financial
statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the annual report, which comprise: the balance sheets as at 2 June 2019; the
consolidated income statement and statements of comprehensive income, the consclidated and Campany cash flow statements, the
consolidated statement of changes in total equity and Company statement of changes in total equity for the year then ended: and the
notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Qur opinion is consistent with our reporting to the audit committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK) {'iSAs {UK)') and applicable law. Qur responsibilities
under ISAs (UK} are further described in the auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinicn.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of gur knowledge and belief, we declare that nan-audit services prohihited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not prdvided to
the Group or the Company.

Other than those disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements, we have previded no non-audit services to the Group or the Company in
the period from 4 June 2018 to 2 June 2019.

Gur audit approach

Context

In the current year, the sales volumes of the Group have significantly increased resulting in a large increase in profit before tax year on
year. The Group has seen large growth from all revenue streams as well as increased global sales. These changes ta the Group have
impacted the audit as set out below with increased levels of materiality used to audit in the current year. The increased materiality has not
had an impact upon the number of reporting units in scope for the purposes of the Group audit and the coverage on the key income
statement balances has not been significantly impacted.

Overview
Materiality » Overall Group materiality: £4,000,000 {2018: £3,727,000), based on 5% of consolidated prafit before tax.
* Querall Company materiality: £377,000 (2018: £384,000), based on 1% of total assets.
Audit scope * Full scepe audits, all conducted by the Group engagement team, and were performed on five separate

reporting units.
* The reporting units audited included the four largest trading units in the Group.
¢ The audited units accounted far 82% of consolidated revenues and 93% of consolidated profit before tax.
Areas of focus s Inventory valuation {Group).
» Capitalisation of praduct development costs {Group).
» IFRS 16 (Group).

The scope of our oudit
As part of designing cur audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT continued

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations
related to breaches of environmental regulations and unethical and prohibited business practices, and we cansidered the extent to which
non-compliance might have a material effect on the financiai statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct
impact on the preparation of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006, the Listing Rules and UK tax legislation.

We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunitias for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of
override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to fraudulent transactions to increase the share price that would
result in overstating profits, therefore raising shareholder expectations.

The Group engagement team shared this risk assessment with the component auditors so that they could include appropriate audit
procedures in response to such risks in their work. Audit procedures performed by the Group engagement team and/or component

auditors included:

« ldentifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations; and
s  Challenging assumptions and judgements made by managernent in their significant accounting estimates.

There are inherent limitatians in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-campliance with faws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would became aware of it. Also, the risk of not
detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or thraugh colfusion.

Key audit matters

Key 2udit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or not due to fraud}
identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the cverall audit strategy; the allocation of resourcesin the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on tha resutts of our procedures
thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whale, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and we da
not provide a separate opinion an these matters. This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

T(ey oudit matter

How our gudit addressed the key audit matter

inventory valuation

Group

Refer to page 11 {audit committee report) and page 63
{notes).

The Group held inventory of £24,2 million as at 2 june
2019. The directors determine the gprovision for inventory
by making assumptions about future sales by product and
applying those to the current inventory holding.

inventory has increased year on year due to the
performance of the business requiring higher levels of
stock to be held for the aperation of the business.

The Group aperates in a retail market where new product
releases are regular. There is a risk that inventcries held
will not be sold and there is inherent judgement in the
fevels of sales the directors forecast when assessing
realisable value. Qver the last four years the Group has on
average written off £2.2 million of inventory per annum,

In order to assess the level of provision required against
inventory, the directors assess forecast sales levels by
product and in certain situations this calculation is subject
to manual averride to refiect the specific circumstances of
certain inventory lines,

Wwe focused on this area because of the subjectivity
around forecasting future sales performance of newly
launched products, and because of the judgement that
exists around the manual adjustments to the calculation.

We tested that the Groug provisioning pelicy is in accordance with fFRSs as
adopted by the EU and has been consistently applied with the exception of
the increase in provisioning for products expected to be sald between 2to 3
years from 50% provided to 100% provided. The impact of this change in
management’s methodology was an increase to the provisien of £180,000.
We understood and assessed manual overrides to the provision calcufation to
determine whether these adjustments were appropriate. No inappropriate
adjustments were identified.

We obtained an understanding of management’s process for preparing
future stock sales forecasts, including how these were challenged and stress-
tested by the directors. We tested the integrity of the underlying calculations
and assessed the assumptions over future sales forecasts by testing via
recalculation the accuracy of management’s historic sales forecasts
compared to actual out-turn. We did not identify any material differences
between historical forecasts and actual out-turn and were therefore satisfied
that the directars’ forecasting process was reasonable.

We obtained further evidence over the valuation of the provision by
camparing a sample of product lines to post year-end sales and assessing
whether, post year-end sales performance suggested that additional
pravisions may be required. This also provided us with evidence over the
accuracy of the directors’ sales forecasts used in calculating the provision, Mo
material errars were noted.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Capitalisation of product development costs We assessed whether the costs capitalised relating to praduct development
Group met the criteria set within 1AS 38 ‘Intangible assets’ noting no exceptions, We
Refer to page 10 (audit committee report}, page 52 agreed a sample of capitalised product development costs to source

(Critical accounting estimates and judgements) and page | documentation, including invoices and timesheets, and determined that they
60 (notes). had been allocated to the correct project.

The Group incurred £7.0 million of capitalised product

development casts during the year to 2 fune 2019, We aobtained and inspected the latest forecasts in respect of projects to

relating to products the Group develops to sell through its | assess recoverability of the capitalised costs. in order to assess the accuracy
various channels. The net book value of such capitalised of the future sales forecasts, we compared actual FY19 sales to forecasts

costs as af 2 June 2019 was £9.7 million. made In previous years and evaluated the historical accuracy of the directors’
estimates. We also compared performance against forecasts of sales made

We focused on this area due to the inherent level of following the year-end. Based on this assessment, we found the directors’

judgement around whether costs capitalised meet the forecasts to be consistent with the actual historical cutturr of sales and the

recognition criteria of 1AS 38 ‘Intangibie assets’ {'IAS 38°), | levels of sales made post-year end.

a determination that involves management estimation in

particular as regards to whether they are specific to We applied sensitivity analysis to the farecasts to understand the shortfall in

projects which are expected to generate future cash revenues that would be required to cause a material impairment in the

inflaws., carrying value of capitalised costs. We cansidered the shortfall required to
cause a material impairment unlikely given the historical accuracy of the

Further, there is a risk that capitalised costs will not be directors’ forecasting.

supported by the future cash inflows generated from
product sales.

IFRS 16 We have obtained and inspected a sample of inputs into management's

Group mode! and agreed back to the underlying lease agreements, We have

Refer to pages 12 and 13 {audit committee report) and recalculated the accounting entries for a sample of leases and confirmed

page 52 {notes}. management’s model is performing this calculation accurately. We have
tested the completeness of management’s mode! from the lease

The Grougp is applying IFRS 16 from 3 June 2019 50 the commitments note in the financial staterments.

expected impact on the financial statements is required to

be disclosed this year in line with IAS 8. We have assessed the methodology applied to calculate the discount rate
using an incremental borrowing rate specific to the Group in line with IFRS

The Group has used a spreadsheet mode! to calculate 16. We have considered the other assumptions to be appropriate including

these numbers, ensuring all the leases meet the definition of a lease under IFRS 16 and that

the lease term is accurate.
In addition judgements have been taken by the Group, .
including the discount rate to be applied. We have reviewed the workings for calculating the dilapidations provision
and agree with the methodology applied.

We have reviewed the disclosures in the financia! statements and are
satisfied that they are compliant with 1AS 8.

We determined that there were no key audit matters applicable to the Company to communicate in our report.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which
they operate.

The Group is a vertically integrated business, as shown in note 4 to the financial statements. The group financial statements are a
consolidation of a number of reporting units, comprising the Group’s sales, manufacturing and distribution businesses and centralised
functions, and a number of non-trading group entities.

Accordingly, of the group’s reporting units, we identified five {being Head Office and faur trading entities) that, in our view, required an
audit of their complete financial information, either due to their size or their risk eharacteristics. These entities accounted for 8§2% of
consolidated revenues and 93% of consolidated profit before tax. The audit of these five reporting units was performed by the Group
engagement team. This, together with additional procadures performed, including analytical procedures and certain tests of details over
specific balances and transactions, gave us the evidence we needed for our opinion on the group financial statements as a whole,

The Company is comprised of ene reporting unit which was subject to a full scope audit for the purposes of the Group and Company
financial statements.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These,
together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scape of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures on the individual financial statemant iine items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually
and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT continued

Materiality cantinued .
Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Company financial statements

Overall materiality £4,000,000 (2018: £3,727,000). £377,000 (2018: £384,000).

How we determined it 5% of consolidated profit before tax. 1% of total assets.

Rationgle for benchmark Based on the benchmarks used in the annual report, Dye to the nature of the entity, being that of a

applied profit before tax is the primary measure used by the holding campany which has large investments,
shareholders in assessing the performance of the total assets is deemed the most appropriate
Group, and is a generally accepted auditing benchmark. { benchmark.

For each component in the scope of our group audit, we zllocated a materiality that is less than our overall group materiality. The range of
materiality allocated across components was between £2,000,000 and £3,600,000.

We agreed with the audit committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during cur audit above £150,000 (Group
audit) (2018: £150,000) and £19,000 (Company audit) {2018: £19,000) as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our view,
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Going concern
In accordance with I5As {UK) we report as follows:

Reporting obligation Outcome
We are required to repart if we have anything material to add or draw We have nothing material to add or to draw attention to.
attention to in respect of the directors’ statement in the financial However, because not all future events or conditions can be

statements about whether the directars considered it zppropriate to adopt | predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the
the going cancern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements | Group’s and Campany’s ability tc continue as a going

and the directors’ identification of any material uncertainties to the concern. For example, the terms on which the United

Group's and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern over a Kingdom may withdraw from the European Union are not

period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial |clear, and it is difficult to evaluate all of the potential

staterments. implications on the Group’s trade, customers, suppliers and
the wider ecanomy.

We are required to report if the directors’ statement relating to going We have nething to repoert.

cancern in accardance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materially inconsistent
with our knowledge obtained in the audit.

Reporting on other information

The other infarmation comprises all of the information in the annual repart other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. The directars are responsible for the other information. Qur opinien an the financial statements daes not caver the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any
form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respensibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the aud'it, or
otherwise appears to be materizlly misstated. If we identify an apparent material incansistency or material misstatement, we are reguired
to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of
the other infarmation. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these respansibilities.

With respect to the strategic report, directors’ report and corporate governance report, we also considered whether the disclosures
required by the LIK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on tha responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Campanies Act 2006 (CAQG), ISAs
{UK) and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) require us also to repart certain opinions and matters as described
below (required by 1SAs (UK) unless otherwise stated).

Strategic report and directors’ report

In our opinian, based on the work undertaken in the course af the audit, the information given in the strategic repart and directors’
report for the year ended 2 June 2019 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable
lega! requirements. (CADG)

in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the caurse of the sudit, we
did not identify any material misstatements in the strategic report and directoss’ report, {CAOG)pericd of at least twelve months from the
date of approval of the financial statements,
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Corporate governance report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the corporate governance report {on
pages 21 to 24) and the audit and risk committee report {on pages 25 to 27) about intermzl controls and risk management systems in
relation to financial reporting processes in compliance with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules
sourcebook of the FCA {(‘DTR’) is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accardance with applicable legal
requirements. (CAJB)

.In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
did net identify any material misstatements in this information. (CA0S)

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the corporate governance report {on
pages 21 to 24) and the audit and risk committee report {on pages 25 to 27} with respect to the Company’s corporate governance code
" and practices and about its administrative, management and supervisory bodies and their committees complies with rules 7.2.2, 7.2.3
and 7.2.7 of the DTR. {CAO6)

We have nothing to repart arising from aur responsibility to report if a corporate governance statement has not been prepared by the
Company. (CADS) .

The directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Group and of the principal risks that would threaten the solvency or liquidity of the
Group

We have nothing material to add or draw attention to regarding:

s Thedirectors’ confirmation on page 14 of the annual report that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal
risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business madel, future performance, solvency or liquidity.

s The disclosures in the annual report that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated.

s The directors’ explanation on page 20 of the annual report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over
what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as tc whether they
have a reascnabie expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due
over the period of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attentian to any necessary qualifications or
assumptions. } '

We have nothing to repert having performed a review of the directors’ statement that they have carried out a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group and statement in relation te the longer-term viability of the Group. Our review was substantially less in
scope than an audit and enly consisted of making enquiries and considering the directors’ process supporting their statements;
checking that the statements are in alignment with the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Cade (the ‘Code’); and
considering whether the statements are consistent with the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their
environment obtgined in the course of the audit. {Listing Rules)

Other Cade Provisions

We have nothing to repart in respect of our respansibility to report when:

s  The statement given by the directors, on page 25, that they consider the annua! report taken as a whole to be fair, balanced
and understandable, and provides the information necessary for the members ta assess the Group's and Company’s position
and performance, business model and strategy is materially inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group and Company
obtained in the course of performing our audit.

*»  The section of the annual report an page 25 describing the work of the audit committee does not appropriately address
matters communicated by us to the audit committee.

s+ The directors’ statement relating to the Company’s compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a departure from a
relevant provision of the Code specified, under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditors.

Directors’ remuneration
In our opinion, the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been praperly prepared in accordance with the
| Companies Act 2006. {CA06)

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained mare fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary ta enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due ta fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a

going concern, disclasing as applicable, matters related ta going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
.directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease ¢perations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT continued

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit continued

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a3 whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditors’ repart that includes our cpinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs {UK) wiil always detect a material misstaternent when it exists.
Misstatements can arise fram fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economi¢ decisions of users taken on the basis of these finrancial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.ukfauditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of aur auditors’ repart.

Use of this report

This report, including the apinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We de not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other persan to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may came save where expressly agreed by our

prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exceptian reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

*« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have nat been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

«  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» the Company financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns. -

We have na exceptions ta report arising from this respansibility.

Appointment
Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the directors on 17 January 2005 to audit the financial
statements for the year ended 28 May 2005 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement is 15 years,

covering the years ended 29 May 2005 to 2 june 2019.

for Statutor:,r Auditar)

for and on bzhalf Wf PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
East Midlands

29 July 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Restated
52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
2 June 2019 3June 2018
Notes £000 £000
Revenue 4 256,574 221,304
Cost of sales {83,3086) (64,219)
Gross praofit 173,268 157,085
QOperating expenses 4,5 (103,434} {92,383)
Other operating income — royalties receivable 11,365 9,617
Operating profit 4 81,199 74,319
Finance income 7 102 9
Finance costs ) 8 {s) {139}
Profit befare taxation 9 81,296 74,270
Income tax expense B ) 10 (15,475} {14,815}
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 27 65,821 59,455
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the owners of the parent during the period {expressed in pence per share):
Restated
Notes 52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
2 June 2015 3 June 2018
Basic earnings per ordinary share 11 202.9p 184.3p
Difuted earnings per ordinary share 11 2¢0.8p 181.6p
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Group Campany
Restated
52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended 52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
2 June 2019 3 June 2018 2 June 2019 3 June 2018
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 65,821 59,455 48,273 38,494
Other comprehensive income f{expense}
1tems that may be reclassified to profit or lass
Exchange differences on translatian of foreign operations 26 708 {353) - -
Other comprehensive incomie /(expense) for the period 708 (353} - -
Total camprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent 66,529 59,102 48,273 38,494

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2008, the Company’s income atatement has not been included in these financial statements

Prior perisd amaunts have been restated following the ratrospective adoption of IFRS 15 ‘Ravenue from contracts with custamers'. See note 3 for further

details.

The notes on pages 49 to 71 are an integral part of these financial stataments
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BALANCE SHEETS

Group Company
Restated
2 June 2019 3June 2018 2 June 2019 3 june 2018
Nates £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 1,433 1,433 - -
Other intangible assets 14 16,004 14,195 - -
Property, plant and equipment 15 35,303 30,072 - -
Investments in subsidiaries 16 - - 30,584 390,584
Deferred tax assets 17 8,582 5,704 1 1
Trade and aother receivables 13 3,085 2,076 3,958 3,954
64,407 53,480 34,543 34,535
Current assets
lrwentories 18 24,192 20,159 B -
Trade and other receivables 19 18,796 15,502 2,628 1,508
Current tax assets 814 457 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 20 29,371 28,545 521 2,289
73,173 64,663 3,14% 3,795
Total assets 137,580 118,143 37,692 38,334
Current liabilities
Trade and cther payables 22 (19,199} (20,298) {449) (295)
Current tax liabitities {9,135) 17,818) - -
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 24 {919} {691} {49) -
{29,253} {28,817) {498) {195)
Net current assets 43,920 35,846 2,651 3,600
Nan-current liabilities
Other nan-current liabilitias 23 {1,010) {667) {1} -
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 24 (844} {537) {1}
{1,854} (1,204) {2) .
Net assets 106,473 88,122 37,192 38,139
Capital and reserves
Cailed up share capital 25 1,625 1,617 1,625 1,617
Share premium account 25 12,281 11,571 12,281 11,671
Other reserves 26 4,685 3,977 10% 101
Retained earnings 27 87,882 70,957 23,1185 24,850
Total equity 106,473 88,122 37,192 38,139

The Company’s profit after taxation for the year ended 2 June 2019 is £48,273,000 (2018: £38,454,000)

Prior period amounts have haen restated following the retrospective adaption of 1FRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with custamers’. See note 3 for further

derails.

The notes on pages 49 to 71 are an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements on pages 45 to 71 wece approved by the board of directors an 29 July 2019 and were signed on its bahalf by.

<. QM—ZQ

K It Rountree, Director

R FTongue, D

Registered number 2670969
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY

Share Retained
Called up premium  Other reserves earnings Taotal
share capital account (note 26) {nate 27} equity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 28 May 2017 and 29 May 2017 (as restated) 1,607 10,599 4,330 50,164 66,700
Profit for the 53 weeks to 3 June 2018 {as restated} - - - 59,455 59,455
Exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations - - {353) - {353)
Total comprehensive {expense)/income for the period (as restated) - - (353) 59,455 59,102
Transactions with owners: .
Share-based payments - - - , 204 204
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme (note 25} 10 972 B - 982
Deferred tax credit relating to share options - - - 1,050 1,050
Current tax credit relating to exercised share options B - - 686 [1:13
Dividends declared to Campany shareholders - - - {40,602) {40,602)
Total transactions with owners 10 972 - (38,662) {37,680) |
At 3 June 2018 and 4 June 2018 {as restated) 1,617 11,571 3977 70,957 88,122
Profit far the 52 weeks to 2 June 2019 - - - 65,821 65,821
Exchange differences an translation of foreign operations - - 708 - 708
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 708 65,821 66,529
Transactions with owners:
Share-based payments - - - 339 339
Shares issuad under emplayee sharesave scheme {note 25} 8 710 - - 718
Deferred tax credit relating to share options - - - 224 224
Current tay credit relating to exercised share aptions - - - 818 818
Dividends declared to Company shareholders - - - (50,277) {50,277}
Total transactions with owners 8 710 - (48,896) {48,178)
At 2 June 2019 1,625 12,281 4,685 87,882 106,473

Prior period arpounts have been restated following the retraspective adoption of {FRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with custaomers”. See nete 3 for further
details.

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY

Share Ratained
Catled up premiurm  Other resarves earnings Total
share capital account {note 26) (note 27) equity
£600 £00C £00C £000 £000
AL 28 May 2017 and 29 May 2017 1,607 10,599 101 25,754 39,061
Profit for the 53 weeks to 3 june 2018 - - - 38,494 33 494
Total comprehensive income far the peried . - - 38,494 38,494
Transactions with cwnpers:
Share-based payments i - - - 204 204
Shares issued under emplayee sharesave scheme {note 25} 10 372 - - 982
Dividends declared to Company sharehoiders - - - (40,602) (40,602}
Total transactions with owners 10 972 - (40,398) (39,415}
At 3 June 2018 and 4 June 2018 1,617 11,571 101 24,850 38,138
Profit for the 52 weeks to 2 lune 2019 - - - 48,273 48,273
Total comprehensive income for the period . - - 48,273 48,273
Transactions with awners:
Share-based payments . - - - 339 333
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme {note 25 8, 710 - - 718
Dividends declared to Company sharehalders - - - {50,277) {50,277)
Total transactions with owners 8 710 - {49,938) {49,220)
At 2 June 2019 1,625 12,281 101 23,185 37,192

The notes on pages 49 ta 71 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Group
52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
2 lune 2419 3 June 2018

Company
52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
2 lune 2019 3 June 2018

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash flows frem aperating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 88,776 82,332 47,737 39,262
UK corporation tax paid {14,217) {10,852) - -
Querseas tax paid (2,079} 11,375) - -
Net cash generated from operating activities 72,480 70,105 47,737 36,262
Cash flaws from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {13,651j {14,697) - -
Praceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 10 - - -
Purchases of other intangible assets {1,875) [1,496) - -
Expenditure on product development 14 (6,962) {5,387) - -
Interest received 102 99 54 -
Net cash {used in)/generated from investing activities {22,376) {21,481) 54 .
Cash flows from finanting activities
Praceeds from issue of ordinary share capital 25 718 982 718 9382
interest paid {5} (138} - -
Dividends paid ta Company sharehalders 12 {50,277} (38,701} (50,277) {38,701}
Net cash used in financing activities {49,564) {37,857} (49,559) (37,719}
Netincrease/(decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 540 10,767 (1,768) 1,543
Opening cash and cash equivalents 28,545 17,910 2,289 746
Effects of foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 286 {132) - -
Closing cash and cash equivalants 20 29,371 28,545 521 2,289

The notes on pages 49 to 71 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General information

Games Workshop Group PLC {the ‘Company’} and its subsidiaries {together the ‘Group’) designs and manufactures miniature figures and games and
distributes these through its own network of retail stores, independent retailers and online via the global wehb stores. The Group has manufacturing activities
in the UK and sells mainly in the UK, Continental Europe, North America, Australia, New Zealand and Asia.

The Company is a public listed company, incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdarn, The address of its registered office is Willow Road, Lenton,
Nottingham, NG7 2WS, Unijted Kingdom.

The Campany’s erdinary share capital is listad on the Landon Stock Exchange.

2. Summary of significant accaunting policies
The principal accounting paolicies applied in these financial staterments are set out below. These policies have been consistently appliad 1o all the perieds

presented, unless otherwise stated. :

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared under the going concern basis and in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) and IFRS
interoretations Committee {[C} interpretations as adopted by the European Union and with thase parts of the Campanies Act 2006 applicable to those
companies reparting under {FRSs. The Group and the Company applied far the first time IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ and {FRS 9
‘Financial instruments’, Details of the impact on transition to these standards ¢an be found in note 3.

The consolidated and Company financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the Cormpany and its subsidiary undertakings drawn up far the 52 weeks ended 2 June 2019 and the 53 weeks
ended 3 June 2018. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies and are fully cansolidated
frem the date on which control is transferred to the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between group companias are eliminated on conselidation.
Accounting policies of sybsidiaries are consistent with the policies adapted by the Group. The management accounts of all subsidiaries prepared to 2 June
2019 and 3 June 2018 have been used for consclidation purposes,

Gaodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries represants the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment, or when an indicator of impairment
arises, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Provision is made far any impairment by comparing the value in use to the pet carrying
value. Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the purpose of impairment testing.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 31 May 1998 was written off to reserves in accerdance with the a¢counting standard then in force. As permitted by
the current accounting standard, the goodwill previousty written off to resarves has not been reinstated in the balance sheet.

Qtherintangible assets

Davelopment costs

Costs incurred in respect of product design and davelopment activities are recognised as intangible assets when they meet the criteria of 1AS 38 "Intangible
Assets’ and are wholly attributable to specific projects. Product development costs recognised as intangible assets are amartised on a reducing balance basis
with rates ranging from 50% to 80% to match the expenditure incurred to the expected revenue generated from the subsequent product release. However,
there are some design ¢osts which do not meet the recognition criteria and are therefare not capitatised, and are shown in note 9.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences and related development expenditure are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring into use
the specific software. Computer software licences are held at cost and amortised on a straight line basis over the expected useful lives of the assets. Costs
assaciated with maintaining computer software programmaes are recognised as an expense as incurrad. Development costs that are directly attributable to
the design and testing of identifiable and unique software praducts contralled by the Group are recognisad as intangible assets when they meet the criteria
of 1AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’.

Other development expenditure that does not meet these criteria is recognised as an expense as incurred.

Development casts previously recognised as an expense are nat recagnised as an assetin a subsequent period. The principal annual amortisation cates are:

2% of cost

Core business systems computer software 15-33
Web store computer software

Qther camputer software 33-50
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumnulated depreciatian and any provision for impairment. The cost of property, plant and
equipment is their purchase cost, together with any incidental costs of acquisition.

Depreciation is calculated over the expected useful econamic lives of the assets concerned to write down to the asset's residual value and commences from
the date the asset is available for use. The principal annual depreciation rates ara:
s Reducing balance

Straight line % of net book

% of cost value

Freehald buildings 2-4 -
Plant and equipment and vehicles 15-33 -
Fixtures and fittings 20-25 -
Mouiding tools — praduct specific - 65
Moulding tools — non-product specific 25 -

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the sharter of the useful economic life of the asset or the pericd of the lease. These assets are included
within fixtures and fittings. Freehold land is not depreciated.

fmpairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment in accardance with |1AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. Far the purpases of assessing impairment, assets are grouped together at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash fiows. Discount rates reflecting the asset specific risks and the time value of money are
used for the value in use calculation. i

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fzir value, which is typically the original invoice amount, and carried at amartised cost using the effective interest
method less loss allowance, The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, using a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables based on historical ¢redit iosses by the Group.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group perfarms by transferring goods or
services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is racognised far the earned consideration thatis
conditional.

Leases

Cperating leases

Leases in which a significant proportion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retafned by the tessor are classified as operating leases. The Group's
commitment in respect of its retail stores is induded within this category. Payments in respect of eperating feases and any benefits receivad as an incentive
to sign a lease, are chargad or credited to the incoma statement on a straight line basis over the period of the entire lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are valuad at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determinad using a standard costing rnethod taking into account variances. In
respect of finished goods, cost includes raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related praoduction ovarheads based an a normal level of
productian. Net realisable value is the estimated selfing price in the ardinary course of business, less applicable variable salling expenses. Where necessary
provisions are made far cbsolete, slow maving and defective inventories.

Fareign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Items included in the financial
statements of each of the group entities are measurad using the currency of the primary econemic environment in which the entity operatas {the functional
currency). Monetary assets and liabilities exgressed in currencies that are not the functional currency are translated into the functional currency at rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. The financial statements of overseas subsidiary companies prepared in functional currencies other than sterling
are translated into sterling as follows:

- Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of the balance sheet;
- Inceme and expenses are translated at the average rate for the period;
- Al resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

Cash and cash equivalents )
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise deposits with banks and bank and cash balances, net of averdrafts where
there is a legally enforceable right of offset.

Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goeds or services to a customer for which the Greup has received consideration {or an amount of
cansideration is due) from the custemer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract hability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due {whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as reveriue when the Group performs
under the contract,
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Other employment benefits

Pension costs

The Group operates defined contribution schemes and a group personal gension plan. Pensicn contributions are charged to the income statement as they
accrue. There are no further obligations to the Group once payment has been made.

Long service bepefits

The Graup aperates a long service incentive scheme under which employees receive a one off additional holiday entitlement of two weeks when they reach
10 years of employment (Veterans schere}. Ouring the year the Group has extended the scheme to provide a further two weeks holiday entitiement to
employees reaching 20 years of employment, and again at 30 years’ service. This extension to the scheme will be honoured retrospectively for existing
employees with 20 and 30 years’ service. The costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment based on expected staff retention rates and
the anticipated future employment costs discounted to present value.

Share-based payment
The Group operates a number of equity-sett/ed employee sharesave schemes. The fair value of the employee services received under such schemes is
recagnised as an expense in the income statement with a corresponding increase in equity over the vesting periad.

Investments
Shares and loans in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provision for impairment,

Revenue

Revenue, which excludes value added tax and saies between group companies, represents the invoiced value of goods supplied {net of trade discounts for
sales to indeperident retailers). Revenue is recognised on dispatch of goods to the customer for sales via the glabal web store and for sales to independent
retailers. This reprasents fulfilmant of the perfarmance ohligatian of the contract with the customer. For revenue garned through the Group’s retail stores
and for digital products, revenue is recognised at the paint of sale. Revenue for magazine subscriptions is recognised on a straight lina basis over the
subscription period.

Revenue on goods sald to customers on a sale or return basis (which includes baok sales) is racognised after making full provision for the level of expected
returns, based on past experience. The level of returns is reviewed on a regular basis and the provision is amended accordingly. Revenue on a sale or return
basis represents no mare than 3% of consolidated revenue (2018: no more than 3%).

Royalty income )

Minimum royalty gusrantee income is recagnised in full at inceptian of the contract. This represents the point at which the performance obligation of the
contract is met, in granting use of the Group’s inteliectual property. Additional royalty income is recognised in the income statement when it can be reliably
measured by reference to the underlying licensee performance, after allowing for expected returns and price protection claims, as notified to the Group by
the ticensee and following validation of the amounts receivable by the Group.

Segment reporting

Cperating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decisicn-maker. The chief operating
decisign-maker, who is responsible for atlocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors.

Taxation
The charge for current taxis based on the results for the period as adjusted for items which are non-assessable or disallowed. 1t is calculated using rates that
have been enacted ar substantively enacted by the balance sheer date,

Deferred taxation is accounted for using the balance shzet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying
amaunt of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxabie profit. 1n principle, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised far all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extant that it is probabie that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temparary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabitities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill er from the initial recognition {ether than in a business combination) of other assets and fabilities in a transaction which affects neithar
the tax profit nor the accounting profit,

Deferred tax lisbfities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investrrents in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary differance will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply when the asset or liability is settied. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except whers it refates to items credited or charged directiy to equity, in which case the defarred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends ta settle its
current tax assets and lizkilities on a net basis.

Dividends
Dividend distributions are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which they are declared.

Provision for liabilities and charges
Provisions are recognised in accordance with I1AS 37 ‘Pravisions, Cantingent Assets and Cantingent Liabilities’.

Provisions are made for committed casts outstanding under oneraus or vacant preperty leases and the estimated liability is discounted to its present value.
Provisions are made for property dilapidations where a legal obligation exists and when the decision has been made to exit a property, or where the end of
the lease commitment is Imminent and a reliatle estimate of the exit hability can be made. The estimated employee benefit liability arising from the
Veterans incentive scheme is classified within provisions. Amounts relating to employees who reach 10, 20 or 30 years' service in more than one year are
classified as non-current. Provisions are made for redundancy casts once the employees affected have a valid expectation that their roles will become
redundant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

2. Summary of significant accounting palicies continued

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or aptions are shown in equity as a deduction, net

of tax, fram the proceeds.

Financial instruments
All financial assets are classified as 'loans and receivables' and financial liabilities as 'ather financial liabilities' (measured at amortised cost} in accardance

with IFRS 9. Management determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognitian.

Critical accounting estimates and judgerments

The preparation of the consaclidated financial statements requires management ta make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingencies at the balance sheet date. If in future such estimates and assumptions, which are
based on management’s best judgement at the date of the consolidated finzncial statements, deviate from actual circumstances, the original estimates and
assumptions witl be modified, as appropriate, in the period in which the circumstances ¢hange.

Management do not consider there to be any critical accounting estimates that have 2 significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,

Managerment consider the capitalisation of development costs and internally developed software costs te be a critical accounting judgement. Costs dicectly
associated with the asset creation are capitalised. :

New accaunting standards
New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations which have been published but are not yet effective which are relevant to the Group are:

- IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ applies to financial periods cammencing on or after 1 January 2019. This new standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account far ali leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the
accounting for finance leases under |AS 17. The standard includes twa recogaition exemptians for lesseas: leases of low value’ assats; and, short-term
leases (i.e. leases with a term less than 12 months). At the lease commencament date, a liability will be recognised in respect of the future lease
payments and a corresponding asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term. The interest expense incurred on the lease
liability and the depreciation charged on the right ta use asset will be recognised separately in the income statement.

Certain events will result in the lease liability being re-measured (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine thase payments). The re-measurement will be first adjusted against the fight of use asset and any excess
charged to profit or loss.

Transition to IFRS 16

The Group will adopt the modified retrospective approach from 3 June 2019, meaning that the Group will not be rastating each prior reporting period
presented. The application of this new standard will have a material impact an the financial statements of the Group, bacause of tha large number of
leases on retzil properties it holds In adopting this approach, the Group inteads to use the following practical expedients as offered by the standard:

- Application of a single discount rate to a portfelio of jeases with reasonably similar characteristics;

- The use of hindsight in determining the tease term if the contract contains aptions to extend or terminate the lzaie;
- Exclusion of initial direct costs from the measurement of the right of use asset at the date of initial application;

- Norecognition of leases whose term ends within twelve manths of the date of initial apglication.

Tne Group will elect to apply th2 standard to contracts that were previously identifiad as leases applying [AS 17 and IFRIC 4. Tha Graua will not apply the
standard to contracts that were not previgusly identified as containing a lease Tha Group will glect to apply the transition exemption for leases where the
underlying assetis of low valug, i.e. when the underlying asset has 2 value of £5,000 or less when new.

The Group will calculate and apply the increrrental borrowing rate (‘IBR'} to its future cash flows to determine the lease hability. The incrementat
borrowing rate has been defined by the standard as 'the rate of interest that a lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with similar
security, the funds necessary te obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar environment’. The Group has no external borrowing,
therefore a credit risk spread approach has been used to calculate the IBR, which combines the risk-free security rate and a corporate security rate in
each economic environmeant in which the Group has a lease.

The Group has performed a detailed impact statemeant of IFRS 16, which excludes the impact of taxation. In summary the impact of adopting IFRS 15 as at
2 June 2019 is estimated ro be: anincrease to the carrying value of fixed assets through the recognition of an opening right-of-use asset of c.£34.9 miliion,

and 2n increase in lease liabilities of ¢.£34.0 million.

The Group dees not consider that any ather standards, amendments or interpratations issued by the |ASE, but not yet applicable, will have a significant
effect on the financial statemeants.
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3, Changein accounting palicy
The Group has applied IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ and IFRS § ‘Financial instruments’ for the first time. The nature and effect of the

changes as a resuit of adoption of these new standards are described below.

iFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ supersedes IAS 11 'Canstruction contracts’, IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and related interpretations and it applies to
a3l revenue from contracts with customers, ualess those ¢ontacts are in the scope of other standards. Under {FRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring gacds or services to a customer.

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the fully retrospective transition method. The key cansiderations along with the impact of adopting {FRS 15 are
described below:

- Advances from customers
Under IFRS 15, minimum royalty guarantee income is recognised in full at inception of the contract. This represents the point at which the

performance obligation of the contract is met, in granting use of the Group’s intellectual property. Previously, this income was deferred and
recagnised on the balance sheet within accruals and deferred income and released in line with licensee sales.

- Delivery charges
Under the new standard, amounts receivable from customers in respect of delivery charges are recognised as revenue. Previously, this income was
offset against delivery charges within cost of sales. The impact of reclassifying delivery charges is an increase in revenue and cast of sales. There is no

impact on net assets.

The impact of the change on the results was as fallaws:

Impact of change

3June 2018 in accounting 3 June 2018

As reported standard Restated

£000 £000 £000

Revenue 219,868 1,436 221,304
Cost of sales {62,783) {1,436) {64,219}
Gross profit 157,085 - 157,085
Other aperating income - royalties receivable 9,893 {276) 9,617
Operating profit 74,595 {276) 74,319
Income tax expense {14,867) 52 (14,815)
Prafit attributable to owners of the parent 59,679 (224) 59,455
Retained earnings at 29 May 2017 46,296 3,868 50,164
Trade and other receivables — non-current 1,409 667 2,076
Trade and other raceivables — current 13,400 2,102 15,502
Trade and other payables {22,028) 1,730 {20,298}
Ceferred tax assets 6,559 [855) 5,704
Net assets 84,478 3,644 88,122
Basic earnings per share ) 185.0p {0.7lp 184.3p
Diluted earnings per share 182.3p {0.7)p 181.6p

- Othar adjustments
In addition ta the adjustments described above, upon adaption of IFRS 15, ather items of the primary financial statements such as deferred taxes,
segmental information, income taxes, earnings per share, financial risk factors and the cash flow statement were adjusted as necessary. The impact
of these adjustments was not material to the financial statements.

¥FRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ replaces IAS 39 ‘Financial instruments: recognition and measurement’, Under this new standard, provisicns for the
impairment of trade recelvables are recognised at an amount based on expected credit lossas and are caleulated from the initial recognition of the asset.
Praviously, provisions for the impairment of trade receivables were not recognised untit there was an indication of impairment. The impact of adopting the
new standard is not material to the financial statemeants.

4. Segmentinformation
As Games Workshop is a vertically integrated business, management assesses the performance of sales channels and manufacturing and distribution
channels separately. At 2 June 2013, the Group is organised as follows:

- Sales channels: these channels sell product to external custamers, through the Group's netwaork of retail stores, independent retailers and oniine via
the global web stores. The sales channels have been aggregated into segments where they sell products of 2 similar nature, have similar production
precesses, similar gustomers, similar distribution methods, and if they are affected by similar economic factors. The segments are as follows:

- Trade: this sales channel sells globally to independent retailers, agents and distributors. It also includes the Group's magazine nawsstand
business and the distributor sales frem the Group’s publishing business (Black Library),

- Retail: this includes sales through the Group’s retail stores, the Group's visitor centre in Nottingham and global exhibitions.

- Online; this includes sales through the Group's global web stores and digital sales through external affiliates.

- Praduct and supply: this includes the design and manufacture of the products and incorporates the production facility in the UK and the Group
logistics and merchandising costs. This also includes adjustrnents for the profit in stack arising from inter-segment sales and charges for inventory
pravisions.

- Central costs: these include the Company overheads, head office site costs and marketing costs.

- Service cantre costs: provides support services (iT, accounting, payroll, personnel, procurement, legal, health and safety, custamer services 2nd credit
contral) to activities across the Group and undertakes strategic projects,

- Ravalties: this is royalty tncame earned from third party licensees after deducting assaciated licansing casts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

4. Segment information continued

The chief cperating dacision-maker assesses the performance of each segmant based on operating profit, excluding share option charges recognised under
IFRS 2, ‘Share-based payment’, charges in respect of the Group's profit share scheme and the discretionary payment to employeas for the current year. This

has been reconciled to the Group’s total profit before taxation befow.

The segment information repcrted to the executive directors for the periods included in this financlal information Is as follows:

Restated

52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended

2 June 2019 3 June 2018

£000 £000

Trade 121,445 94,381
Retail 87,803 81.971
Qrline 47,326 44,952
Total external revanue 256,574 221,304

Segmaent revenue and segment profit include transactions between business segments; these transactions are eliminated on consolidation. Sales between
segrments are carried out at arm’s [ength. The revenue from external parties reperted to the executive directors is measured in 8 manner consistent with

that in the income statement. For information, we analyse external revenue further below:

Restated
52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
2 june 2019 3 June 2018
£000 E£Q00
Trade
UK and Continental Eurape 51,324 39,068
North America 53,509 41,818
Austratia and New Zealand 5,061 4,340
Asia 5,332 3,857
Rest of world 3,796 2,935
Black Library 2,423 2,363
Total Trade 121,445 94,381
Retail
UK 27,831 27,250
Continental Eurape 21,380 21,303
North America 27,428 22,243
Australia and New Zealand 8,216 8,977
Asia 2,848 2,198
Total Retail 87,803 81,971
Gnline 47,326 44,952
Tota!l external revenue 256,574 221,304
Cperating expenses by segment are regularly reviewead by the executive directors and are provided below:
Restated
52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
2 June 2019 3 June 2018
£000 £000
Trade 13,475 11,413
Retail 49,524 45,892
Online 5,668 5,672
Product and supply 3,789 3,350
Central costs 9,653 7,598
Service centre costs 14,700 12,664
Royalties 775 686
Total segment operating expenses 97,584 87,375
Share-based payment charge 339 204
Profit share scheme charge 2,226 1,565
Discretionary payment to employees 3,285 2,835
Total group operating expenses 103,434 92,383
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4. Segmentinformation continued

Total segment eperating profitis as follows and is recanciled to profit before taxatian below:

Restated

52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended

2 June 2019 3 June 2018

£000 £000

Trade 43,688 32,888
Retail 10,386 7,185
Online 29,247 27,880
Praduct and supply 18,517 23,887
Central costs {10,684) {8,698}
Service centie tosts {14,695} {12,664)
Royalties 10,590 8,849
Total segment operating profit 87,049 79,327
Share-based payment charge [339) {204)
Profit share scheme charge {2,226} (1,969}
Biscretionary payment to employees {3,285) (2,835)
Total group operating profit 81,199 74,319
Finance income 102 S0
Finance costs (5} (133)
Profit hefore taxation 81,296 74,270

Operating profit as reported above includes impairment, depreciation and amortisation charges as fallows:

52 weeks ended

53 weeks ended

2 June 2019 3 June 2018

£Q00 £000

Trade 8 7
Retail 1,716 1,586
Cnline 980 1,106
Product and supply 11,927 7.746
Central costs 4449 324
Service centre costs g&16 524
Royalties 2 2
Total group charges for impairment, depraciation and amontisation 15,898 11,295

Other nan-cash charges and significant costs included in operating profit are as follows:

Net charge to inventory provisions

52 weeks ended

53 weeks ended

Redundancy costs and compensation

52 weeks ended

for lass of office
53 weeks ended

2 June 2019 3june 2018 2 June 2019 3 june 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade - {16} (44)

Retail - - (538) {102)

Online . - - - (12)

Product and supply (5,770} (3,960} {127) (32)

Central costs - - (253) {28)

Tatal group charge (5,770} {3,960) {934} {238}
Assat and iiability infarmation is not reported to the chief operating decision-maker on a segment basis and therefore has not been disclosed.

External revenue analysed by customer geographical location is as follows.

Restated

52 weeksended 52 weeks ended

2 June 2019 3 June 2018

£0G0 £000

UK 64,598 52,501

Coatinental Europe 64,914 58,082

MNorth America 98,588 84,136

Australia and New Zealand 16,172 16,456

Asia 8,860 6,778

Rest of world 3,438 2,951

External revenue 256,574 221,304

The Group is not reliant on any one individyal customer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

4.  Segment information continued

Non-current assets {excluding deferrad tax assets) are located in the following countries:

Restated

52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended

2 lune 2019 3 June 2018

£000 £000

UK 50,769 43,350
All other countries 5,056 4,426
Total non-current assets {excluding deferred tax assets) 55,825 47,776

Tangible and intangible asset additions included within the UK were £21,087,000 {2018: £18,837,000) and aif other countries were £2,045,000 (2018:

£1,787,000).

5. Operating expenses

52 weeks ended

53 weeks ended

2 June 2019 3 June 2018
£000 £000
Selling costs 61,074 55,633
Administrative expenses 42,360 36,744
103,434 92,383
6. Directors and employees
Group Company

52 weeks ended 53 weaeks ended 52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
2 June 2019 3 lune 2018 2 june 2019 3 June 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

Tatal directors’ and employees’ costs:
Wages and salaries 68,789 61,370 1,982 1,218
Social security 6,840 6,308 262 159
Othar pension costs 2,656 2,343 26 24
Share-based payment 339 204 - 3
78,624 70,223 2,270 1,404

Details of capitalised salary costs, included in the above, are pravided in note 14. Redundancy costs and campensation for lass of office, not included in the

abave, are provided in note 9.

Total directors’ and employees’ costs above include the impact of fareign currency movements in the period. Total directors” and employees’ costs far the
Group for the 52 weeks ended 2 June 2019 calculated using the average exchange rates for the 53 weeks endad 3 Jure 2018 are £78,432,000. This includes
performance related elements of salary costs, paymeants under the Group's profit share scheme and the discretionary payment to employees of £8,043,000
(2018: £7,662,000).

Highest paid director
The above includes salary costs of £551,000 (2018: £428,000) and pension costs of £10,000 (2018. £10,000) in respact of the highest paid director. Total
remuneration ¢f the highest paid directer is detailed in the remunearation report

Key management compensation
The remuneration of the directors and other key managemant parsonnel of the Graup are set out below in aggregste for each of the categories specified in
1AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’.

52 weeks ended

53 weeks ended

2 lune 2019 3 June 2018

£000 £G00

Short-term ermployee benefits 1,990 1,278
Past-emplayment benefits 20 30
Share-based payment 5 3
2,015 1,311

Further information relating to directors’ emcluments, shareholdings and share options is disclosed in the remunaration repart on pages 28 to 36.
In the prior perfod the subset of people is different to that referred to as ‘senior management’ on page 19, In the prior period key management were the
directors of the Company and the head of design and manufacturing.
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6. Directors and employees continued

employee numbers

Group
52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
2 June 2019 3 June 2018
MNumber Number
Monthly average number of employees {including executive directors) by activity:
Design and development 252 238
Production and warehousing 477 381
Selling:
- Full time 830 804
- Parttime 112 102
Administration 439 387
2,110 1,907

The monthly average number of employees for the Company was 8 (2018: 8).

7. Finance income

52 weeks ended

53 weeks ended

2 June 2018 3 June 2018
£000 £4000

interest income:
- 0n cash and cash equivalents 102 85
- Other - 5
102 50

8. Finance costs

52 weeks ended

53 weeks ended

2 tune 2019 3 June 2018
£000 £000

Interest expanse:
5 139

- Other interest payable

8. Profit before taxation

52 weeks ended

53 weeks endad

2 June 2019 3 June 2018
. £000 £060
profit before taxation is stated after charging/{crediting]:
Depreciation:
- Gwned property, plant and equipment 8,941 €,614
impairment/(reversal of impairment} of progerty, plant and equipment 4 (20}
Amortisation:
- Owned computer software 1,608 1,418
- Development costs 5,341 4,130
Non-capitalised developrnent costs 6,367 5,645
staff costs fexcluding capitalised salary costs shown in note 14 and non-capitalised development staff casts) 69,276 62,157
Opérating leases:
- Retail stores 9,965 3,083
- Qther property 567 512
- Plant and equipment 191 1856
- Other 134 189
Cost of inventories included in cost of sales 39,507 28,733
Net inventory provision creation {note 18} 5,770 3,960
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 144 40
{oss on disposal of intangible assets 188 12
Redundancy costs and compensation for loss of office 934 238
Net {credit)/charge to property provisions including closed or loss making retail stores (note 24) (150) 73

Auditors’ remuneration and services provided

Services provided by the Group’s auditors and network firms are analysed as foillows:

52 weeks ended

53 weeks ended

2 june 2019 3 june 2018
£000 £000
Audit services
Audit of the Group and Company's financial statements 81 54
Other services
The audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to iegistation 136 124
All other services 14 5G
231 238

Total services provided
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

10. Incame tax expenses

Restated
52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
2 June 2019 3 June 2018
£000 £000
Current UK taxation:
UK corporation tax on profits for the period 16,614 13,635
Qver provision in respect of prior pericds (171) {160)
16,443 13,475
Current overseas taxation:
Overseas corperation tax on profits for the period 1,561 1,638
Under/(over) provision in respect of prior periods 89 {75}
Tatat current taxation 18,093 15,034
Deferred taxation:
Origination and reversal of timing differences {2,756) (399)
Under provision in respect of prior periods 138 180
Tax expense recognised in the income statemant 15,475 14,815
Current tax credit relating to sharesave scheme {818} (686)
Deferred tax credit relating to sharesave scheme {224) {1,050)
Credit taken directly to equity {1,082) (1,736)
The tax on the Group’s profit bafore taxation differs in both periods presented from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK as follows:
Restated
52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended
2 June 2019 3 lune 2018
£000 £000
Profit before taxation 81,296 74,270
Profit before taxation muitiplied by the standard rate of corparation tax in the UK of 19% (2018 19%) 15,446 14,111
Effects of:
ltemns not assessable for tax purposes {1035) (475)
Movement in deferred tax net recognised . (26}
Higher tax rates on overseas earnings 33 198
Tax rate changes 39 1,066
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods 56 {59)
Total tax charge far the period 15,475 14,815

A raduction in the UK carporation tax rate was included in the Finance Act 2016 to reduce the rate to 17% from 1 April 2020. This change had been

substantively enactaed at the balance sheet date and its impact has therefore been included in these financial statements.

ltems not assessable for tax purposes include the release of provisions no longer considared a risk ta the Group as well as tax relief for other taxes paid.

The Tax Cuts and jobs Act was enacted in to US law on 22 Dacember 2017 within which there was a substantial reduction in the US corparate federal tax
rate of 35% to 21%, with effect from 1 January 2018 The Group has applied a blended federal tax rate of 29.19% to US taxable profit and 219% to deferred
tax assets within the US, The impact of the tax rate change in the prior period was a charge 1o the income statement of £984,000 which is includad within

the £1,066,000 tax rate changes difference above.

At the time of writing, the terms of the UK's departure from the EU (Brexit) remains uncertain. There is significant uncertainty 2bout the withdrawal process,
its timeframe and the outcome of the negotiations. As a result, there is significant uncertainty as to the periad for which the existing EU laws for member
states will continue to apply to the UK and which laws will spply to the UK after an exit. At this stage the level of uncertainty is such that itis impossible to
determine if, how and when the UK's tax status will change. Our preparatians for varying outcomes of the Brexit negatiations, including ‘no deal’, are well
advanced due to the potential departure dates earlier in 2019, Particular considzration has been given ta the customs declarations and VAT incurred at the
border to ensure these are resolved by Games Workshop and are not a concern for customers, The VAT is to became a recaverable flow through UK and
European VAT returns. One of the biggest risks is the customs handling of the volume of goods at the ports which would impact the speed of fulfilment of
sales orders, The business will closely monitor this Qverall the directors have assessed the impact and have not identified any significant matters impacting

the finanzial statements,
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11. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the period.

Restated

52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended

2 lune 2019 3 June 2018

£000 £000

Profit attributable to awners of the parent (£000) £5,821 59,455
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 32,438 32,258
Basic earnings per share {pence per share) 202.9 184.3

Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share has been based on the profit attributable to owners of the parent and the weighted average number of shares
in issue thranghout the peried, adjusted for the dilutive effect of share options outstanding at the period end.

Restated

52 weeks ended 53 weeks ended

2 June 2019 3 June 2018

£000 £000

Profit attributable to owners of the parent {£000) 65,821 59,455
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (thousands) 32,438 32,258
Adjustment for share options (thousands) 347 474
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share (thousands) 32,785 32,732
Ciluted earnings per share (peace per share) 200.8 1816

12. Dividends per share

Dividends of £9,705,000 (30 pence per share), £11,323,000 (35 pence per share), £9,749,000 (30 pence per share}, £8,124,000 (25 pence per share) and
£11,376,000 (35 pence per share) were declared and paid during the current period.

Dividends of £6,428,000 {20 pence per share), £11,249,000 (35 pence per share), £9,703,000 (30 pance per share)] and £11,321,000 (35 pence per share)
ware declared and paid during the prier period. In addition a further £1,901,000 (6 pence per share} was distributed in the prior period by way of a
rectification dividend. The rectification dividend was satisfied by the release of Company shargholders from the liability to repay the amaunt received in the
pricr period in the form of an unlawful dividend.

Far the purpose of demanstrating that thare were sufficient distributable reserves faor interim dividend payments, interim financial statements for the
Company were prepared and filed at Companies House in January 2019 and May 2019,

13. Geoodwill

2018 2018
Graup L £000 o £000
Cost
At the beginning of the period 2,412 2,412
Exchange differances = .
At the end of the period 2,413 2,412
Accumulated amortisation
At beginning of period {979) {979)
Exchange differences {1} -
At the end of the periad {980] {579}
Net book value at Beginning of period and end of period 1,433 1,433

The Company had no goodwill at either period end.

Impairment tests for goodwill
The goodwill arose on the acquisition of TIA Tooling Limited, the acquisition of Triple K Plastie Injection Moulding Limited and the purchase by EURL Games

Woarkshop of the |ease associated to Hercic Diffusion SARL, which under IFRS amounted to the purchase of a business.

In accordance with the requirements of IAS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’ the Group completed a review of the carrying value of goodwill as at each period end.
The impairment review was performed to ensure that the carrying value of the Group's assets are stated at no more than their recoverable amount, being
the higher of fair value less costs to sell and vajue in use. The key assumptions for the recoverable amount of the goodwill are the long term growth rate and
the dis¢ount rate. The long term growth rate used is purely for the impairment testing of goodwill under IAS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’ and does not reflect
the lang term planning assumptions used by the Group for any other assessments. In determining the value in use, the calcutations use cash flow projections
far a period no greater than three years based on plans approved by management and, for the Graup’s cash-generating unit concerned, assumes a lang term
growth rate no higher than 2% {2018: 2%). The estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing usa of the assets are caiculated using 2
pre-tax discount rate of 1.41% {2018 1.65%).

Management reviewed the planned sales growth and gross margin on the investment in future product releases and initiatives currently being undertaken,
to deliver the expected future performance. Goodwill is allocatad to the Group's cash-genearating units (CGUs} for impairment testing. A of the current
goadwilf arises in the preduct and supaly segment. Sensitivity analysis has not been disclosed in these financial statements since management consider that
there is no reasonably possible change in the key assumptions that would cause the carrying value of goodwill to fall below its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

14. QOtherintangible assats

Computer Development

software costs Tota!
Group £000 £000 EOCO
Coast '
At 28 May 2017 and 29 May 2017 15,361 34,638 50,000
Additions 1,453 5,387 6,840
Exchange differences {85} - {85)
Disposals (3) {5,220) {5,223}
At 3 fune 2018 and 4 June 2018 : 16,725 34,806 51,532
additions ’ 1,832 6,962 8,894
Exchange differences 88 - 88
Reclassifications 4% - 49
Dispozals {178} - {365) {1,143)
At 2 une 2019 18,617 40,803 59,420
Accumulated amortisation
Af 28 May 2017 and 29 May 2017 (9,430) {27,653 (37,083}
Amortisation charge . (1,419) {4,130) {5,549)
Exchange differences 84 - 84
Disposals 3 5,208 5,211
At 3 lune 2018 and 4 June 2018 {10,762} {26,575 (37,337)
Amortisation charge {1,608} {5.341) {6,949)
Exchange differences : (85) - (85)
Disposals 178 777 955
At 2 June 2019 (12,277) {31,139} {43,416)
Net beak amount
3 June 2018 5,964 8,231 14,195
2 June 2019 6,340 9,664 16,004

Amortisation of £5,598,000 (2018: £4,341,000) has been charged in cost of sales and £1,351,000 (2018: £1,208,000) in operating expenses.

The net baok ameunt of internaily generated intangible assets is £14,117,000 {2018: £12,147,000) and acquired intangible assats is £1,887,000 (2018:
£2,048,000). The net bock amount of internally generated development costs is £€7,789,000 {2018 £7,520,000), £6,985,000 {2018: £7,202,009) is capitalised
salary casts

Salary costs of £5,161,000 (2018: £4,308,000) were capitalised as part of development costs and £400,000 (2018: £298,000) were capitalised as part of
computer software during the period.

Assets in the course of devalopment, and not amartised, amount to £311,000 {2018 £3,972,000) with current and prior period amounts both being included
within computer software. The prior period totalincluded the ERP system under development on which amortisation has now commenced.

Assets with cost and ret book value of £43,000 have bean reclassifiad from tangible computer equipment ta computer software during the year.

The company had no gther intangible assets at either period end.
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15. Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Plant and Fixtures

land and equipment and Moulding

buildings and vehicles fittings tools Total
Group . £000 £000 £000 £060 £000
Cost
At 28 May 2017 and 29 May 2017 16,620 19,276 21,374 27,895 85,165
Additions 2,552 6,781 2,146 3,113 14,632
Exchange differences - {120) 242} - (362)
Uispasals - {126) (355} - (481)
At 3 June 2018 and 4 June 2018 19,212 25,811 22,923 31,008 48,954
Additions 2,450 5,247 2,708 3,833 14,238
Exchange differences - 175 442 1 618
Reclassifications (BE) {35} 72 - (49)
Dispaosals {16} {459) {630} - {1,105)
At 2 June 2019 21,560 30,739 25,515 34,842 112,656
Accumnufated depreciation
At 28 May 2017 and 29 May 2017 (5,797) {15,660Q) {17,866} {23,710) {83,033)
charge for the period . (378) {1,812) {1,563) (2,851) {6,614)
Exchange differences - 116 188 - 304
Reversal of impairment - 1 19 - 20
Disposals - 116 325 - 441
At 3 June 2018 and 4 June 2018 (6,175) {17,239) {18,897) {26,571} {68,852)
Charge for the period (868} {2,881} {1,691) (3,501) (8,941)
Exchange differences - ) (150} {322} {1} {473)
Ichpairment charge Co- - (8} - (8}
Dispasals 7 450 494 - 951
At 2 fune 2019 {7,036} {19,820} {20,424) {30,073) {77,353}
Net book amount
3June 2018 13,037 8,572 4,026 4,437 30,072
2 lune 2019 14,524 10,919 5,091 4,769 35,303

Depraciation expense of £6,394,000 {2018: £4,254,000) has been charged in cost of sales, £1,418,000 (2018: £1,386,000) in selling costs and £1,125,000
{2018: £974,000) in administrative expenses.

Freehold land amounting to £5,569,000 {2018: £5,569,000) has not been depreciated.

Assets in the course of construction, and not depreciated, amount to £5,490,000 (2018: £3,9561,000). £1,242,000 {2018: £785,000) of these are included in
maulding tools, £1,458,000 (2018; £1,855,000} is included in glant and equipment and vehicles, £2,502,000 (2018: £874,000) is included in freehold fand and
buildings, end £288,000 {2018: £443,000) is included in fixtures and fittings above

Animpairment of £8,000 (2018: reversal of impairment of £20,000) relates to fixtures and fittings within loss making retail stores being written down to
estimated value in use, This has been charged (2018: credited) to selling costs,

included within the reclassifications are assats with cost and net book value of £49,000 which have been reclassified from tangible computer equipment to
computer software during the year. ’

The Company held no property, plant and equipment at either period end
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

16. Investments in subsidiaries

2019 2018
Company £000 £300
Shares in group undertakings - cost .
Beginning of period and end of period 30,584 30,584

Investments in graup undertakings are stated at cast less any provision far impairment.

A list of subsidiary undertakings is given below.

Interests in group undertakings

Praportion of nominal
value of issued shares

GmbH

AB

Limited

Limttad

held by:
Description of Subsidiary .

Name of undertaking Registered address of undertaking shares held ~Company  company principal business activity

Games Workshop timited willow Road, Lenton, Nottingham, £1 ordinary 100% Manufacturer, distributor and

NGT7 2WS, UK retailer of games and miniatures

Games Woarkshap Retail Inc. 6211 East Holmes Road, Memphis, $1 commen 100% Distributor and retailer of games

Tennessee, 38141, USA stack and miniatures

Gamas Workshop [Queen 3251 Yonge Street, Toronto, Ontario, Can $1 100% Retailer of games and miniatures
Street) Limited M4N 215, Canada

EURL Games Warkshop 10, Rue Joseph Serlin, Lyon, 53601, France euro 1 100%  Retaiter of games and miniatures

Games Warkshop 5L Aragdn 208-210, plantad puerta 1 08011 euro 1 100% Retailer of games and miniatures
Barcelona, Espana

Games Workshop 0z Pty 23 Liverpool Street, ingleburn, Aus 51 100% Distributor and retailer of games

Limited New South Wales 2585, Australia and miniatures

Games Workshop Oeutschland Am Wehrhahn 32, 40211 Disseldorf, eurol 100%  Retailer of games and miniatures
Deutschland

Games Workshop Limited 80 Queen Street, Auckland, 1010, NZ S1 100% Retailer of games and miniatures
New Zealand

Garmnes Workshop Italia SRL Viate Castro Preterio 122, 00185 Roma, eurol 100% Retailer of games and miniatures
Italia

Games Workshop Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingham, £1 ordinary 100% Holding company far overseas

International Limited NG7 ZWS5, UK subsidiary companies

Games Warkshop US Limited willow Road, Lenton, Nottingham, £1 ordinary 100% Holding company for US subsidiary

NGT 2WS, UK companies

Gammes Workshop US Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingham, E1 ordinary 100% Intermediary holding campany for

{Holdings) Limited NG7 2WS, UK US subsidiary companies

Games Workshop Good Hobby 153-15% Xujizhui Road, Huangpu Area, Qwners capital 100% Distributor and retailer of games

{Shanghai} Carnmercial Co. Ltd Shanghai, 200021, China and miniatures

Games Workshop Trustee willow Road, Lenton, Nottingham, £1 ordinary 100% Trustee
Limited NG7 2WS5, UK

Games Waorkshop Stackhalm Master Samulesgatan 67, Stockholm 11121, SEK 100 100% Retailer of games and mintatures

Sweden ’

Games \Warkshop Hong Kong 3806 Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, HK 51 ordinary 100% Oistributor and retailer of games

Wanchai, Hong Kong and miniatures

Games Warkshop Hobby Pte. 55 Tiong Bahru Road, #01-47, Tiong Bahru  5G $1 ordinary 100% Distributor and retailer of games

Estate, 160055, Singapore and miniatures

Games Workshop Malaysia Level 10 Menara LGB, 1 Jalan Wan Kadir, MYR 1 ordinary 100% Distributar and retailer of games

Sdn. 8hd. Taman Tun Dr Ismail, 60000 Kuala Lumpur, and riniatures
Malaysia

Games Workshop Interactive Willow Road, Lentan, Nattingham, £1 ordinary 100% Dormant
Limited NGT7 2WS, UK

wWarhammer Online Limited willow Road, Lenton, Nottingham, El ordinary 100% Daormant
NGQ7 2WS5, UK

Citadel Miniaturas Limited Willow Road, Lenton, Nottingham, £1 ordinary 100% Dormant

NG7 2WS§, UK :

All of the above entities are included in the consolidated financial statements for the Group and 100% of the voting rights of all entities is heid.

All of the above campanies operate principally in their cauntry of incorporation ar registration.

The directors consider the value of the investments is supported by the underlying assets of the relevant subsidiary.
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17. Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a |egally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liahilities and when the

deferred taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The amaunts are-as follows:

Group Campany
Restated
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Deferred tax assets:
- deferred tax asset to ba recovered after more than 12 months 6,442 1,961 1 1
- deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months 2,140 3,743 - -
8,582 5,704 1
The gross movement on the deferred tax account is as fallows:
Graup Company
Restated
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 EOQC
Beginning of period 5,704 5399 1 29
Credited/{charged) to the inceme statement 2,618 219 - (28)
Charged to opening retained earnings - {397} - -
Credited directly to equity 224 1,050 - -
Exchange differences 36 (57} - -
End of period 8,582 5,704 1 1
Analysis of the movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows:
. Accelerated Profit Losses available Restated Restated
depreciation in stock for offset Other Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £060
At 28 May 2017 and 29 May 2017 1,697 1,475 934 1,293 5,399
Credited/(charged} to the income statement 162 587 {561) 31 219
Charged to opaning retained earnings - - - (307} {307}
Credited directly to equity - - - 1,050 1,050
Exchange differences . {5} - (45) (7} (57)
At 3 June 2018 and 4 june 2018 1,854 2,062 328 1,46G 5,704
{Charged)/credited to the incoma statement {340} 1,896 27 1,035 2,618
Credited directly to eguity . - - 224 224
Exchange differences - (5} - (15) 58 36
At 2 lune 2019 1,508 3,958 340 2,775 8,582

Other deferred tax assets include deferred tax on adjustments for inventory provisions of £497,000 {2018: £330,000), tax relief on exercise of share options
of £1,656,000 (2018: £1,374,000) and tax relief on intangible assets of £153,000 (2018: £173,000), being net of a deferred tax liability arising on the
restatement for IFRS 15 'Revenue fram contracts with customers’ of £nil (2018; £855,000).

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of tax lasses and temporary differences to the extent that the raalisation of the related tax benafit through
future taxable profits is prohable. This is based on a review of the track record of profitability in the country concernad. There was no unrecegnised

defarred tax at 2 June 2019 or 3 June 2018 in either the Group or the Company.

The Group did not obtain a current tax benefit from previously unrecognised tax losses in either of the periods presented.

Accelerated

depreciation Other Total
Company £0Q0 £000 £000
At 28 May 2017 and 29 May 2017 1 28 29
Charged to the income statement - {28} {28}
At 3 june 2018 1 - 1
Charged to the Income statement - - -
At 2 June 2019 1 - 1
18. Inventaries
_ 2019 2018
Group £300 £000
Raw materials 807 425
Wark in progress 949 873
Finished goods and geods for resale 22,436 18,861
24,192 20,159

The Group holds ne inventaries at fair value less costs to sell.

During the period, the Group utilised an inventory provision of £5,257,000 (2018
income statement.

The Company hoids no inventories at either period end.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

19. Trade and other receivables

Group Company
Restated

2019 2018 2018 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade receivables - 6,650 5,702 - -
Less allowance for expected credit losses {204) (98) - - -
Trade receivahles — net 6,446 5,604 - B
Prepayments and accrued income 8,428 9,224 65 35
Other receivables 7,007 2,750 - -
Raceivables from group companies - - 2,563 1,471
LOans ta group companies - - 3,958 3,954
Tatal trade and other receivables 21,881 ' 17,578 6,586 5,460
Non-current receivables:
Prepayments and accrued income 50 732 - -
Other receivables 3,035 1,344 - -
Lgans to group companies - - 3,958 3,954
Nan-current portion i 1,085 2,076 3,958 3,954
Current partion 18,796 15,502 2,628 1,506

Included within prepayments and accrued income are contract assets relating to uninvoiced royalty income amounting to £822,000 {2018: £2,855,000). The
effective interest rate on non-current loans to related parties is charged at LUIBOR plus 1% in both periads. All non-current receivables are due within five
years of the balance sheet date.

Trade receivables are recorded at amortised cost, less allowance for expected credit losses. The fair value of trade and other receivables does not differ
materially frorm the book value, There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the Graup has a large number of
customers which are internationally dispersed. The maximum expgsure to credit risk at the balance sheet date’is the carrying value of each class of asset
atiove. The Group does not hald any callateral over these balances.

Loss allowances are established using the IFRS 9 simplified approach te expected credit losses. A fifetime ioss allowance is calculated based on historica!
credit losses and is applied to trade receivables held across the Group. The ageing analysis of the Group’s past due trade receivables is as follows:

2019 2018
Gross value Loss allowance MNet Gross value Loss allowance Net
Group £000 £000 £000 , £000 £000 £000
Up to 3 months past due 1,196 {8} 1,188 695 (2) 693
3 to 12 months past due 162 {157) 5 85 {81} 4
Over 12 manths past due 30 {30) - 15 {15]) -
1,388 {195) 1,193 735 (98) 697

In addition to the abave there is z loss allowance of £3,000 against current deht (2018 £m11).

Loss allowance against trade receivables
Movements on the loss allowance against trade receivables are as follows:

Group £000
At 28 May 2017 and 29 May 2017 (as restated) 179
Charge for the period 123
Exchange differences (3)
Receivables written off during the period as uncoliectible {201)
At 3 June 2018 and 4 June 2018 (as restated} 98
Charge for the period 227
Exchange differences ia
Receivables written off during the perind as uncollectitle {135}
At 2 June 2019 204

Pricr pericd amounts have been restated to remove credit nate provisions from loss allowances above. The Impact at 28 May 2017 is a reducticn in the loss
aliowance of £166,000, and at 3 June 2018 a reduction in the loss allowance of £287,000.

The carrying amaunts of the Group's trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Restated

2019 2018

£000 £000

Sterling 9,211 7,047
Euro 4,160 2,589
us dollar 5,479 5,710
Other currencies 3,031 2,232
Total trade and other receivables 21,881 17,578
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20. Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
2419 2018 2019 2018
£000 ' £000 £600 ECOO
Cash at bank and in hand 29,371 28,335 521 2,289
Short term bank deposits - 210 - -
Lash and cash equivalents 23,371 2B 545 521 2,288

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are repayatle on demand.
There were no utilised borrawing facilities at 2 une 2019 or 3 June 2018,

21. Financial risk facters
The Group’s activities expase it to a variety of financial risks: market risk {inciuding foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk, capital risk and
credit risk. The Group's financial risk management objective is to understand the nature and impact of the financial risks and exposures facing the business.

Fareign currency risk
The majority of the Group's business is transacted in sterling, euras and US doliars. The principal currency of the Group is sterfing.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk principally via:

- transactional exposure arising from the future sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the

transacting company.
- translation exposure arising on investrnents in foreign operations, where the nat assets are denominated in 3 currency other than sterling.

- ioans to non-UK subsidiaries.

The Group does not use foreign currency borrowings or farward foreign currency contracts to hedge foreign currency risk. The level of the Group’s expasure
to farelgn currency risk is regularly reviewed by the Group’s finance director and the Group’s treasury policies, including hedging poticies, are reviewed to
ensure they remain appropriate,

Foreign exchange sensitivity
The impact on the Group’s financial assets and liabilities from fareign currency volatility is shown in the sensitivity analysis below.

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared based on all material financial assets and liabilities held at the balance sheet date and does not reflect all the
changes in revenue or expenses that may result from changing exchange rates. The analysis is prepared for the euro and US doltar given that these represent

the major fareign currencies in which financial assets and liabilities are denominated. The sensitivities shown act as a reasonable benchmark considering the |

movements in currencies over the last two financial periods.

The following assumptions were made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

- financia! assets and liabilities (including financial instruments} are anly cansidered sensitive to movements in foreign currency exchange rates where
they are not in the functional currency of the entity that holds them. '

- transiation of results of averseas subsidiaries is excluded.

Using the above assumptions, the following table shows the sensitivity of the Group’s income statement to movements in foreign exchange rates on US
dollar and euro financial assets and liabilities:

Restated

2019 2018

Income gain Income gain

£000 £000

15% appreciation of the US doliar (2018: 15%) 1,914 1,166
15% appreciation of the eura {2018: 15%) 769 31

A depreciation of the stated currencies would have an equal and eppasite effect.
There is no impact on equity gains or losses.

interest rate risk
The Group no longer has a significant exposure to interest rate risk and hence no interest rate sensitivity has been shown.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions as well as cradit exposures to independent retailers.

The Group controls credit risk from 2 treasury perspective by only entering into tramsactions involving financiai instrumeats with authorised counter-parties
with a credit rating of atleast ‘A", and by ensuring that such pesitions are monitored regularly. Credit risk on cash and short term deposits is limited because
the caunter-parties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the Group has a large number of customers that are internationally
dispersed. Policies are also in place to ensure the wholesale sales of products are made to customers with an approprizte credit history and credit limits are
periadically reviewed. Amounts recaverable from customers are reviewed on an ongoing basis and appropriate provision made for bad and doubtfuf debts
{note 19). Provision requirements are determined with reference to ageing of invoices, credit history and other available informatian.

Sales made through our awn retail stares or our glebal web stores are made in cash or with major credit cards.
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21. Financial risk factors continued

Capital risk

The capital structure of the Group cansists of net funds (see note 29) and owners’ equity {see notes 25 to 27). The Group manages its capital to safeguard
the ability to operate as a going concern and to optimise returns to sharehalders. The Greup's objective i not to use Jong term debt to finance the business.
Qverdraft facilities will be used to finance the warking capital cycle if required.

The Group Manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes to ecenamic conditions and its strategic objectives. Te maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, buy back shares and cancel them or issue new shares. The Group
uses return on capital employed to assess capitat asset perfermance.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity is managed by maintaining sufficient cash balances to meet working capital needs.

Cash flow requirements are menitored by short and long term rolling forecasts bath within the loce! operating units and far the everall graup. In addition,
the Group's liguidity management palicy involves projecting cash flows in the major currencies and considers the level of liquid assets necessary to meet
these, monitoring working capital levels and liquidity ratios.

The undiscounted contractual cash flows of the Group's financizl liabilities, including interest charges where applicable, are shawn below, All trade payables
are contractually due within 12 months and therefore the fair values do not differ frem their carrying values.

2019 2018
Betweaean Between Mare Between Between Maore
Within land 2 2and5 than Within, land?2 2and5 than
1 year yaars years S years 1year years years Svyears
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £0600 £OCO
Trade and ather payables 13,127 - - - 17,744 - - -
£ravisions for property 230 38 41 - 430 20 10 -
13,357 38 41 - 18,174 20 14 -
Within Within
1year 1lyear
2019 2018
Company £000 £000
Trade and other payahles 353 187
Financial instruments by category
Group Company
Loans and receivables Loans and receivables
Restated
2019 2018 2019 018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets as per balance sheet
Trade receivables 6,446 5,604 -
Accrued tncome 822 2,855 -
QOther receivables 7,007 2,750 - -
Receivahles from graup companies - - 2,563 1,471
Loans to group companies - - 3,958 3,954
Cash and cash equivalents 29,371 28,545 521 2,289
Total 43,645 39,754 7,042 7,714
Group Campany

Financial liabitities at
amortised cost

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

2019 2018 2019 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial liahilities as per balance shaet
Trade payables 7,098 9,129 1 ]
Other payables 2,718 5,055 2 2
Accruals 3,312 3,520 143 126
Payables to 210Up companies - - 307 30
Total 13,128 17,744 353 167

Deferred income baiances and other taxes and social security payables have been excluded fram the abowve as they are nat financial liabilities.
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22. Trade and other payables

Group Company
Restated
2019 - 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current
Trade payables 7,098 9,123 1 9
Other taxes and social security 1,159 1,003 96 28
Other payables 5,802 5,095 2 2
Accruals 4,184 4,352 143 126
Deferred income 956 719 - -
Payables to groug comganies - - 207 30
) 19,199 20,298 449 195
The fair value of trade and other payabies does not materially differ from the book value.
23. Other nen-current liabilities
Group Company
2018 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £CG00
Accruals 1,010 667 1 -
The fair value of other non-current liabilities does not materially differ from the boak value.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables and other non-current liabilities are denominated in the following currencies:
Restated
20138 2018
£000 £000
Sterling 11,163 11,258
Euro 2,216 2,493
Us dollar 5,021 5,517
Other currencies 1,309 1,691
Total trade and other payables and other non-current liabitities 20,209 20,965
24. Provisians for liabilities and charges
Analysis of total provisions:
Group Company
2019 - 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current 919 £91 439 -
Nan-current 844 537 1 -
1,763 1,228 50 -
Employee
benefits Froparty Total
Graup £000 £000 £000
At 4 June 2018 768 450 1,228
Charged/(cradited) to the income statement:
- Additiona! provisions 1,084 308 1,372
- Unused amounts reversed (337} {185) (522)
Exchange diferences 3 2 s
Utilised (44) (276) {320)
At 2 lune 2019 1,454 309 1,763

The Company had an employee benefit provisfon of £50,000 at the year end, arising fram the extansion during the year of the [eng service incentive scheme
1o 20 and 30 years of employment {2012 £nil). The fair vatue of provisions does not differ from the book value.

Employee benefits

The Group operates a long service incentive scheme under which employees receive a one off additicnal holiday entitiement of two weeks when they reach
10, 20 and 30 years of employment {Veterans scheme}. The cost of this benefit is accrued over the pericd of employment based on expected staff retention

rates and the anticipated employment costs and are utilised once an employee reaches 10, 20 or 30 years of emplayment.

Praperty provisians

Property pravisians relate to property dilapidations and to committed costs outstanding under oneraus or vacant fease commitments and will diminish over
the iives of the underlying leases. The above provision is expected to be utilised by 2021 The estirmated liability is discounted to its present value using &

discount rate of (.52% (2018: 0.72%).
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25. Share capital

Called up Retained
Number of share earnings Total
shareg capital {nate 27} aquity
{thousands) £0Q0 £000 £000
At 29 May 2017 32,135 1,607 10,593 12,206
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme 214 10 972 982
At 3 June 2018 32,345 1,617 11,571 13,188
Shares issued under employee sharesave scheme © 153 ! 710 718
At 2 lune 2019 - 32,502 1,625 12,281 13,906
During the period 153,160 ordinary shares were issued (2018: 213,996). The total authorised number of shares is 42,000,000 shares (2018: 42,000,000
shares) with a par value of Sp per share {2018; Sp per share). Ali issued shares are fully paid. '
26. Other reserves
2019 2018
Capital Capital
redemption Translation Other redemption Translation Other
. reserye reserve reserve Tota! resarve resarve reserye Total
Group £000 £000 £0600 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Beginning of period 101 4,926 {1,050} 3,977 101 5,279 {1,050} 4,330
Exchange differences on
trans!ation of foreign operations - 708 - 708 - {353) - {353)
£nd of period 101 5,634 {1,050} 4,685 101 4,926 {1,050} 31,977

The other reserve was created on flotation following a payment to the previcus holders of the Company’s ordinary shares.

As at 2 June 2019, the Company's capital redemption reserve was £101,000 (2018: £101,000). The Company had no other reserves in addition to the capital

redemption reserve at either periad end,

27. Retained earnings

Restated

Group Company

£000 £000

At 28 May 2017 and 29 May 2017 50,164 26,754
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 56,455 38,494
Current tax an share cptions 686 -
Deferred tax on share options 1,050 -
Share-based paymaents 204 204
Dividends to Company shareholders {40,602) {40,602)
At3 June 2018 and 4 June 2018 70,957 24,850
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 65,821 48,273
Current tax on share opticns 818 -
Deferred tax on snara eptions 224 -
Share-based payments 339 139
Dividends to Company shareholders (50,277) 150,277)
87,882 23,185

At 2 lune 2019
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28. Recanciliation of profit/{loss) to net cash fram operating activities

Group Company
Restated
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000C
Operating profit/(loss) 81,199 74,319 {2,798} {1,844)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8,941 6,614 - -
Net reversal of impairment of property, plant and equipment 8 {20} - -
{Loss an disposal of property, plant and equipment {see below) 144 40 - -
Loss on disposal of intangible assets {see below)} 188 12 - -
Amortisation of capitalised development costs 5341 4,130 - -
Amartisation of ather intangibles 1,608 1,418 - -
Share-based payments 339 204 - -
Dividend incame frem investments in subsidiary undertakings - - 50,500 40,000
Changes in working capital:
- Increase in inventories (3,357} {7,948) - -
- {Increase}/decrease in trade and other receivables (4.021) (3,417} {334} 1,504
- {Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (2,149) 6,924 319 (398)
- In¢rease in pravisians 535 55 50 -
Net cash from operating activities 88,776 22,332 47,737 39,263
in tha ¢ash flow statament, proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipmeant comprise:
2019 2018
E£000 £000
Net book amount 154 40
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment {143} {40}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 10 .

The Company sold no property, plant and equipment during either period.

The Group disposed of intangible assets with net bock amount of £188,000 {2018: £12,000}. There were no proceeds on dispasal in gither period and hence

2 loss on disposal equivalent to the net beok value was recordad.
The Company sold no ather intangibles during either period.

29, Analysis of net funds

Exchange
2018 Cash flow movement 2019
Graup £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 28,545 540 286 26,371
Net funds 28,545 540 286 25,371
Exchange
2018 Cash flow maovement 2019
Company £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hard 2,28¢ {1,768) - 521
Net funds ) 2,289 {1,768 - 521
30. Commitments
Capital cammitments
Cagital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but notyat incurred is as follows:
2019 2018
Group £000 £000
2,864 2,665

Property, plant and equipment

The Company had no capital cosnmitments at either period end.

69 Games Workshop Group PLC



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

30. Commitments continued

Qperating lease commitments
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

2019 2018
Other Other

Group Retail stores property Other Retail stores property Other
£000 £000 . £000 £000 £000 £600
Within 2 year 8,540 569 63 8,226 513 73
Between 1 and 5 years inclusive 13,455 1,451 28 13,823 1,709 41
In aver 5 yaars 622 - - 284 - -
22,617 2,020 91 22,333 2,222 114

The Company has no operating lease commitments at either period end.

inventory purchase commitments

2019 2018
Group £000 £000
Finished goods 2,632 2,587
components 1,237 3,625
Raw materials 562 304

The Company had no inventory purchase commitments at either periad end.

pension arrangements
The Group and Company gperate defined ¢ontribution sghemes. Commitments in respect of pensions are included within prepayments and atgruals.

31. Contingencies
The Company provides indemnities to third parties in respect of contracts regarding their use of the Group’s intellectuzl praperty, under commercial
terms in the normal course of business.

The Company has also guarantead the bank overdrafts of certain Group undertakings. There were no amaunts outstanding under these arrangements at
either period end.

For the period ended 2 June 2019, the subsidiary companies listed below are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit
of individual financial statements by virtue of secticn 479A. As a result, the Company guarantees all outstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary companies
are subject.

Country of incorparation

name of undertaking or registration Company registration number
Games Waorkshop Limited England and Wales 1467092
Games Workshap International Limited England and Wales 2524330
Games Workshap US Limited England and Wales 7462905
Games Warkshop US (Hafdings) Limited England and Wales 4428814

The Group has provided a guarantee of £739,492 to the Canada Revanua Agency in relation to the non-resident sales tax returns of Games Workshop Limited.
32. Related party transactions

During the period the Company provided management and similar services to Games Workshap Limited, a subsidiary undertaking,

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consalidation for the Graup.

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are shown below:

2018 2018

Subsidiary Nature of transaction . £000 £00C
Games Workshop Limited Recharges 120 122
Dividend receivable 48,000 35,000

Garmes Warkshog International Limited Dividend receivable 2,500 5,600
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32, Related party transactions continued

Receivables/(payables) outstanding between the Company and its subsidiaries are shown below:

Amount owed by subsidiaries

Amount awed to subsidiaries

2019 2018 2019 2018
Subsidiary £000 £000 £000 £460
Games Workshop Limited 2,549 1,499 - -
Games Workshop Retail Inc. 4 - - {7)
EURL Games Workshop 2 1 - -
Games Workshop Hong Kong Limited - {121) -
Games Workshop Oz Pty Limited - - {29) 3}
Games Workshep Deutschland GmbH -] 2 - -
Games Workshop italia SRL 2 - - -
Games Workshop {Queen Street) Limited . - (10} (8)
Garnes Workshop Stackholm AB - - (47} {12}

2,563 1,502 {207} (3Q)

Man-current loans outstanding between the Company and its subsidiaries are shown below:

Amaunt awed by subsidiaries

2019 2018
Subsidiary £000 £000
Games Woarkshop Interactive Limited 6,779 6,779
Less provision for impairment {6,779} {6,773}
Games Workshop Limited 3,900 3,900
Games Workshop Hong Kong Limited 56 52
Games Warkshop Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. 2 2

3,958 3,954
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

Restated

2013 2018 2017 2016 2015

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 256,574 221,304 158,114 118,069 119,132
Operating profit — pre-exceptional items and royalties receivable 69,834 64,702 30,832 10,921 14,937
Exceptional items - . - - 42
Royalties receivable 11,365 9,617 7,491 5,939 1,498
Operating profit 81,199 74,319 38,323 16,860 16,477
Finance incame 102 90 a7 93 109
Finance costs (5) {139) 7 (5) {1)
Profit before taxation 81,296 74,270 38,403 16,948 16,585
Income tax expense (15,475} (14,815) {7,856} {3,452} (4,328)
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 65,821 59,455 30,547 13,496 12,257
Basic earnings per ordinary share 202.9p 184.3p 95.1p 42.1p 38.3p
Pre-exceptional earnings per ordinary share 202.9p 184.3p 95.1p 42.1p 38.2p

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Annual generai meeting
Announcement of haif year results
Financial year end

Announcement of final results
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the annual general meeting of Games Workshop Group PLC {the "Coampany’} will be held at the
Company's registered office, Willow Road, Lentan, Nottingham, NG7 2WS at 10am on 18 September 2019 for the folfowing
purposes:

Ordinary business
As ordinary business to consider and, if thought fit, ta pass the following resolutions 1 to 13 as ordinary resolutions:

Resolution 1
To receive the Company's annual financial statements far the year ended 2 lune 2019 together with the directors' report, the
remuneration report and the independent auditors’ report on those financial statements, the auditable part of the remuneration

report and the directors’ report.

Resolution 2
To re-elect K D Rountree as a director.

Resalution 3
To re-elect R F Tongue as a director.

Resolution 4
Tore-elect N J Donaldson as a director.

Resolution 5
To re-elect £ O'Ocnnel! as a director.

Resolution 6
To re-elect ] R A Brewis as a director.

Resolution 7
Ta elect K E Marsh as a director.

Resolution 8
To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as independent auditors ta hold office until the conclusion of the next general meeting

at which financial statements are laid by the Company.

Resalution 9
To authorise the directors to fix the auditors’ remuneration.

Resalution 10
To approve the remuneration report {excluding the directors’ remuneration policy set out on pages 29 to 33 for the year ended 2 June

2019).

Specia!l business
Tao consider and, if thaught fit, pass the following resalutions, of which resolution 11 will be proposed as an ordinary resclution and
resolutions 12 and 13 will be proposed as specia!) resolutians.

Resolution 11

That the directors of the Company be generally and unconditionally authorised in zccordance with section 551 of the Companies Act
2006 {the ‘Act’) to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot Relevant Securities {as defined below) up to an aggregate nominal
amount of £536,294 provided that this authority shall, unless renewed, varied or revoked by the Company, expire on 17 December
2020 or, if earlier, the date of the next annual general meeting of the Company save that the Company may, before such expiry,

make offers or agreements which would or might require Relevant Securities to be allotted and the directors may allot Relevant
Securities in pursuaﬁce of such offer or agreement notwithstanding that the autharity conferred by this resolution has expired. This
resolution revokes and replaces all unexercised authorities previausly granted to the directors to allot Relevant Securities but without
prejudice to any aflotment of shares or grant of rights already made, offered ar agreed ta be made pursuant to such authorities.

Relevant Securities means: (i) shares in the Company ather than shares aliotted pursuant to an employee share scheme {as defined
by section 1166 of the Act), a right to subscribe for shares in the Company where the grant of the right itself constituted a Relevant
Security or a right to canvert securities into shares in the Company where the grant of the right itself constituted a Relevant Security;
{ii} any right to subscribe for or te convert any security inta shares in the Company other than rights to subscribe for or convert any
security into shares allotted pursuant ta an employee share scheme (as defined by section 1166 of the Act). References to the
allotment of Relevant Securities in this resolution include the grant of such rights.
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Notes

10.
11

12,

13.

14,

5.

16.

Only those members registered on the Company's register of members at 6.30 pm on 16 September 2019 or, if this meeting is adjourned, at
6.30pm on the day two days prior to the adjourned meeting, shali be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting.

if you are a member of the Campany at the time set out in note 1 ahave, you are entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or any of your rights to
attend, speak and vote at the meeting and you should have received a proxy form with this document. You can anly appoint & proxy using the
pracedures set out in these notes and the notes to the praxy form.

A proxy does not need to be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting to represent you. Details of how to appomt the chairman of
the meeting or another person as your praxy using the proxy form are set out in the notes ta the proxy farm. IF you wish your proxy to speak on
your behalf at the meeting you will need to appoint your own choice of praxy {not the chairman) and give your instructions directly to them,

Yau may appeint more than ane proxy provided each proxy is appointed to exercise rights attached to different shares. You may not appoint more
than one proxy to exercise rights attached to any one share. Details of how to appoint more than one proxy are set out in the notes to the proxy
form.

The notes to the proxy form explain how to direct your proxy how to vote on each reselution or withhold their vote. A vote withheld is not a vote in
law, which means that the vote will not be counted in the calculation of votes for or against the resolution. If no voting indication is given, your
proxy wil! vote or abstain from vating at his or her discretion. Your proxy will vate {or abstain from voting} as he or she thinks fit in relation to any
other matter which is put before the meeting.

Ta appoint a proxy using the proxy form, the form must be completed and signed and sent or delivered to the Company's registrars, Equiniti
Limited, at Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, BN99 6DA 50 as to be received no later than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the
meeting. Any power of attorney or any other authority under which the proxy form is signed {ar a duly certified capy of such power or authority)
must be included with the proxy form. in the case of a member which is a company, the proxy form must be executed under its common seal ar
signed on its behalf by an officer of the Company or an attorney for the Company.

In the case of joint holders, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appaint 2 proxy, only the appointment submitted by the most
senior holder will be accepted. Seniority is determined by the order in which the names of the joint holders appear in the Company's register of
members in respect of the joint holding (the first-named being the most senior).

To change your proxy instructions simply submit a new proxy appointment using the methods set out above. The cut-aff time for receipt of proxy
appeintments (see above) aiso applies in relation to amended instructions; any amended proxy appointment received after the relevant cut-off
time wiil be disregarded. If you submit more than one valid proxy appointment, the appointment received tast before the latest time for the receipt
of proxies will take precedence,

In order to revoke 3 proxy instruction you will need to inform the Company by sending a signed hard copy netice clearly stating your intention ta
revoke your proxy appointment to the Company's registrars, Equiniti Limited, at Aspect House, Spencer Raad, Lancing, BN39 6DA. In the case of a
member which is 8 company, the revocation notice must be executed under its common seal ar signed on its behslf by an officer of the Company ar
an attorney for the Company. Any pawer of attorney or any other authority under which the revocation notice is signed (or a duly certified copy of
such power or gutharity) must be included with the revocation notice. The revocation notice must be received by the Company's registrars, Equiniti
Limited, at Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lantcing, BN92 6DA no later than the time fixed for holding the meeting. If you attempt ta revoke your
proxy appeintment but the revocation is received after the time specified then, subject to the paragraph directly below, your proxy appeintment
will remain valid.

Appointment of a praxy does not preclude you from attending the meeting and voting in person.

A corporation which is a member can appoint one or mare corporate representatives wha may exercise, on its behalf, all its powers as 2 member
provided that no more than one corporate representative exercises powers over the same share.

As at 29 July 2019 {being the last practical date prior to the publication of this notice}, the Company's issued share capital comprised 32,502,716
ordinary shares of 5 pence each. Each ordinary share carries the right to one vote at a general meeting of the Company and, therefare, the total
number of vating rights in the Company as at 29 July 2019 is 32,502,716. The website referred to in note 21 wili include information on the number
of shares and vating rights.

If you are 3 persor who has been nominated under section 145 of the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy information rights {a 'Nominated Person') yau
may have a right under an agreement betwean you and the member of the Company who has nominated you (3 'Ralevant Member') ta have
information rights to be appointed or to have sameone else appointed as a proxy for the meeting. If you either de not have such a right or if you
have such a right but do net wish to exercise it, you may have a right under an agreement between you and the Relevant Member to give
instructions to the Relevant Member as to the exercise of voting rights. Your main point of contact in terms of your investment in the Company
remains the Refevant Member (or, perhaps, your custodian or broker) and you should continue ta contact them (and not the Company) regarding
any changes or queries relating to your personal details and your interest in the Company {including any administrative matters). The anly
exception to this is where the Company expressly requests & response from you.

You may not use any electronic address provided either in this notice of annual general meeting or any related documents {including the proxy
form), to communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated.

Under section 338 of the Companies Act 20086, a member or members meeting the qualification criteria set out at note 18 below, may, subject to
conditions, require the Company to give ta members notice of a resclution which may properly be moved and is Intended ta be moved at that
meeting. The conditions are that: (a} the resclution must not, if passed, be ineffective (whether by reason of inconsistency with any enactment cr
the Company’s constitution ar otherwise}; (b} the resolution must not be defamatoary of any person, frivofous or vexatious; {c) the request may be
in hard copy form or in efectronic farm (see note 19 pelow), must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given by either setfing out the
resolution in full or, if supporting a resolution sent by another member, clearly identifying the resolution which is being supported, must be
authenticated by the persan or persons making it (see nate 19 belaw}; and must be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the
meeting to which the request relates,

Under section 338A of the Companies Act 2006, 2 member or members meeting the qualification criteria set out at note 18 below, may, subject to
canditions, require the Company ta include in the business ta be dealt with at the meeting a matter (other than a proposed resolution} which may
praperly be inciuded in the business {a matter of business). The conditions are that: (2} the matter of business must nat be defamatory of any
person, frivolous or vexatious, {b} the request may be in hard copy form or in electronic form (see note 19 below}), must identify the matter of
business by setting it out in full or, if supporting a statement sent by another member, clearly identify the matter of business which is being
supported, must be accompanied by 3 statement setting out the grounds for the request, must be authenticated by the persons ar person making it
(see note 19 below) and must be received by the Compary nat later than b weeks befare the meeting to which the request relates.
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Resolutions 8 and 9 — Re-appointment of auditars and auditoers’ remuneration

The Company is required to appaint an auditor at each meeating at which financial statements are presented and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have
indicated their willingness to continue in office. Accordingly, resclutions 8 and S, subject tc the approval of the sharehalders of the Company, re-appoints
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditars of the Company and authorises the directors to determine the remuneration of the auditors.

Resolution 10 — Directors’ remuneration
Shareholders will be requested to approve the directors’ remuneration report {excluding the directors’ remuneration policy) for the financial year ended 2
June 2018,

Resolution 11 ~ Directors’ power to allot relavant securities
Generally, the directars may only allot shares in the Company {or grant rights to subseribe for, or to convert any security into, shares in the Company) if they
have been authorised ta do so by sharehaolders.

in line with guidance issued by the Investment Association, if passed, resolution 10 will authorise the directors to allot ordinary shares in the Company (and
to grant rights to subscribe for, or to convert any security into, ordinary shares in the Company) in connecticn with a rights issue only up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £536,294 {as reduced by the aggregate nominal amaunt of any shares allatted or rights granted under resolutian 12). This amount
(before any reduction) represents approximately 33% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 29 July 2018, being the last practicable date
befare the publication of this document. The directors intend to follow emerging best practice as regards the use of this authority, including as to the
requirement for directors ta stand for re-election.

If given, this autharity will expire at the canclusion of the Company’s next annual general meeting or 15 months from the passing of the resolution
{whichever is earlier). it is the directors’ intention to renew the allotment authority each year,

The directors have no current intention to exercise either of the autharities scught under resolution 11. However, the directors consider that it is in the best
interests of the Company ta have the autharities available so that they have the maximum flexibility permitted by institutional shareholder guidelines to
aflot shares or grant rights without the need for a genaral meeting should they determine that itis appropriate to do so to respond to market developments
or to take advantage of business opportunities as they arise.

Resolution 12 - Disapplication of pre-emption rights an equity issues for cash

Resolution 12, if passed, would enable the directors to allot shares for cash on a non pre-emptive basis in imijted circumstanges. It is proposed to autharise
the directors to issue shares for cash up to an aggregate nominal amount of £81,256 (which represents approximately 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital as at 29 July 2018}, without having to first offer them to shareholders in proportion to their existing holdings. In addition, in accordance with normal
practice, the resolution would enable the board ta dea! with overseas shareholders and fractional entitlements as it thinks fit in the cantext of any rights
issue or open offer.

if given, this authority will expire at the conclusion of the Company’s next annual general meeating or 15 months from the passing of tha resolution
{whichever is earlier). It is the directors’ intention to renew this autharity each year.

There are no present plans to exercise this autharity.

Resolution 13 - Market purchase of own shares

A company may only purchase its own shares by either an off-market purchase, in pursuance of a contract approved in advance in gccordance with section
$94 of the Act or by a3 market purchase, authorisad in accordance with section 701 of the Act. A ‘market purchase” is one made through a ‘recognised
investment exchange’. Aithough the Act only requires an ordinary resalution, LR 12.4.7 of tha Listing Rules requires the resolution ta be passed as a special
resclution (the ABI also recommend that the resclution should be passed as a special resolution). This resolution 15 authorises market purchases of the
Company’s own shares to be made but anly within the limitations specified. 'n accordance with Investment Association guidelines the maximum numbe- of
shares purchased under this authority must naot exceed 3,205,271 ordinary shares. The resolution also states the maximum price which may be paid being 5p
per ordinary shares and the maximum price being the higher of: {i) an amount equal to 105 per cent of the avarage market value of an ordinary share in the
Company for the five business days priar ta the day on which the purchase is made; and ({i} the value of an ardinary share calculated an the hasis af the
higher of the price quoted for: {a} the last independent trade of; and (b} the highest current indepandent bid for, any number of the Company’s ordinary
chares on the trading venue where the purchase is carried out.

As recommended by the {nvestrment Assaciation the Company renaws this authority on an annual basis at each annual general meeting.

The directors have no current intention of exercising this authority to purchase the Company’s ordinary shares. The Cempany will only exercise this authority
ta make such a purchase in the market if the directors consider it is in the best interests of the shareholders generally to do so.

The Company is permitted to hold shares it has purchased in treasury, as an slternative to cancelling them. Shares held in treasury may subsequentiy be
cancelled, sald for cash ar used to satisfy opticns exercised under any of the Company's share schemes. Whilst held in treasury, the shares are not entitled
to receive any dividend ¢r dividend equivalent {apart from any issue of bonus shares) and have no voting rights. The directors believe it is appropriate for
the Company ta have the option to hold its own shares in treasury if, at a future date, the directors exercise this autharity, Fhe directors will have regard to
investar group guidalines which may be in farce at the time of any such purchase, halding or re-sale of shares held in treasuny.

if given, this authonty will expire at the conclusion of the Cempany's next annual genera! meeting or 15 months after the passing of the resofution
{whichever is 2arlier). It is the directars’ intantion to renew this authority each year.
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Notes continued

17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

22.

23,

24.

Pursuant to Chapter S of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 (sections 527 to 531), where requested by a member or members meeting the
gualification criteria set out at note 18 below, the Company must publish on its website, a statement setting oLt any matter that such members
propose to raise at the meeting relating 10 the audit of the Company’s financial statements {including the auditors’ report and the conduct of the
audit) that are to be laid before the meeting. Where the Company is required to publish such a staterment on its website, it may not require the
members making the request to pay any expenses incurred by the Company in complying with the request, it must forward the statement to the
Company’s auditors no [ater than the time the statement is made available on the Company's website, and the statement may be dealt with as part
of the business of the megting. The request may be in hard copy form or in electronic form (see note 19 below), either set out the staterment in full,
or if supporting a statement sent by another member, clearly identify the statement which is being supported, must be authenticated by the person
or persons making it (see note 13 below}, and be received by the Company at least one week befare the meeting.

In arder to be able to exercise the members’ right te require circulation of a resolution to be proposed at the meeting {see note 15}; a matter of
business to be deait with at the meeting {se¢ note 16) or the Company to publish audit concerns (see note 17), the relevant request must be made
by a member or members having a right to vote at the meeting and holding 2t least 5% of tatal voting rights of the Company, cr at least 100
members having a right to vote at the meeting and holding, on average, at least £100 of paid up share capital. For information an voting rights,
including the total number of voting rights, see note 12 above and the website referred to in note 21.

Where a member or members wishes to request the Company to circulate a resolution to be proposed at the meeting (see note 15), include a
matter of business to be dealt with at the meeting (see note 16) or publish 2udit concerns {see note 17) such request must be made in accordance
with one of the following ways: (a) a hard copy request which is signed by you, which states your fuil name and address and is sent to Rachel
Tengue, Games Workshop Group PLC, Wiliow Road, Lenton, Nottingham NG7 2WS; or (b} a request which states your fulf name and address, and is
sent ta rachel.tongue@gwplc.com. Please state ‘AGM' in the subject line of the e-mail.

Under section 319A of the Companies Act 2006 the Company must answer any question you ask relating to the business being deait with at the
meeting unless answering the guestion woulid interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve the disclosure of confidentia!
information, the answer has already been given on a website in the form of an answer to a question or it is undesirable in the interests of the
Campany or the good order of the meeting that the question be snswered.

information regarding the meeting, including the information required by section 3114 of the Companies Act 2006, is availzble from
http:/finvestor games-workshop.com.

The following documents will be available for inspection for at least 15 minutes prior to the meeting znd during the meeting: (a} copies of the
service contracts of executive directors of the Company and (b} coples of the service agreements of the independent directors of the Company,
CREST members who wish to appeint a proxy cr proxies by utilising the CREST electronic proxy zppointment service may do sc by utilising the
procedures described in the CRESYT Manual on the Euroclear webhsite (www.eurccdlear.com). CREST persenal members or other CREST sponsared
members, and those CREST members who have appointed 3 voting service provider(s), should refer 1o their CREST sponsor or voting service
provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate action on their behalf. tn order for a proxy appointmeant made by means of CREST to be valid,
the appropriste CREST message {a "CREST Proxy Instruction') must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited’s
("EUI") specifications and must centain the information required for such instructions, as described in the CREST Manua!. The message, regardless of
whether it constitutes the appointment of a prexy or an amendment to the instruction given to 2 previously appointed proxy, must {in order to be
valid) be transmitted so as to be received by the issuer's agent (1D RA19} by the latest time(s) for receipt of proxy appointments specified in the
notice of meeting. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the
CREST Applications Host} from which the issuer's agent is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. The
Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the Uncertificated Securities
Regulations 2001, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsers or voting service providers should note that EUl does not make
avaitable special procedures in CREST for any particutar messages. Normal system timings and limitations will therefore apply in relation to the
input of CREST Proxy Instructions. it is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take {or, if the CREST member is a CREST personal
member or sponsored member or has appointed a voting service provider(s}, to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s)
take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time, In this
connection, CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsars or voting service praviders are referred, in particular, to those sections of
the CREST Manual concerning practical limitations of the CREST system and timings.

As an alternstive to completing a hard copy praxy form, a shareholder can appoint a proxy or proxies electronically by visiting

www . sharevote.co.uk. Shareholders will need their voting |D, task ID and shareho'der reference number (this is the series of numbers printed under
their name on the proxy form). Alternatively, if 2 shareholder has already registered with Equiniti Limited's anline portfolio service, Shareview, they
can submit a proxy form at www shareview.co.uk. Full instructions are given on hoth websites. To be valid, your proxy appointment{s} and
instructions should reach Equiniti Limited no later than 48 hours before the time fixed to hold the meeting. Any electronic communication sent by a
shareholder 1o the Company or the registrar that is found to contain a computer virus will not be accepted,

Explanatory notes to the notice of annual general meeting

Resolution 1 — financial statements
This is a standard resolution comman to all annual general meetings.

Resolutions 2 to 7 - Election and re-efection of directors
The following directors will stand for election/re-elaction in accordance with the UK Corperate Governance Code and the Company's articles of association:

. K 3 Rountree
. R F Tongue
. N | Donaldson

. E O’Donnell
. IR A Brewis
. K £ Marsh

Each of the above directors has indicated their willingness to offer themseives for election/re-election. The board, having considered the mix of skills,
knowledge and experience of the directors confirms that each director continues ta perform their duties effectively, showing mtegnty and high ethical
standards whilst maintaining sound, independent judgement in respect of alt decisions taken at board Jeve).

Biographical details for each of the directors ¢an be found on pages 15 and 16 of the 2019 annual report,
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